Council

Wednesday, 23 January 2019
2.00 p.m.

Council Chamber, Town Hall,
Moorgate Street, Rotherham. S60 2TH

Rotherham »

Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council



WELCOME TO TODAY’S MEETING

GUIDANCE FOR THE PUBLIC

The Council is composed of 63 Councillors, who are democratically accountable to the
residents of their ward.

The Council Meeting is chaired by the Mayor, who will ensure that its business can be
carried out efficiently and with regard to respecting the rights and responsibilities of
Councillors and the interests of the community.The Mayor is the Borough'’s first citizen and is
treated with respect by the whole Council, as should visitors and member of the public.

All Councillors meet together as the Council. Here Councillors decide the Council’s overall
policies and set the budget each year. The Council appoints its Leader, Mayor and Deputy
Mayor and at its Annual Meeting will appoint Councillors to serve on its committees.

Copies of the agenda and reports are available on the Council's website at
www.rotherham.gov.uk. The public can also have access to the reports to be discussed at
the meeting by visiting the Reception at the Town Hall. The Reception is open from
8.00 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. each day. You may not be allowed to see some reports because they
contain private information and these will be marked accordingly on the agenda.

Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Council
meetings. A member of the public may ask one general question in person which must be
received in writing to the Chief Executive by 10.00 a.m. on the Friday preceding a Council
meeting on the following Wednesday and must not exceed fifty words in length. Questions
can be emailed to councilquestions@rotherham.gov.uk

Council meetings are webcast and streamed live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s
website. At the start of the meeting the Mayor will confirm if the meeting is being filmed. You
would need to confirm your wish not to be filmed to Democratic Services. Recording of the
meeting by members of the public is also allowed.

Council meetings are open to the public, but occasionally the Council may have to discuss
an item in private. If this occurs you will be asked to leave. If you would like to attend a
meeting please report to the Reception at the Town Hall and you will be directed to the
relevant meeting room.

FACILITIES

There are public toilets, one of which is designated disabled with full wheelchair access, with
full lift access to all floors. Induction loop facilities are also available in the Council Chamber,
John Smith Room and Committee Rooms 1 and 2.

Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained via the ramp at the main entrance
to the Town Hall.

If you have any queries on this agenda, please contact:-
Contact:- James McLaughlin, Head of Democratic Services

Tel.:- 01709 822477
james.mclaughlin@rotherham.gov.uk

Date of Publication:- 15 January 2019


http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/
mailto:councilquestions@rotherham.gov.uk
mailto:james.mclaughlin@rotherham.gov.uk

COUNCIL

Wednesday, 23 January 2019 at 2.00 p.m.
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Moorgate Street, Rotherham. S60 2TH

THE MAYOR (Councillor Alan Buckley)
DEPUTY MAYOR (Councillor Jenny Andrews)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Sharon Kemp)

MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

ANSTON AND WOODSETTS

IRELAND, Jonathan C.
JEPSON, Clive R.
WILSON, Katherine M.

BOSTON CASTLE

ALAM, Saghir
MCNEELY, Rose M.
YASSEEN, Taiba K.

BRINSWORTH AND
CATCLIFFE

BUCKLEY, Alan
CARTER, Adam
SIMPSON, Nigel G.

DINNINGTON

MALLINDER, Jeanette M.

TWEED, Simon A.
VJESTICA, John

HELLABY

ANDREWS, Jennifer A.
CUTTS, Brian
TURNER, R. A. John
HOLDERNESS
ELLIOTT, Michael S.
PITCHLEY, Lyndsay
TAYLOR, Robert P.
HOOBER

LELLIOTT, Denise

ROCHE, David J.
STEELE, Brian

KEPPEL

CLARK, Maggi
CUTTS, Dave

HAGUE, Paul
MALTBY

BEAUMONT, Christine

PRICE, Richard
RUSHFORTH, Amy L.

RAWMARSH

BIRD, Robert
MARRIOTT Sandra
SHEPPARD, David R.

ROTHER VALE
ALLCOCK, Leon

BROOKES, Amy C.
WALSH, Robert J.

ROTHERHAM EAST

COOKSEY, Wendy

FENWICK-GREEN Deborah

KHAN, Tajamal

ROTHERHAM WEST

JARVIS, Patricia A.
JONES, lan P.
KEENAN, Eve.

SILVERWOOD

MARLES, Steven
NAPPER, Alan D.

RUSSELL, Gwendoline A.

SITWELL

COWLES, Allen
SHORT Peter, G. J.
TURNER, Julie

SWINTON
CUSWORTH, Victoria

SANSOME, Stuart
WYATT, Kenneth J.

VALLEY

ALBISTON, Kerry
REEDER, Kathleen
SENIOR, Jayne E.

WALES

BECK, Dominic
WATSON, Gordon
WHYSALL, Jennifer
WATH

ATKIN, Alan
ELLIOT, Jayne C.
EVANS, Simon
WICKERSLEY
ELLIS, Susan
HODDINOTT, Emma
READ, Chris
WINGFIELD
ALLEN, Sarah A.

ELLIOTT, Robert W.
WILLIAMS, John



Council Meeting
Agenda

Time and Date:-
Wednesday, 23 January 2019 at 2.00 p.m.

Venue:-
Council Chamber - Town Hall, Moorgate Street, Rotherham. S60 2TH

ANNOUNCEMENTS

To consider any announcements by the Mayor in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 3(2)(ii).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive the apologies of any Member who is unable to attend the meeting.
COMMUNICATIONS

Any communication received by the Mayor or Chief Executive which relates to
a recommendation of the Cabinet or a committee which was received after the
relevant meeting.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING (Pages 1 - 30)

To receive the record of proceedings of the ordinary meeting of the Council
held on 5" December, 2018 and to approve the accuracy thereof.

PETITIONS

To report on any petitions received by the Council received by the Council and
receive statements in support of petitions in accordance with Petitions Scheme
and Council Procedure Rule 13.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To invite Councillors to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal
interests they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this
meeting, to confirm the nature of those interests and whether they intend to
leave the meeting for the consideration of the item.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

To receive questions from members of the public who may wish to ask a
general question of the Mayor, Cabinet Member or the Chairman of a
Committee in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Should it be necessary, in the opinion of the Mayor, to consider excluding the
press and public from the meeting in relation to any items of urgent business
on the grounds that private information is likely to be divulged.

There are no such items at the time of preparing this agenda.
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL'S STATEMENT

To receive a statement from the Leader of the Council in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule 9.

MINUTES OF THE CABINET (Pages 31 - 60)

To note the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 19" November and
17t December 2018.

RECOMMENDATION FROM CABINET - REVIEW OF POLLING PLACES
(Pages 61 - 180)

To consider a recommendation from Cabinet to commence a review of polling
places across the borough.

RECOMMENDATION FROM CABINET - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT -
RENTS AND SERVICE CHARGES FOR 2019/20 (Pages 181 - 191)

To consider a recommendation from Cabinet in respect of approval of housing
rent and service charges for 2019/20.

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - MODERN
METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION (Pages 192 - 212)

To receive for information recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board in respect of a scrutiny review of modern methods of
construction.

THRIVING NEIGHBOURHOODS - UPDATES FROM WARD COUNCILLORS
(Pages 213 - 218)

To receive updates from ward councillors from Wingfield, Anston & Woodsetts,
and Boston Castle on the activities supporting Thriving Neighbourhoods across
the Borough

STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE (Pages 219 - 224)

To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the
Standards and Ethics Committee.

To confirm the minutes as a true record.



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22,

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Pages 225 - 234)

To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the Audit
Committee.

To confirm the minutes as a true record.
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD (Pages 235 - 245)

To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the Health
and Wellbeing Board.

To confirm the minutes as a true record.
PLANNING BOARD (Pages 246 - 250)

To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the
Planning Board.

To confirm the minutes as a true record.
LICENSING (Pages 251 - 256)

To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the
Licensing Board Sub-Committees.

To confirm the minutes as a true record.

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS TO DESIGNATED SPOKESPERSONS

To put questions, if any, to the designated Members on the discharge of
functions of the South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel, South Yorkshire Fire
and Rescue Authority, Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield
Combined Authority and South Yorkshire Pensions Authority, in accordance
with Council Procedure Rule 11(5).

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS TO CABINET MEMBERS AND CHAIRMEN

To put questions, if any, to Cabinet Members and Chairmen (or their
representatives) under Council Procedure Rules 11(1) and 11(3).

URGENT ITEMS

Any other public items which the Mayor determines are urgent.

SHARON KEMP,
Chief Executive.

The next meeting of the Council will be on

Wednesday 27t February, 2019 at 2.00 p.m. at Rotherham Town Hall.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

COUNCIL MEETING
Wednesday, 5th December, 2018

Present:- The Mayor of Rotherham (Councillor Alan Buckley) (in the Chair);
Councillors Alam, Albiston, Allcock, Allen, Andrews, Atkin, Beaumont, Beck, Bird,
Brookes, Carter, Cooksey, Cowles, Cusworth, B. Cutts, Elliot, M. Elliott, R. Elliott,
Fenwick-Green, Hoddinott, Ireland, Jarvis, Jepson, Jones, Keenan, Khan, Lelliott,
McNeely, Mallinder, Marles, Marriott, Napper, Price, Read, Reeder, Russell,
Sansome, Sheppard, Short, Simpson, Steele, Taylor, Tweed, Vjestica, Walsh,
Watson, Williams, Whysall and Wyatt.

The webcast of the Council Meeting can be viewed at:-
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

100. ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Mayor was pleased to present his activity since the last Council
meeting which was attached for information to the Mayor’s letter.

The Mayor also referred to Councillor Lyndsay Pitchley suffering a stroke
and, on behalf of the Council, passed on the very best of wishes for a
speedy recovery.

101. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Clark, D. Cutts,
Ellis, Evans, Hague, Pitchley, Roche, Rushforth, Senior, John Turner,
Julie Turner, Wilson and Yasseen.

102. COMMUNICATIONS
There were no communications received.
103. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING

Resolved:- That the minutes of the meeting of Council held on 31st
October, 2018, be approved for signature by the Mayor.

Mover:- Councillor Read Seconder:- Councillor Watson
104. PETITIONS

The Mayor reported receipt of a petition, which had not met the threshold
for consideration by Council, and would be referred to the relevant
directorate for a response to be prepared:-

e  From 235 residents calling on the Council to consider reducing the
speed of traffic from the current 40 mph to 30 mph on the stretch of
Doncaster Road between Fosters Garage and Thrybergh Country
Park.


https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Page 2

COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

105.

106.

Mr. Taylor addressed the Council as part of the presentation of the
petition.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Albiston declared a personal interest in Minute No. 116
(Council Motion — HS2) and chose to leave the room and not observe the
vote.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

(1) Mr. Jackson asked did the Council accept, that any reduction in the
amount of green waste composted due to the changes in refuse
collection, would be a failure of the Council’s waste policy, and incur
unnecessary cost and create a situation of more home
composting/garden fires for vulnerable benefits groups.

Councillor Hoddinott did not believe that there would be a failure of the
Council’'s waste policy. Whilst the Council had no way of knowing how
much garden waste was composted in people’s gardens, home
composting was the most environmentally friendly way of disposing of
garden waste so where it was safe to do so that was to be encouraged.
The Council currently had home compost bins on offer at a reduced cost.

Equally there was no evidence from the rest of the country that charging
increased the number of garden fires. The Cabinet Member reminded
everyone that most Councils in the country have already introduced
charges for green waste before Rotherham.

The Cabinet Member had spoken to Mr. Jackson before about the
economics of garden waste. As well as collection costs, the disposal of
the garden waste that was collected from residents incurred a cost. The
Council paid a contractor to treat the waste, which was the case in all
other local Authorities. Any proposal to process garden waste and sell the
compost that was produced assumed that there was a profit to be made
from the process. This was not the case. The cost of processing the waste
would hugely outstrip any potential income that could be made.

In a supplementary question Mr. Jackson referred to the Council
collecting or making less compost through not have a full collection
system. He, therefore, presented some further information to the Mayor
which would explain in full and give a glimpse for the future.

The Mayor assured Mr. Jackson he would read the information he had
been presented with.

Councillor Hoddinott confirmed, however, that 32,000 households have
now signed up for the new garden waste service and so would receive all
year round garden waste collections.



Page 3
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

That was nearly one in three of all the properties in the borough.

Even if the weight of garden waste coming through the Council’s
collections reduced, and it may not do, overall it was expected that the full
programme of changes that were being introduced would increase the
amount of waste recycled in total, and at the same time save the Council
about half a million pounds a year.

Officers have offered to meet to discuss this further and this offer still
stood to Mr. Jackson.

(2) “T” was unable to attend today’s meeting so the question would be
answered in writing.

(3) Mr. D. Smith was unable to attend today’s meeting so the question
would be answered in writing.

(4) Mr. Sylvester welcomed the news that Members would be reporting to
Council on the work they were doing under the potentially excellent
neighbourhood working strategy but asked what procedures would be in
place to ensure the reports were robust, factual and relevant to the
communities they served?

Councillor Watson confirmed part of the role of neighbourhood working
and the new neighbourhoods strategy was to improve both the
communications and engagement with residents; connecting and shaping
Council services at a neighbourhood level.

Each ward had a ward plan that captured locally identified priorities and
the activities and projects that would be reported back to Council would
illustrate just some of the ways as to how those priorities were being
tackled and, therefore, relevant to those particular communities. These
were on the Council’'s website and if they were not factual or robust then
the local residents involved would certainly be challenging their accuracy.

At each Council meeting from now on Councillors from three different
wards would report back on the work they were undertaking with their
local residents, community groups and partner organisations.

In a supplementary question Mr. Sylvester referred to the potential
excellent neighbourhood working across the borough which was far better
than the work in the previous Area Assemblies. In Scrutiny many of the
potential problems were identified regarding devolved budgets and cross
area working. There were good examples of where it was working well
and Windgfield had been identified as incredibly good with Councillors from
different parties working together. There were some issues with some of
the Ward Plans. The one for Silverwood Ward indicated that Councillors
would attend Thrybergh Parish Council as part of the consultation, but
only Councillor Napper had attended. Looking at the Ward Plan for East



Page 4

COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

107.

108.

Herringthorpe no consultation had taken place other than residents
complaining. Mr. Sylvester, therefore, asked if there could be anything
wrote in where the Ward Plans could be challenged or questioned through
scrutiny for any comments or recommended change.

Councillor Watson confirmed residents could telephone, email or attend a
surgery with their Ward Councillor and he was aware that Improving
Places Select Commission would monitor the Strategy.

Today was the first attempt at the Ward Plans being presented to Council
and feedback was welcome on how things could be done better. He
hoped that next year's Annual Report that would be presented to
Improving Places would prove to be an excellent neighbourhood working
strategy.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act
1972, that should the Mayor deem if necessary the public be excluded
from the meeting on the grounds that any items involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of
schedule 12(A) of such Act indicated, as now amended by the Local
Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006.

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL'S STATEMENT

The Leader of the Council wished to say a few words in relation to the
story covered initially in The Times newspaper last week, and
subsequently in other media. He spoke for everyone in this chamber
whose hearts went out to those involved in the story. Many had met
Sammy Woodhouse personally, and held her in the highest of respect.
Clearly her experiences in the family court have been traumatic, and that
was a cause of real sorrow to all. It was not possible to comment on the
specifics of Sammy’s case. Family Courts were held in private and
revealing information about individual cases could result in contempt of
court. The privacy of the child in the case was also paramount.

The issue centred around part of the family court proceedings and
whether parents who did not have parental responsibility must legally be
informed about certain legal proceedings in the family courts involving
their children.

Social workers must listen to and act in the best interests of the child at all
times and the Leader was confident that staff have followed the national
rules correctly. Social workers have not tried to use the family courts to
give convicted violent criminals access to any children, or to arrange
custody for perpetrators of child sexual exploitation.



Page 5
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

As the Local Government Association said in their statement last week:
“Councils are absolutely committed to making sure the welfare and
wellbeing of the child is paramount in decisions about their care.

However while these are complex issues, councils have to operate within
the existing legal framework at all times.”

Some commentators last week suggested that social workers should
choose when to follow the law just as a matter of “common sense”.

Had, in Rotherham, during government intervention, a social worker
decided that the law did not need to apply, the Council would have been
dealing with an entirely different and legitimate set of concerns.

The Leader wanted to be clear that elected politicians did not direct
individual safeguarding and family court cases. Those who have argued
that politicising these processes further were, in his opinion, gravely
mistaken.

None of this changed the heartache from recent days, but it did not mean
that the national rules were right.

Rotherham’s priority remained working to safeguard vulnerable children
within the borough. Contact with the Ministry of Justice had continued over
the last week and the potential issues around current practice directions in
England and Wales were being treated with the gravity and urgency that
they required.

An announcement from the Ministry of Justice was awaited on their next
steps and support had been reiterated to participate along with other
Council’s in any considerations of the guidance that may be proposed.

The Ministry of Justice have confirmed that their previous statements
regarding ‘failings’ were given prior to a review of the case, and they were
now considering potential issues with practice directions in England and
Wales. They have said there was no suggestion Rotherham Council had
operated outside of the current practice guidelines.

Of course, any clarification did not help victims and survivors affected by
current guidance, and Rotherham was committed to working constructively
with victims, survivors and the Ministry of Justice on the important issues
raised.

The Leader was proud of all the progress made in Rotherham over the last
four years and during the last week it felt like steps had been taken
backwards.

Rotherham was in a different place to what it was in 2014. Not just
because the Commissioner intervention was brought to an early
conclusion, or because Children’s Services recovered its “Good” Ofsted



Page 6

COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

109.

110.

rating faster than anywhere else in the country had. Looking at the
Council agenda today, this was a better Council than the one visited by
Alexis Jay.

This would not mean that things would not go wrong and that everything
was done right, but the Council would act with integrity in putting it right.

The measure of a person was not how they fell down, but how they got up.
This was not the moment to turn inwards, but to continue to do better and
to be better.

The Mayor invited Councillors to ask questions or make comments on the
statement by the Leader.

Councillor Cusworth reiterated, as the Leader had already suggested, this
was not the place for the chamber to discuss individual cases, but
expressed how difficult this was and could not imagine what women of
Rotherham and survivors endured. She was amazed at the strength and
bravery demonstrated in helping to bring perpetrators to justice. The
matter brought to the Council’s attention in the media was of serious
concern and was assured Rotherham followed the national rules correctly.

At Improving Lives Select Commission yesterday Christine Cassell from
the Local Children’s Safeguarding Board attended and reinforced how
amazing the transformation of Rotherham had been and unprecedented.
If the Leader was in agreement the Improving Lives would like to explore
the possibility of a piece of work looking at this process further down the
line.

The Leader was amenable within the legal boundaries for Scrutiny to look
into a piece of work on these proceedings.

MINUTES OF THE CABINET

Resolved:- That the reports, recommendations and minutes of the
meeting of the Cabinet held on 22" October, 2018, be received.

Mover:- Councillor Read Seconder:- Councillor Watson

RECOMMENDATION FROM CABINET - CONSULTATION ON THE
ADOPTION OF SCHEDULE 3 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 AND A ROTHERHAM
SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENSING POLICY

Further to Minute No. 62 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on
19t November, 2018 consideration was given to the report which sought
approval to commence public consultation on the adoption of the
Schedule, which would give local communities a greater say about the
presence of sex establishments, including sex entertainment venues, sex
shops and sex cinemas. This would allow the Council to more effectively



111.

Page 7
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

regulate such premises through a formal Sex Establishment Licensing
Policy.

It was also intended to develop a draft policy, including proposals relating
to the type of locations and number of sex establishments, and to seek
views on that draft policy. Whilst this would potential aid a consultation, as
it would give consultees a draft set of locations and a suggested number
of sex establishments to consider, it could potentially limit the range of
sensitive localities being identified, and limit the range of responses in
relation to the number of sex establishments in particular locations and
likely to elicit a more comprehensive range of views about sensitive
localities and the appropriate number of sex establishments within those
localities.

Councillor Keenan was in support of the report and deplored an industry
where human beings were treated as commodities and booked or sold
and this consultation gave everyone the opportunity to express their
views. Children had the right to move around the borough and attend
churches and schools whilst not having to encounter such establishments.
Rotherham, despite what it referred to in the media, was a decent
wholesome town and this consultation allowed people to make views
heard and make the town a safer place.

Councillor Steele supported the report and thanked Councillor Hoddinott
and the officers for protecting the interests of those who worked in this
industry and welcomed the equality impact assessment.

Councillor Carter supported the policy and the proposals to regulate the
industry, safeguard rights of the workers and ensure rights of all
individuals were safeguarded. He supported the consultation with regards
to sex establishments in Rotherham.

Councillor Cusworth was also in support of the report.

Resolved:- (1) That the proposal to adopt Schedule 3 to the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) be
considered, and the commencement of public consultation in relation to
the proposed adoption be approved.

(2) That, in line with Option 2(b) (Section 4), a proposed draft Sex
Establishment Licensing Policy, to run parallel to consultation on the
adoption of Schedule 3 above, be approved.

Mover:- Councillor Hoddinott Seconder:- Councillor Beaumont

RECOMMENDATION FROM AUDIT COMMITTEE - APPOINTMENT OF
INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Further to Minute No. 55 of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on
27t November, 2018, consideration was given to the term of office of the



Page 8

COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

112.

113.

current Independent Member serving on the Audit Committee which was
due to cease on 9th December, 2018.

The appointment of an Independent Member of the Audit Committee was
a function of the Council and the Audit Committee were recommending
that Mr. Bernard Coleman be re-appointed as the Independent Member of
the Audit Committee for a twelve-month term of office until 31st
December, 2019.

Resolved:- That Mr. Bernard Coleman be re-appointed as the
Independent Member of the Audit Committee with a term of office ending
on 31st December, 2019.

Mover:- Councillor Wyatt Seconder:- Councillor Walsh

APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS - AUDIT COMMITTEE
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE OF SHEFFIELD CITY REGION
COMBINED AUTHORITY

Consideration was given to the following nominations as substitute
members on the Audit Committee and Scrutiny Committee of the Sheffield
City Region Combined Authority:-

o Audit Committee Councillor Bob Walsh
o Scrutiny Committee Councillor Jeanette Mallinder

Resolved:- That the appointments as substitute members be approved.
Mover:- Councillor Read Seconder: Councillor Lelliott
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY UPDATE

Councillor Steele, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Board, provided an update on the latest work carried out by the Overview
and Scrutiny Management Board and the Select Commissions - Health,
Improving Lives and Improving Places over the last few months.

This was the second update for 2018-19 of the work undertaken by
Scrutiny during the last few months and good progress was being made
with the planned programme and as always additional items have been
scrutinised, including multi-agency working in  complex abuse
investigations and homelessness prevention.

An initial session with Voluntary Action Rotherham went well and led to
members of Rotherham Parent Carers Forum contributing to the scrutiny
of child and adolescent mental health, bringing their perspective as
parents and service users.



114.

Page 9
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board had been busy with
budget scrutiny looking at proposals for the next two years as well as
close monitoring of the in-year position.

The Health Select Commission was monitoring progress on more
integrated working in health and social care and on the social, emotional
and mental health agenda.

Improving Lives Select Commission focused on the next phase of early
help and the sufficiency strategy for looked after children, as well as
having a positive meeting with the young inspectors

Improving Places Select Commission had largely focused on housing and
neighbourhood strategies, in addition to finalising the joint review with the
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board on modern methods of
construction.

The Chair wished to pass on his thanks to all scrutiny members for their
hard work.

Resolved:- That the report be received and the contents noted.
Mover:- Councillor Steele Seconder:- Councillor Cowles

THRIVING NEIGHBOURHOODS - UPDATES FROM WARD
COUNCILLORS

Further to Minute No. 55 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on
19t November, 2018, consideration was given to the annual Ward
Updates for Wales, Wath and Wickersley as part of the Thriving
Neighbourhoods Strategy.

The Strategy signalled a new way of working for the Council both for
Members and for staff and covered every ward in the borough and would
be delivered through ward plans developed with residents to address local
issues and opportunities. Ward Members would be supported by the
neighbourhood team and would work with officers and residents from a
range of organisations to respond to residents.

Councillor Read, on behalf of the Wickersley Ward, gave an update on
ward priorities, which were based on proposals from an extensive
residents’ survey with emphasis on young people. The Ward was able to
join up estate regeneration within Flanderwell Park and with funding from
the Housing Revenue Account with Ward Members’ own delegated
budget the unsafe play area was developed with young people engaged
on the design.

In addition, sessions were also arranged to engage some extra youth
work to engage young people in diversion activities at certain times of the
year.



Page 10
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

Speeding came through in the survey much more and certainly work had
taken place on Brook Lane and on the road between Bramley and
Ravenfield to try and get speed reduced. Reference was also made to
litter and a number of schemes like community clean ups had been
undertaken. Good progress had been made, but this was plenty more
challenges within this process which would be taken forward.

Councillor Hoddinott confirmed a lot of work had been taken place and
reported on other activities such as the work on Markfield Drive with
physical improvements to the estate and she thanked Councillor Beck for
his support. The community centre was now back up and running regular
coffee morning and craft workshops which sat alongside the surgeries
and the annual Christmas singalong which would take place in the next
few days. One of the highlights was the school council elections at
Flanderwell School and the environmental projects they were undertaking.

The community speed watch on Brook Lane would be established as a
regular occurrence with the local police and a further one would take
place with Bramley Sunnyside School in the new year.

There were still many challenges with anti-social behaviour and criminal
damage and a plea was made for residents to work with Ward Members
to pass on information and look at solutions. Solar lighting had been
purchased and erected on footpaths to deter criminal damage and anti-
social behaviour. In last few weeks the Police had also been visiting
houses to talk to families who were causing a nuisance.

Councillor Beck, on behalf of the Wales Ward, confirmed a key priority
had been community safety and engaging vulnerable parts of the
community.

Key projects had also been undertaken with local schools, raising
environmental awareness of litter and making sure people took greater
responsibility for keeping areas clean.

Ward Members also worked with agencies, neighbourhood watch and
youth groups with a community safety event in September, 2017
engaging residents with advice and equipment to help them feel safer in
their homes.

A piece of work on Alders Way had also taken place following the
congregation of youths in a dark alley way which was resolved with the
erection of a solar powered lamp-post to illuminate the alley way resolving
a particular problem for residents in the area.

A community safety initiative on Peregrine Way, Harthill highlighted the
need for keeping elderly homes safe and a number of safety devices were
fitted to homes free of charge.



Page 11
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

Flagship projects over the last year had been the Wales High School
pedestrian safety scheme involving work with local neighbours, residents
and the school for safer pedestrianised areas and widened footways.

Billy and Belinda Bollards, following on from other success in the borough,
were also erected at some primary schools. These bollards were
designed to look like small young children to assist with slowing down
traffic. It was the intention for these to be erected outside all primary
schools in the ward this financial year.

Ward Members were committed to taking forward serious issues whilst
also making it fun for the people involved.

Councillor Atkin, on behalf of the Wath Ward, referred to neighbourhood
working activity at the flagship community facility, run by local people,
Montgomery Hall.

The three Ward Councillors along with other Council colleagues in areas
such as Housing, Libraries, Streetpride, Green Spaces and the Police
worked effectively together successfully, along with various sports clubs
and volunteers. Wath Rugby Club’s achievement was also being
recognised and they had been invited by the Mayor to the Town Hall.

Volunteers played an important role in the community and a cross ward
litter picking group had been formed with the Hoober Ward. Ward
Councillors had provided litter pick equipment. The group were hoping to
fill their 3000t bag by Christmas.

Lynn Cadman was singled out for her volunteering efforts with turning
Montgomery Hall into a thriving and well managed asset. It was thanks to
her that the Hall provided a much needed community facility being used
by the community most days.

Special recognition also needed to be given to Lucy Reeder,
Neighbourhood Co-ordinator, shared with Swinton. Ward Members were
concerned they were to lose her support, but lobbied officers to ensure
her work could continue and that her work in the ward was recognised.

Councillor Elliot spoke positively about Wath Gala and the Christmas
Festival which was becoming increasingly popular in the community
supported by local businesses. These events provided opportunities for
local charities and small businesses along with the community in
engaging together and empowering volunteers. Events such as these
created a better community and it was so humbling and proud to see
members of the ward volunteer their time to move forward with things they
wanted to do. Wath was a great place to live and was improving all the
time.

Councillor Steele, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Board, welcomed the opportunity for these ward reports to be considered



Page 12

COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

115.

116.

by Council and for what worked and did not work to be shared. As
indicated by a member of the public it was not felt appropriate for these
reports to be considered by Scrutiny.

Resolved:- That the ward updates be received and the contents noted.
NOTICE OF MOTION - SCHOOL TRANSPORT CHARTER

Proposed by Councillor Steele and seconded by Councillor Lelliott:-
This Council supports:-

¢ the work of the Rotherham Youth Cabinet and their Counterparts a
cross South Yorkshire in developing the South Yorkshire Transport
Charter.

This Council recognises:-

e that the Charter will improve accessibility and safer transport and
travel across South Yorkshire for all young people. The charter sets
out the principles for all partners and also the responsibilities for
children and young people themselves as transport users.

This Council resolves:-

e to thank the young people in Rotherham for their contribution to
developing the charter following work undertaken in takeover day
with Scrutiny.

On being put to the vote, the motion was carried unanimously.

NOTICE OF MOTION - HS2

Proposed by Councillor R. Elliott and seconded by Councillor M. Elliott:-
This Council notes:-

e the recent developments and disclosures about the out of control
and spiralling costs of HS2

e the need for improved links throughout the region to Sheffield,
Manchester, Leeds, Liverpool and Hull.

e the ravaging impact of austerity on social services and the urgent
need to increase spending on children and young people, adult
social care and education.

This Council resolves:-
e to call on the Government to cancel the HS2 project immediately,

thus saving Rotherham, South Yorkshire and the Nation from an
unmitigated economic and environmental disaster.



Page 13
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

to call on the Government to allocate the funding released from
cancellation for use to boost local infrastructure and social
spending

to call on local MPs and the Mayor of the Sheffield City Region to
support the Council and our communities by lobbying for the
cancellation of the HS2 project.

Councillor Lelliott proposed and Councillor Watson seconded the
following amendment:-

To replace

That this Council resolves to:-

call on the Government to cancel the HS2 project immediately, thus
saving Rotherham, South Yorkshire and the Nation from an
unmitigated economic and environmental disaster.

call on the Government to allocate the funding released from
cancellation for use to boost local infrastructure and social spending.
call on local MPs and the Mayor of the Sheffield City Region to
support the Council and our communities by lobbying for the
cancellation of the HS2 project.

And insert

This Council resolves:-

to call on the Government to abandon the Leeds leg of the HS2
project immediately, thus saving Rotherham and South Yorkshire
from the significant adverse environmental impact which will result.
to call on the Government to allocate the funding released from the
abandonment of the Leeds leg to boost essential improvements to
local transport infrastructure and the Northern Powerhouse.

to call on local MPs and the Mayor of the Sheffield City Region to
support the Council and our communities by lobbying for the
abandonment of the Leeds leg of the HS2 project.

to continue to raise the concerns of local residents that affected by
the amended route of HS2, and the disruption that will be caused
during its construction."

On being put to the vote the amendment to the motion was put and won
and became the substantive motion.

On being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.



Page 14

COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

117.

118.

119.

PLANNING BOARD

Resolved:- That the reports, recommendation and minutes of the
meetings of the Planning Board be adopted.

Mover:- Councillor Sheppard Seconder:- Councillor Williams
LICENSING

Resolved:- That the reports, recommendation and minutes of the
meetings of the Licensing Sub-Committee and Licensing Board Sub-
Committee be adopted.

Mover:- Councillor Beaumont Seconder:- Councillor McNeely
MEMBERS' QUESTIONS TO DESIGNATED SPOKESPERSONS

(1) Councillor Carter asked was he able to know the full final legal bill —
including detriment costs — following the outcome of the Judicial Review
into the unlawful duty system, Close Proximity Crewing in South
Yorkshire?

Councillor Atkin confirmed the issue was raised at the meeting of the
South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority on 26th November. The
position was explained to the Members of the Authority that the claims
have been settled, in principle, subject to the individual claimants being
consulted by their legal advisers and trade union representatives.

Only once it had been clarified that the proposed terms had been agreed
by the individual claimants the full details of the compensation agreed
would be reported to the Fire and Rescue Authority.

In terms of the financial implications of the costs of the judgement, which
would include the compensation as well as the costs of the revised IRMP,
these were being addressed within the Authority’s Medium Term Financial
Strategy.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked would South
Yorkshire Fire Authority be increasing the Council Tax precept to the
maximum amount to help cover the cost of the detriment payments.

Councillor Atkin confirmed there were no plans to increase the cost to
cover the detriment payments, but the Fire Authority would be setting the
budget under the normal process.

(2) Councillor Carter asked what were SYFR's reserves balance at the
time CPC was rolled out?

Councillor Atkin confirmed Lowedges and Aston Park Fire Stations went
live with CPC at the end of 2014. At this time, the Authority’s earmarked



120.

Page 15
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

and general reserves were around £25 million. Reserves could only be
spent once and were not a realistic or viable way of paying for long term,
revenue spending such as staff pay.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked would the Fire
Authority be dipping into reserves to cover the detriment payments and/or
increase the provision of fire cover as determined by this Council in the
motion to the Fire Authority earlier this year given there was £25 million in
the pot and did he agree there were now funds to enable this to happen.

Councillor Atkin reiterated reserves could only be spent once and were
not a realistic or viable way of paying for long term, revenue spending
such as staff pay. £17 million had already been committed to essential
capital investment. None of these measures would have been necessary
had it not been for the austerity and budget cuts enforced by the Coalition
Party during 2010-2015.

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS TO CABINET MEMBERS AND CHAIRMEN
(1) Councillor B. Cutts formally withdrew this question.

(2) Councillor Brookes referred to the recent care proceedings case
which had provoked a clear and strong moral reaction from all. Victims
and their families should be protected from their rapists. The law
notwithstanding, did the Deputy Leader agree that the Council was doing
all it could to support staff to raise concerns and question practice over
potential harm and ethical issues?

Councillor Watson confirmed the protection of individuals, whether
children or adults, was central to social work practice. Practitioners
worked hard to ensure that vulnerabilities and risks were understood and
taken into account within the work that they did. It was important that staff
worked within national guidance and statutory procedures to ensure that
the complex nature of their work was set within national practice and had
adherence to practice across the country.

By implementing Restorative Practice and Reflective Supervision social
workers were encouraged to raise concerns and escalate challenges to
their line managers in order to achieve the best outcomes for their
children and young people. The Council would work hard to ensure that
social workers and team managers have time for reflective discussion and
where appropriate escalate concerns about case work to more senior
managers. The Council were working hard to continue to promote the
culture of learning throughout the service where workers were
encouraged to be curious, raise concerns and reflect on what actions
were required for each individual situation.

In a supplementary question Councillor Brookes was pleased to hear
about the ongoing journey and the culture of learning and understood the
Council had operated in the guidelines and asked if, with more foresight



Page 16
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

and with more questions being asked, there may have been a different
outcome and perhaps a different one going forward for similar cases that
may arise.

Councillor Watson confirmed it was impossible to talk about individual
cases, but he was confident that workers did what was required by law
and advised of them. Going forward any changes that may happen or be
suggested Rotherham’s staff should not be in a position where they were
unable to follow the law.

(3) Councillor Carter asked how many other rape victims who have had
children consequently have had their rapists contacted about parental
responsibility?

Councillor Watson thought it would be helpful to clarify parental
responsibility — this was a legal term outlined in the Children Act 1989. It
set out the rights, duties and responsibilities that a parent had in relation
to their child. When issuing care proceedings the Council was required to
contact all persons with parental responsibility and any person who the
Council believed to be a parent without parental responsibility.

Family care proceedings were held in private in order to protect children
and, therefore, the Council could not provide information on specific
situations including the circumstances in which children were conceived.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked given that a number
had not been provided how many rape victims have been contacted in
this way.

Councilor Watson pointed out as reported in the news following Sammy’s
story there were certainly other cases in other parts of the country
involving biological fathers who have been convicted of violent offences
who have been legally entitled to certain parental rights. Whilst he could
not comment on what may or may not have happened here, when
Councils were all following the same rules, it was inconceivable that there
have not been other similar cases nation-wide.

(4) Councillor Carter asked who sanctioned whether or not a rapist was
contacted by RMBC to be involved in their child's care?

Councillor Watson explained when the Council issued care proceedings
to safeguard a child, it was required to give notice of those proceedings,
by law to any person holding parental responsibility for that child and/or
any person the Council believed was a parent of any child who was a
subject of those proceedings. A parent with parental responsibility by law
would automatically become a party to care proceedings. It was for the
Court to decide whether a parent without parental responsibility should
become a party to the proceedings.



Page 17
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked when was the
Deputy Leader made aware of this being taken forward of rapists being
contacted in terms of the Children’s Act.

Councillor Watson explained that these requirements in law were
operational matters and not strategic. He did not believe Lead Members
would be asked to comment on specific cases moving forward as it would
be expected that staff acted within the law within their profession.

(5) Councillor Carter asked what representations had RMBC made to
the Ministry of Justice to clarify guidance on contacting rapists about
parental responsibility?

Councillor Watson confirmed the Council had been in continued contact
with the Ministry of Justice since the articles in the press last week and
was confident that the serious matters raised regarding the current
practice directions in England and Wales were being treated with the
gravity and urgency that they required.

An announcement was currently awaited from the Ministry of Justice on
their next steps and the Council have re-iterated support to engage with
them in their actions on this matter. The Council were very happy to work
with them on what might be considered a suitable way of dealing with
cases like this in the future.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked was this the first
contact relating to these guidelines with the Ministry of Justice in the
aftermath of the press stories.

Councillor Watson confirmed the first contact would have been last week.
However, Rotherham had its own Legal Team that knew how the law
worked so you would not expect the Council every time a Social Worker
had to take a decision to ring up the Ministry of Justice to see if they
agreed with the action being taken.

(6) Councillor Carter asked what representations had RMBC made to
try and change the law about contacting rapists about parental
responsibility?

Councillor Watson explained the Council had requested, along with many
others, that the Ministry of Justice undertake a review of practice
guidance and support had been offered to such a national review as it
was felt Rotherham had experience in this field.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked when did those first
representations happen.

Councillor Watson referred to the answer above and confirmed the first
contact would have been last week.



Page 18
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

(7) Councillor Short asked had the Council signed a non-disclosure
agreement with HS2 Rail Link?

Councillor Lelliott confirmed a Service Level and Non-Disclosure
Agreement with HS2 was signed by the Council on 13th July, 2017.

The Council had signed it because without signing it, HS2 would not
provide information to the Council and, therefore, the Council’s ability to
represent local communities would be impaired.

In a supplementary question Councillor Short was disappointed, but not
surprised that twenty-six Councils, including North Yorkshire, had signed
these agreements. The perception by the public were these agreements
were gagging orders to keep residents in the dark to prevent them from
mounting campaigns against building HS2. It was a perception and not in
public interest at all, but only that of HS2. By signing the agreement it
would appear the Council was not supporting the residents it claimed to
be supporting. The Council was saying it was against HS2, but quietly
had signed a legal agreement.

Councillor Lelliott wished to clarify the position. Perception was not
always fact and true. Signing the agreement meant that HS2 could share
information with the Council in advance of it becoming public and for the
Council to respond to proposals. Without this the Council would not be
able to make representations on behalf of the Council and on the people it
represented. Signing of the agreement was a necessity to ensure the
Council was kept informed of developments.

(8) Councillor Cowles asked if the position could be clarified on the
Cross Keys and No. 28 Moorgate Street with regard to their current NDLR
tax status and did this result in a cost to the tax payer, if so, how much
was the taxpayer percentage contribution and what had been the
taxpayer cost to-date?

Councillor Alam confirmed the Open Minds Theatre Company (OMTC)
took the tenancy of the both properties from 30th September, 2016 and
they received 80% mandatory Charitable Non-Domestic Rates relief on
them both.

They had been liable to pay the remaining 20% of the Non Domestic
Rates from the tenancy start date.

Legislation required the cost (loss of income) of the 80% mandatory relief
to be shared in the following proportions:-

° 50% Central Government.
. 49% RMBC.
° 1% Fire Service.



Page 19
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

Reduced business rates income to the Council in relation to the Cross
Keys, Moorgate Street from 30th September, 2016 to 31st March, 2019
was £3,188.74.

Reduced business rates income to the Council in relation to 28 Moorgate
Street, as a result of the 80% mandatory relief from 30th September 2016
to 31st March 2019, was £1,292.50.

In a supplementary question Councillor Cowles understood the properties
were being used for storage and resource. However, he had never seen
anyone taking stuff in or out. Furthermore, a notice had been posted
indicating an asbestos problem and realistically people should not be
disturbing this material. He asked if the Council could investigate what
was going on with these buildings, how much was being stored, if the
charity was making best use of its funds, taxpayers money and storage
utilisation.

Councillor Alam confirmed that the charity had given assurances that they
were using these buildings for storage and the legal position was that if
they were using the building for occupation then they were entitled to
relief.

(9) Councillor Cowles referred in a recent communications release
concerning Eastwood properties. The officer referring to the properties
described them as “two rat infested homes”, PR 21562, their words not his
and he asked did this clearly indicate the failure of the Eastwood Deal and
Selective Licensing?

Councillor Beck confirmed no, but that it showed that if the Council had
followed Councillor Cowles’ advice and that of the opposition party and
not introduced selective licensing, the residents in those properties would
still be living in rat infested houses.

Instead, because of the policy the Council introduced, the landlord was
facing criminal charges, an unsafe property had been closed, and the
tenants were living in suitable accommodation. He would always defend
that the Eastwood Deal and selective licensing were a success.

In a supplementary question Councillor Cowles believed this indicated the
initiatives had failed. Selective licensing did not give the Council any
powers it did not already have. It merely transferred cost and raised rents
as a result. If this was success then he would not like to see failure. The
press release went on to cover rat infestations, gardens full of rubbish and
a further house with a rodent problem. All these issues had been raised
by himself previously. The Eastwood Deal had been in place at whatever
cost, the local MP had visited recently and a rodent had run out in front of
her. She commented that you would not get rid of the problem until the
waste was removed. Rodents did migrate and on occasions when
Councillor Cowles had walked at the back of the Town Hall he had seen
rodents as there was waste food all over the place. The problem was



Page 20
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

becoming widespread. The emails he had referred to previously in the
summer highlighting this problem had also been sent to the Cabinet
Member responsible so she could not deny that she was not aware of the
rodent problem. He asked when would the Council tackle the problem
with some urgency.

Councillor Beck confirmed Eastwood did have its challenges, but good
progress was being made. Crime and anti-social behaviour was falling in
Eastwood and standards was rising which could be evidenced. More
people were playing a part in that area of the town. When properties were
first inspected in Eastwood more than 90% did not meet legal
requirements. Now over 94% met the standard expected. The Council
would continue to work to bring about improvements.

(10) Councillor Napper asked what steps was RMBC taking with
regards to complaints against the Customer Service Department?

The Leader did not specifically know what Councillor Napper had in mind.
However, the formal complaints procedure was managed outside of the
Customer Services Department.

This year there had been a total of 36 formal complaints received
regarding Customer Services since 1st April, 2018.

44% (11 out of 25) of complaints for Customer Services were upheld or
partially upheld since 1st April, 2018. Any further specific issues the
Leader was happy to pick those up.

In a supplementary question Councillor Napper referred to a visit to the
Town Hall last week where he was asked by the Chair of the Northern
Housing Panel if any people had complained to him about Customer
Services. He found this quite alarming with the number of complaints that
the problem was not being dealt with.

The Leader reiterated the invitation to pick up these matters after the
meeting.

(11) Councillor Napper asked did RMBC employ a Housing Fraud
Officer?

Councillor Beck confirmed the Council did not employ a specific Housing
Fraud Officer, but the Housing Service did have a number of checks in
place for the detection and prevention of fraud. For example, all Right to
Buy applications were put through a series of checks by officers working
in the Right to Buy and Leasehold Service to ensure fraudulent
applications were not made. When processing applications officers would
include proof of ID and proof of residency and carry out anti money
laundering checks.



Page 21
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

In respect of tenancy fraud officers working in the Housing and Estate
Management Service carried out a rolling programme of tenancy
audits/verification checks by visiting tenants in their home and asking a
series of questions to confirm who was living in the property and the
details of the household corresponded with the tenancy. Such visits and
enquiries helped investigate any allegations of non-occupation or
subletting of Council tenancies.

(12) Councillor Jepson asked what was the future of the Chesterfield
Canal Steering Group given that there have been no meetings held since
April of this year. He had contacted the Assistant Director for Culture,
Sports and Tourism some eight weeks ago on this matter and was still
waiting for a reply.

Councillor Allen confirmed a reply with an explanation and an apology had
been forwarded onto Councillor Jepson. The next meeting of the Steering
Group was scheduled for the 17t January, 2019.

In a supplementary comment Councillor Jepson was hopeful the meeting
would take place as it had been nine months since the last one.

(13) Councillor Carter asked what progress had been made since the
last full Council meeting in regards to ending period poverty in our
secondary schools?

Councillor Watson confirmed all schools and academies have a delegated
budget which included an amount allocated to address health, safety and
welfare issues. As part of this arrangement, secondary schools routinely
held a stock of female sanitary products in first aid/medical rooms and
designated facilities for the use of pupils where needed.

What appeared to be a problem for some pupils was their inability to ask
for help. It was, therefore, proposed that an approach be made to the
secondary heads at their meeting next week where the Deputy Leader
was to speak to them about the principle of having somewhere in school a
stock of products without pupils having to ask.

There was also a national project called the “Red Box Project”, which
placed red boxes in supermarkets in the same way as food banks so that
members of the public could donate products so they could be put into
schools and be readily available. An appointment had been made with
the Chair of the “Red Box Project” to consider such a scheme in
Rotherham to which Councillor Carter would be invited. There was a local
scheme, however, and the details would be shared once contact had
been made.

This was an issue as austerity continued to bite for families on very limited
incomes that would have to make the choice about food, heating or
sanitary protection. This was a serious issue that needed to be taken
forward.



Page 22
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked if the meeting would
consider how the “Red Box Project” could be rolled out in Rotherham with
local businesses and local charities helping out.

Councillor Watson confirmed he would be approaching local business or
local charities to see how they could help with funds to roll out this
programme.

(14) Councillor Carter asked what were the results of the recent
homelessness audit carried out in Rotherham?

Councillor Beck confirmed the Council did not do a homelessness audit,
but did monitor the number of homelessness cases and the number of
rough sleepers through an annual count. This information was returned to
Government as part of a national count return.

The service was currently working with eighteen known rough sleepers
and was writing a new Homelessness Prevention and Rough Sleeper
Strategy that would be published in the spring.

The Council had also seen an increasing demand around homelessness.
It was important to make a distinction of those vulnerable at the point of
being homeless and having no home. This was an increasing issue for
services and the Council took its duties seriously to work with those
people to find a home as soon as possible through Council housing stock
or out in the private/voluntary sector.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter firstly asked about the
annual canvas, what form this took in the borough and how it happened
and secondly, what statutory provision and obligation did the Council
provide to homeless people in finding accommodation.

Councillor Beck confirmed the Council did signpost. Rotherham was
fortunate to have Shiloh, the homelessness charity in Masbrough, who
were there to support people who found themselves homeless. With
them the Council were working hard to help people in those situations.
The Help for Homeless People Card had also been issued and circulated.

In terms of the national audit a day was selected during the year for
Council officers to count the number of rough sleepers found throughout
the borough during the day. This was a growing issue nationally and it
was very important the Council continued do all that it could.

(15) Councillor Jepson withdrew this question and asked that it be
deferred to the Council Meeting in January, 2019.

(16) Councillor Carter asked how many retail units were now vacant that
were occupied in April, 2017 in Rotherham town centre?



Page 23
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

Councillor Lelliott confirmed the town centre had eleven more vacant
properties in April, 2018 than it did in April, 2017. Sixteen of the properties
which were recorded as vacant in April, 2017 had been re-occupied by
April, 2018.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked was the net change
seven fewer retail units or eleven more.

Councillor Lelliott confirmed that in April, 2017 of 378 town centre
properties 94 (24.86%) were vacant.

In April 2018 of 376 town centre properties 105 properties were vacant
(27.9%).

(17) Councillor Jepson referred to all Councillors recently being given
the opportunity to object to the Government’s proposals to allow shale gas
exploration to be classed as permitted development which removed the
decision making on these applications at a local level and asked did the
Leader agree that it was disappointing that only nine chose to do so.

The Leader confirmed he was one of the nine who had signed this as
Leader of the Council, but was aware that not all Members had received
the email in the first place so was unable to comment on their behalf.

The Leader was also aware that the Planning Board had formally written
to Government formally opposing those changes and Scrutiny had looked
at this also so a number of Members had actively taken part in some
discussions opposing those proposals.

In a supplementary question Councillor Jepson welcomed the answer
from the Leader and wondered if not all Members had seen the email.
Perhaps it would be helpful if this could be recirculated to all Members so
that they were aware of changes.

The Leader confirmed this would be done.

(18) Councillor Carter asked did the Cabinet Member not think the
previously mentioned changes to burial times in Rotherham went far
enough in addressing the needs of Rotherham’s communities?

Councillor Hoddinott explained the proposed changes introduced an
additional 3.5 hours of available burial capacity each day which was a
significant increase in overall capacity from the current arrangements.

This was a change that had been long campaigned for and the Cabinet
Member took the opportunity to thank the faith and community groups,
scrutiny, officers and Councillor Alam for their support in getting the
change and making it happen.



Page 24
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter again asked if this change
went far enough for dusk and daytime hours when compared to
neighbours in terms of this being a first class service that Rotherham
deserved.

Councillor Hoddinott noted Councillor Carter referring to dusk and daytime
hours and pointed out that some of the comparators were larger cities
when Rotherham needed to be compared with towns.  The position
would now be monitored as this was a pilot from 1st April, 2019. The
three and a half hours a day extra was a significant increase in the service
and she was pleased that this change had been achieved.

(19) Councillor Carter asked when did the Cabinet Member intend to
make a formal announcement on the proposed changes to burial times?

Councillor Hoddinott confirmed the formal announcement date was yet to
be agreed, but this would be well in advance of the trial which was
planned for April, 2019.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked how did the Cabinet
Member propose this announcement would take place.

Councillor Hoddinott explained there would be a series of briefings and
public announcements along with discussions with community and faith
groups. In getting this change there would also need to be a sequence of
events that would require discussions with Registrars, the Coroner and
Funeral Directors about how the opening hours would affect their
business and services.

(20) Councillor Jepson asked when would the results of the ‘Waste Bin
Review’ of 2017 be implemented and the promised new bins installed
borough wide. He had contacted Streetpride on 20th March this year to
report a badly damaged bin at North Anston, this had still not been
replaced and asked if there was a reason why.

Councillor Allen confirmed that there was a backlog of litter bin requests.
The Council had undertaken a procurement exercise to implement the
replacement programme. The programme had now begun, but a decision
was made to replace the old open-topped concrete bins as a priority,
given the impact of these on the local environment, especially during
windy weather. The service was now starting to work through the
programme, and it was expected the damaged litter bin at North Anston
would be replaced early January.

As part of the capital budget this year, the Council were investing £56,000
in renewing and replacing litter bins.

An eight week trial was shortly to be embarked upon for solar powered
compaction bins and on conclusion the results would be fed back into the
Streetpride Working Group for a discussion.



Page 25
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

In a supplementary question Councillor Jepson asked if he could have a
copy of the programme of replacement bins for when these were likely to
be rolled out around the borough on a ward by ward basis if possible.

Councillor Allen would discuss with officers if this was possible to supply.

(21) Councillor Carter asked could RMBC guarantee that current
safeguarded land in the local plan would not be developed on during this
plan period?

Councillor Lelliott confirmed it would be safeguarded.

(22) Councillor Jepson referred to the Council deciding to set a two year
budget up to 2020/21 and asked did the Leader agree that this would
place financial restrictions and influence any future decisions that needed
to be made by the new administration that would take over following the
next elections in May, 2020.

The Leader explained that by law, the Council had to determine its budget
requirement by 11th March each year and set a balanced budget to apply
for the following financial year 1st April to 31st March. The responsibility to
do this fell to the Elected Members of Council in place at that time and
provided some certainty in the plans moving forward.

(23) Councillor Carter asked how much Council owned land had RMBC
sold to housing developers in the past five years?

Councillor Lelliott confirmed that 27.12 acres (10.97 hectares) of Council
owned land had to been sold to Housing Developers since December,
2013.

(24) Councillor Carter asked did RMBC intend to take on some of its
neighbouring local authorities' housebuilding requirements beyond its own
requirement under the "duty to cooperate" in this local plan period?

Councillor Lelliott confirmed the Council did not.

(25) Councillor Carter asked what was the process and policy for
contacting the Council and subsequent end of tenancy when a relative
died who lived in a Council house?

Councillor Beck confirmed that when a Council tenant passed away, the
Next of Kin would notify the Council. This could be done in person at one
of the customer service centres, over the phone through our Corporate
Contact Centre or in writing.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked what happened with
that information, was it disseminated to other Council departments and
how long were the family given to vacate the property.



Page 26
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

Councillor Beck confirmed the information was disseminated to other
services and usually it was around two weeks that the family were given
to vacate the property.

(26) Councillor Carter asked how did RMBC deal with meeting dietary
requirements of school children with medically diagnosed intolerances or
allergies at school?

Councillor Watson explained the school meals service had a rigid process
for dietary requirements. A meal would be supplied to meet the needs of
the pupil providing they had been diagnosed by a doctor/dietician. Written
medical evidence was required prior to provision of any school meal. The
service would be notified of any pupil dietary requirements by the school
the pupil attended. The service did not have direct access to any pupil
personal information.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked given that process
what procurement took place to ensure that school children, in terms of
free school lunches, were given a suitable equivalent meal and what was
the process when something went wrong or a mistake was made with
food given to a child that was not appropriate to their allergy or
intolerance.

Councillor Watson explained that one of the problems was if a child was
not at a larger school where there were choices each day. However, if
you were that one child that had a specific dietary requirement it would be
unreasonable to cook different choices each day. It did limit the element
of choice and Councillor Watson could not see a cost effective way
around this.

In terms of mistakes with diets Councillor Watson had no knowledge of
any such situation, but if Councillor Carter was aware of any specific case
then he asked if he could share the information with him after the meeting.

(27) Councillor Carter asked how would the long overdue introduction of
kerbside plastic recycling be communicated to residents?

Councillor Hoddinott explained a seminar was held to inform Elected
Members of the process by which the changes to recycling would be
implemented and communicated to residents and this took place on the
2nd October, 2018. This was well attended.

The Communications Plan was also discussed by the Improving Places
Select Commission and how the detail would be communicated to
residents

Changes to collections would be communicated in writing to all
households, supplemented by bin tags and stickers at the appropriate
time. Information would also be made available online, including a video.



Page 27
COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

Another seminar was taking place on 8th January, 2019, to further inform
Elected Members about how the services would be introduced and
communicated to residents. Councillor Carter had been invited to attend.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked for the date when
the changes would be communicated and when would the recycling take
place.

Councillor Hoddinott confirmed all this detail would be reported at the
seminar. The recycling changes would be rolled out in four phases
across the borough in stages so people would get to know at the relevant
time. This would take around three months weather permitting.

(28) Councillor Carter referred to the Government announcing last
month a top up of the Transforming Cities Fund to £2.4 billion and asked
how much have each of the six Combined Mayoral Authorities been
guaranteed in funding from this?

The Leader confirmed the 2018 Budget said that the Government was
extending the Transforming Cities Fund by a year to 2022/23 and that this
would provide an extra £240 million to the six (sic) metro mayors for
significant transport investment in their areas: £21 million for
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough, £69.5 million for Greater Manchester,
£38.5 million for Liverpool City Region, £23 million for West of England,
£71.5 million for the West Midlands, and £16.5 million for Tees Valley.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked would the Leader
agree that not getting the devolution deal for South Yorkshire means that
it was now missing out on a significant amount of money.

The Leader confirmed he did agree South Yorkshire was missing out.

(29) Councillor Carter asked since the last Council meeting on
31st October, what contact had the Leader had with the other three South
Yorkshire Council Leaders in securing their agreement to progress the
Sheffield City Region devolution deal?

The Leader confirmed he was in contact with the other three South
Yorkshire Council Leaders and Dan Jarvis, the Elected Mayor, and would
continue to drive this issue.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked if the Council was
any nearer in reaching agreement on this as it would seem to him that the
Sheffield City Region Mayor had been in post more than six months and
no progress had been made.

The Leader confirmed the Sheffield City Region Mayor had been in post
for six months, but prior to that the Leader himself had been the chair so
perhaps more than anyone the Leader felt the pain on this issue.



Page 28

COUNCIL MEETING - 05/12/18

121.

The Mayor had said publically that he had met with the Secretary of State
in the last few days and he would continue to push with the Government
to deliver on a manifesto commitment that we should sign up on the 2015
deal first and then try to use this for the authorities that wished to move to
a one Yorkshire proposal. It would be premature for the Leader to
speculate on any discussions, but the Mayor had the Leader’s full support
on taking this forward.

(30) Councillor Carter asked when would the proposed new pedestrian
crossing in Anston by the A57 crossroads be built?

Councillor Hoddinott explained there was no confirmed start date for the
works. There had been objections to the Traffic Regulation Order
required to enable the scheme to progress. The Cabinet Member along
with Ward Councillors were keen to progress this crossing in this area and
she looked forward to supporting them in this.

In a supplementary question Councillor Carter asked if this crossing was
now at risk of not going ahead, where would the money from the Sheffield
City Region be spent instead.

Councillor Hoddinott explained every effort would be made to resolve this.
The Traffic Regulation Order was being processed and officers were
looking to get a resolution to this by the end of January, 2019.

URGENT ITEMS

There were none.

The Mayor, however, drew attention to the Memory Tree in the Town Hall
reception and invited Members of the Council to leave a message and

make a donation to the Mayor’s Charity.

He formally closed the meeting by wishing everyone a Merry Christmas
and a Happy New Year.



Page 29

Councillor Chris Read - Leader of the Council
Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

S60 1AE

Tel: (01709) 822700

E-mail: chris.read@rotherham.gov.uk

Email the Council for free @ your local library!

Our Ref:
CQ2/05122018

Dear T

Further to the question that you were going to ask at the full council meeting but were
unfortunately unable to attend, please find below a written response.

“As increasing numbers of perpetrators of CSE are charged and then convicted,
increasing numbers of families are being devastated. What is the Council doing to support
these families and in particular those children (mainly from our Muslim community) who
are completely innocent of their father’s crimes?”

The issue had been raised to the Council through working groups of the Safeguarding
Children’s Board, the Safer Rotherham Partnership and directly by the group Mothers for
Justice, who the Council continues to work with.

A range of issues such as social work practice, support available through early help, GP’s
and mental health services through to arrest tactics and hate crime are reviewed on a
multi-agency basis dependant on the needs of individual families and actioned as a part
of this work.

We are committed to continuing this work to provide the best outcomes for all children
across the borough.

Yours sincerely

& K aas

rl
i
L

—

Councillor Chris Read
Leader, Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council



Page 30

Councillor Chris Read - Leader of the Council
Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

S60 1AE

Tel: (01709) 822700

E-mail: chris.read@rotherham.gov.uk

Email the Council for free @ your local library!

Our Ref:
CQ3/05122018

Dear Mr Smith

Further to the question that you were going to ask at the full council meeting but were
unfortunately unable to attend, please find below a written response.

“Who gave the legal advice to the social worker who visited a convicted multi child rapist
to advise him to go to court to apply for access to the child he sired by rape?”

As you are aware, the Council cannot comment on individual situations as Family Court
matters are confidential and are heard in private.

When the Council issues care proceedings to safeguard a child, it is required by law to
give notice of those proceedings to any person holding parental responsibility for that child
and /or any person the council believes is a parent of any child who is a subject of those
proceedings.

Parents with parental responsibility receive a full set of court papers and parents without
parental responsibility are notified of the date of the court proceedings.
Both parents are entitled to seek free legal advice to support them in family court matters.

A parent with parental responsibility by law will automatically become a party to care

proceedings. It is for the Court — not social workers — to decide whether a parent without
parental responsibility should become a party to the proceedings.

Yours sincerely

e Kaasd"

e

Councillor Chris Read
Leader, Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council



Page 31 Agenda Item 10

THE CABINET - 19/11/18

THE CABINET
19th November, 2018

Present:- Councillor Read (in the Chair); Councillors Alam, Allen, Beck, Hoddinott,
Lelliott, Roche and Watson.

Also in attendance Councillor Steele (Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board).

48. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest to report.
49. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

(1) A member of the public referred to the two year budget proposals for
the financial year 2021 when the number of Councillors was set to reduce
by four. This meant a potential saving of £42,000 which was not listed or
could not be seen in the consultation proposals and he asked was this
because after the next local elections it was the intention to secretly and
quietly confirm an increase of 6.7% in the many Councillors’
basic allowance?

The Leader, supported by the Strategic Director of Finance, confirmed
that a reduction would be built into the Medium Term Financial Strategy
so where costs naturally fell out these would be included. There was no
secret plan for increasing Members' allowances.

In a supplementary question the member of the public referred to the
difference in special responsibilities where Rotherham’s were far higher
than in Sheffield by around £100,000. This in itself was far more than
twenty of the separate items on the list of budget proposals. He asked
was this more important to maintain than say the budgets for
Healthwatch, libraries or the Sight and Sound budget?

The Leader explained the allowances paid to Members were set by an
Independent Remuneration Panel. This was looked at three years ago
when the Panel were challenged with reducing the allowances. A
substantial amount of money was taken out at that time as part of the
challenge. This was about making sure Rotherham was in line with other
South Yorkshire authorities. Whilst attention was drawn to Sheffield the
figures were comparable with Barnsley and Doncaster and slightly lower.

Members had to receive some remuneration for the work that they did and
whilst the Independent Remuneration Panel determined what Rotherham
should receive, Sheffield in turn would determine their own. Whatever
was decided in Rotherham paying politicians was always unpopular.



Page 32

THE CABINET -19/11/18

50.

(2) A member of the public made reference to the development of York
Road (Iltem 14 on the agenda) where he had a couple of garages. He
explained about the difficulty he experienced on returning home in the
early hours from work and being unable to park his vehicle. He, therefore,
asked if there would be any parking provision for the two or three
residents who actually used their garages each day and the restrictions
created by the parking permits in that area.

Councillor Lelliott, Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy,
explained consideration would be given as part of the development brief.
It was noted the garage sites were currently on the short term let only due
to the proposed development in that area.

In a supplementary question the member of the public asked if
consideration could be given to parking bays during the building work
stages.

Councillor Lelliott, Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy,
confirmed this would be given consideration to see what space was
available at the start of the process and what conditions could be included
to put something in place.

(3) Councillor Cooksey, in her capacity as a Ward Councillor
for Rotherham East, sometimes attended a Neighbourhood Watch Group
which met at St. Steven’s in Eastwood. Concern had been expressed
about the high number of privately rented accommodation in Eastwood
which, in some cases, had incidents of anti-social behaviour. This had
caused problems for the well-established occupants in that area and it
was requested that, as part of the development, there be a mixed tenure
accommodation and it was asked what kind of guarantees were available
for buyers to adhere to this aspiration.

Councillor Lelliott, Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy,
confirmed that consideration would be given to the wider area and the
development brief. There would be conditions attached for whichever
developer came forward, but controlled wherever possible.

The Leader pointed out that the Council would have some control over the
development rather than just selling the land off. However, the Council
could not guarantee who would purchase the properties, but it would do
everything in its power to maintain as much control as possible.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
Resolved:- That the minutes of the Cabinet and Commissioners’

Decision Making Meeting held on 22" October, 2018, be agreed as a true
and correct record of the proceedings.



51.

52.

Page 33
THE CABINET - 19/11/18

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the agenda items 13,
14 and 15 on the grounds that the appendices involve the likely disclosure
of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12(A) of such Act indicated, as now amended by the Local Government
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006.

CHILD AND ADOLESCENT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES (CAMHS)
SECTION 75 AGREEMENT (EXTENSION)

Further to Minute No. 52 of the meeting of the Cabinet and
Commissioners held on 16™" October, 2017, consideration was given to
the Section 75 Agreement which had been approved between the
Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group (RCCG) and Rotherham
Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC).

The Section 75 Agreement replaced an existing Partnership Agreement
for the commissioning arrangements between RMBC and the RCCG for
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) in Rotherham.
The Section 75 Agreement strengthened the shared commitment of the
two organisations to deliver service improvement and transformation of
CAMHS through a joint market approach. Rotherham Clinical
Commissioning Group remained supportive of this arrangement.

The Section 75 Agreement built upon the existing partnership by adding a
robust framework for managing the service; it set out performance
management arrangements and formalised a pooled funding arrangement
for the provision of CAMHS services over the medium term.

The Agreement, which was established following approval by Cabinet and
Commissioners, had been hosted by the RCCG who has acted as the
lead commissioner for the pooled fund in partnership with RMBC. It was
established to last until 315t October, 2018 unless both parties agreed to
an extension of one or two years. The period since 1t November had
been covered through a suspension in financial regulations, agreed by the
Deputy Section 151 Officer, to ensure that there was no gap in service
provision for vulnerable children and young people.

It was noted that the CAMHS Service in Rotherham provided by RDaSH
was enhanced and complimented by the Looked After and Adopted
Children’s Therapeutic Team (LAACTT) which was an in-house service
provided by the Council. The Therapeutic Team provided a therapeutic
service to looked after adopted children in accordance with the Adoption
Support Services (Local Authorities) Regulations 2005 and the adoption
national minimum standards 2011.



Page 34

THE CABINET -19/11/18

53.

The aim of the Therapeutic Team was to provide a dedicated specialist
therapeutic service to Looked After and Adopted Children, certain children
who have been in care, including those in special guardianship order
placements, and care leavers.

Resolved:- (1) That the renewal of the existing Section 75 Agreement
for joint commissioning and a pooled fund for the provision of Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) for a further two years (to
318t October, 2020) as provided for in the Agreement be approved.

(2) That the authority be delegated to the Strategic Director for Children
and Young People’s Services to sign a written agreement to extend the
Section 75 Agreement on behalf of the Council.

(3) That the Council’s financial contribution into the pooled fund from the
2018/19 and 2019/20 budgets be approved.

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT

Consideration was given to the report which presented an overview of the
provisional un-validated educational outcomes of children and young
people in primary, special, secondary schools and academies in
Rotherham for the academic year ending in the summer of 2018. National
averages in the primary phase were sourced from the National
Consortium of Examination Results (NCER) software. The Department for
Education (DfE) would publish provisional national averages for all
phases later in the Autumn Term 2018. Final validated data for all phases
would not be available until February, 2019.

Performance in the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP) for a
‘Good Level of Development’ (GLD) had continued to rise and was, again,
above the national average (by 1.4% in 2018).

In Key Stage 1, 65% of pupils met the expected standard in reading,
writing and mathematics combined in 2018, compared to 64% in 2017.
Rotherham had improved by 1% and was in line with the national average
at 65.4%. In the greater depth standard for reading, writing and
mathematics combined at KS1, Rotherham had improved by 0.5% to
12.7%:; this was 1% above the national average at 11.7%.

In Key Stage 2, 61.5% of pupils met the expected standard in in reading,
writing and mathematics combined in 2018, compared to 60.8% in 2017.
Rotherham had improved by 0.7% and was 2.5% below the national
average. In the higher standard for reading, writing and mathematics
combined at KS2, Rotherham improved by 1.1% to 8.2%; this is 1.7%
below the national average at 9.9%.



54.

Page 35
THE CABINET - 19/11/18

In 2018, the average KS1- KS2 progress score for Rotherham LA in
reading is -0.6 (sig-), in writing was +0.7 (sig+) and in maths is + 0.0.
The progress measure in reading was identified as significantly below the
national average; the progress in writing was identified as significantly
above the national average.

At Key Stage 4, the average Attainment 8 score per pupil had decreased
by 1.7 points to 43.3 in 2018. The national average increased by 0.1
points to 46.5 (state-funded i.e. LA maintained schools, academies and
free schools) and decreased by 0.3 points to 44.3 (all schools including
the independent sector). The LA average is 3.2 points below the national
average (state-funded schools) and 1.0 point below the national average
(all schools).

At KS4, the percentage of pupils achieving grade 5 or above in English
and maths was 37%; 6.2% below the national average (state-funded
schools) and 2.9% below the national average (all schools).

At Key Stage 5, Rotherham LA overall A* to E pass rate had increased by
0.2% to 99.1% in 2018. Provisional national averages published on the
BBC news website showed that the overall A* to E pass rate had
marginally fallen to 97.6%. Rotherham LA average was 1.5% above the
national average.

Moving forward with schools and academies it was planned to build a
more cohesive approach to school improvement through the
establishment of the Rotherham Education Strategic Partnership (RESP)
with the primary aim of establishing this board to help lead educational
strategy across the Council.

In response to queries about the progress between boys and girls it was
noted that there continued to be a gap in achievement between girls and
boys, but this reflected the national picture. The gap in Rotherham had
increased slightly from 13.0% in 2017 to 13.4% in 2018. This was just
below the 2018 national gender gap of 13.5%.

Resolved:- That the report be received and the latest provisional un-
validated education outcomes in Rotherham in 2018 noted.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE FOSTERING PANEL
Consideration was given to the report which sought approval to appoint a
new Member to serve on the Fostering Panel to fill the vacancy created

after Councillor Cusworth stepped down from serving on that body.

Resolved:- (1) That Councillor Bob Bird be appointed to serve on the
Fostering Panel for the remainder of the municipal year.

(2) That the Cabinet’s thanks and appreciation for the hard work
undertaken be forwarded onto Councillor Cusworth.



Page 36

THE CABINET -19/11/18

55.

56.

THRIVING NEIGHBOURHOODS - THE ROTHERHAM
NEIGHBOURHOOD STRATEGY 2018-2025

Consideration was given to the report which presented for approval
the new Thriving Neighbourhoods Strategy 2018-2025, which set out
a fresh approach to working with residents and partners across the
Borough.

The Council’s vision was for every neighbourhood to be a thriving
neighbourhood where people have a good quality of life. Central to
this was the role of Elected Members providing a leadership and
engagement role in each Ward.

The Strategy was framed around three key outcomes which described
what the Council would like to see in each Ward across Rotherham:-

o Neighbourhoods were safe and welcoming with good community
spirit.

o Residents were happy and healthy and love where they lived.

o Residents used their skills and assets to contribute to the outcomes
that mattered to them.

The Strategy signalled a new way of working for the Council both for
Members and for staff. The Strategy covered every Ward in the Borough
and would be delivered through ward plans developed with residents to
address local issues and opportunities. Ward Members would be
supported by the neighbourhood team and would work with officers and
residents from a range of organisations.

Members would be asked to report to Council on an annual basis with an
update on progress in each Ward in a logical format for the public.

Resolved:- (1) That the Thriving Neighbourhoods Strategy 2018-2025
be approved.

(2) That Members in each Ward provide a report to Council on an annual
basis covering developments in their Ward.

SEPTEMBER 2018/19 FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT

Consideration was given to the latest report which set out the financial
position as at the end of September, 2018 and was based on actual costs
and income for the first half of the financial year with forecasts for the
remaining six months of 2018/19. Financial performance was a key
element within the assessment of the Council’s overall performance
framework, and essential for the achievement of the objectives within the
Council’s Policy Agenda.



57.

Page 37
THE CABINET - 19/11/18

As at September 2018, the Council needed to identify a further £3.1m of
cost reduction actions by financial year-end in order to achieve a
balanced financial outturn, after taking account of the £10m budget
contingency approved within the 2018/19 budget.

The overspending against budget in Children’s and Young People’s
Services Directorate was continuing in the current financial year as a
result of demand for services outstripping budget capacity. The number of
children in care continued to increase this financial year and had reached
655 at the time of writing this report. The forecast overspend on Children’s
Services had now increased to £15.7m

Mitigating savings and actions identified to date were set out in Table 1
and described within the report.

The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board confirmed
this report had been considered at the meeting of the Board on 14t
November, 2018 who were fully supportive of the recommendations.
Further work would continue to monitor progress of the overspends in
Children and Young People’s Services.

Cabinet Members noted the current position and the budget pressures
facing the Council and the work taking place to meet the continuing
demand.

Resolved:- (1) That the forecast General Fund outturn position be
noted.

(2) That further actions identified to reduce the forecast level of
expenditure be reported back to Cabinet.

(3) That the updated position of the Capital Programme be noted.

BUSINESS RATES DISCRETIONARY RELIEF APPLICATIONS FOR
NOVACITY LTD. AND HARTHILL WITH WOODALL COMMUNITY
ASSOCIATION

Consideration was given to the report detailing the two applications made
by the following companies for the award of a business rate discretionary
relief in accordance with the Council’s Discretionary Business Rates
Relief Policy (approved 12t December 2016):-

o Novacity Ltd.
o Harthill with Woodall Community Association.

Resolved:- (1) That 100% discretionary relief be awarded to Novacity
Ltd, Summit 1, Mangham Road, Greasbrough, Rotherham, S61 4RJ for
the period 15t April, 2018 to 31st March, 2019.



Page 38

THE CABINET -19/11/18

58.

59.

(2) That 20% top up relief be awarded to Harthill with Woodall Community
Association, Sports Centre, Woodall Lane, Harthill, Sheffield, S26 7YQ for
the period 15t April, 2018 to 31st March, 2019.

TUC GREAT JOBS AGENDA

Further to Minute No. 85 of the Council Meeting held on 31st October,
2018, consideration was given to the report which detailed the approved
Council Motion on the Trade Union Congress (TUC)s Great Jobs
Agenda.

This report provided more information about the Great Jobs Agenda and
the actions that the TUC would like employers and Government to take to
ensure that every worker had a great job with fair pay, regular hours and
the opportunity to progress.

Resolved:- (1) That the TUC’'s Great Jobs Agenda be noted and
consideration be given to how the principles set out in the Great Jobs
Agenda applied to the Council’s workforce.

(2) That consultation take place with Trade Unions to seek agreement on
notice for allocating/changing shifts.

(3) That more detailed information on agency workers be published in
annual reports.

STRATEGIC ACQUISITION OF SIX BUNGALOWS AT PENNY PIECE
LANE, NORTH ANSTON

Consideration was given to the report which sought approval to purchase
six, two bedroom bungalows at Penny Piece Lane, North Anston, from
Duchy Homes. These bungalows were Section 106 planning gain units
and would be purchased by the Council at approximately 60% of the open
market value. The forecast completion date of these units was
December, 2019.

There was evidenced demand for bungalows in this location and
resources were available in the strategic acquisitions budget to purchase
them as part of an ongoing programme of acquisitions of new Council
homes to replace properties sold under the Right to Buy and to maintain
stock levels.

Resolved:- That the purchase of six bungalows at Penny Piece Lane
from Duchy Homes using the Housing Revenue Account Strategic
Acquisitions budget be approved.



60.

61.

Page 39
THE CABINET - 19/11/18

YORK ROAD REDEVELOPMENT - DEVELOPMENT BRIEF,
APPOINTMENT OF DEVELOPER AND DISPOSAL

Consideration was given to a report which provided an update on
progress following the market testing of a redevelopment opportunity for a
site on York Road and requested approval and delegated authority
required to progress this project in order to bring the site forward for
development.

Ward Members have been consulted on the submissions received and
further consultation would be undertaken in respect of the submitted
detailed proposals for them to report back to MKembers of their local
communities. Every effort would be taken to mitigate any local concerns
where possible.

Resolved:- (1) That the aims and objectives for the redevelopment of
York Road as set out at paragraph 2.6 of this report be approved.

(2) That an open tender procurement process be conducted in
accordance with Rotherham Council’'s Contract Procedural Rules and
Domestic and European Procurement Law.

(3) That the disposal of the York Road site as part of the successful
Development Brief be approved.

(4) That authority be delegated for the appointment of the successful
development partner and the final terms of the disposal and/or
development agreement (in respect of the Development Brief) to the
Assistant Director of Planning Regeneration and Transport in consultation
with the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services and the
Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy.

(5) That the Assistant Director of Legal Services be authorised to
negotiate and complete the necessary legal agreements.

DISPOSAL OF THE FORMER ST ANN'S BUILDING, ST LEONARD'S
ROAD, ROTHERHAM

Consideration was given to report which sought approval to dispose of the
former St Ann’s Building on St Leonard’s Road, Rotherham.

The property was advertised through traditional marketing channels for all
disposal options to establish the best future use of the property, with a
total of three proposals received. These proposals were considered by the
Asset Management Board who recommended that the property be
disposed as set out by way of private treaty as detailed in the report.

Cabinet Members noted the poor state and dilapidated state of the
building and considered disposal to be the best option.



Page 40

THE CABINET -19/11/18

62.

Resolved:- (1) That the disposal of the former St Ann’s Building, as
shown edged in red at Appendix 1 by private treaty to the recommended
purchaser as detailed at paragraph 2.7 3 of the exempt Finance
Addendum Appendix 2, be approved.

(2) That, in the event of the disposal not being completed (e.g. if the
purchaser withdraws or time elapses), the site be disposed of on the open
market, as set out in Option 2.

(3) That the Acting Assistant Director of Planning, Regeneration and
Transport be authorised to negotiate and agree the terms and conditions
of the proposed disposal, with the Assistant Director of Legal Services
negotiating and completing the necessary legal documentation.

CONSULTATION ON THE ADOPTION OF SCHEDULE 3 OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982
AND A ROTHERHAM SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENSING POLICY.

Consideration was given to the report which outlined a proposal to consult
on the adoption of Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982 that, following amendment through the Policing and
Crime Act 2009, classified the following establishments as sex
entertainment venues:-

o Lap, pole and table dancing;
. Strip shows;
o Peep shows and live sex shows.

This report, therefore, sought a recommendation to Council to approve
the commencement of public consultation on the adoption of the
Schedule, which would give local communities a greater say about the
presence of sex establishments, including sex entertainment venues, sex
shops and sex cinemas. This would allow the local authority to more
effectively regulate such premises through a formal Sex Establishment
Licensing Policy.

The report, therefore, also sought Cabinet approval to begin public
consultation on a proposed Sex Establishments Licensing Policy to run
parallel to consultation on the adoption of Schedule 3.

This report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board as part of the pre-scrutiny process who were in
support of the recommendations, but confirmed they were supportive of a
wide ranging consultation and that engagement with industry workers take
place on a safe and anonymous basis during the consultation period.



63.

Page 41
THE CABINET - 19/11/18

Cabinet Members welcomed the recommendations from the Overview
and Scrutiny Management Board and the proposals to have in place a
Sex Establishment Licensing Policy on conclusion of public consultation
on the proposed adoption.

Resolved:- (1) That the proposal to adopt Schedule 3 to the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) be
considered, and that Council be recommended to approve the
commencement of public consultation in relation to the proposed
adoption.

(2) That public consultation be approved, in line with Option 2(b) (Section
4), on a proposed Sex Establishment Licensing Policy, to run parallel to
consultation on the adoption of Schedule 3 above.

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
MANAGEMENT BOARD

Consideration was given to the circulated report, the contents of which
were included as part of the relevant item and the details included
accordingly.



Page 42
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

THE CABINET
Monday, 17th December, 2018

Present:- Councillor Read (in the Chair); Councillors Alam, Allen, Beck, Hoddinott,
Lelliott, Roche, and Watson.

Also in attendance Councillor Steele (Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board)

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Read declared a personal interest in Minute No. 78 (Swinton
Town Centre Redevelopment) on the grounds of the close proximity of a
close family member to the scheme and did not participate in the vote.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
There were no questions from members of the public.

Councillor Sansome commented on the report as part of Minute No. 78
(Swinton Town Centre Redevelopment) and welcomed the involvement of
Ward Members in taking the proposals forward.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Resolved:- That the minutes of the Cabinet and Commissioners’
Decision Making Meeting held on 19" November, 2018, be agreed as a
true and correct record of the proceedings.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the agenda items 15,
16, 17 and 20 on the grounds that the appendices involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12(A) of such Act indicated, as now amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006.

ADULT SERVICES NON-RESIDENTIAL CARE CHARGING POLICY
REVIEW

Consideration was given to report which detailed how the Care Act 2014
focused on improving people’s independence and wellbeing. It made clear
that it was the duty of the Council to provide or arrange services that
helped prevent or delay people developing needs for care and support.
The Council must maintain a service for providing advice and information
relating to care and support and the Act stated that Councils may make a
charge for meeting needs, covering the cost that was incurred by the



Page 43

THE CABINET -17/12/18 2

69.

Local Authority in meeting the needs to which the charge applies. In order
to do this, a financial assessment was required to determine an
individual’s contribution to their care cost.

The report, therefore, set out the options available to the Council for non-
residential care charges, including options for the financial assessment.
An initial review had been undertaken on the non-residential adult care
charging policy and had identified key areas for proposed change. The
report detailed the Council’s current policy which had been benchmarked
against other Authorities in the region, and outlined a number of proposed
changes for consultation in five key areas:-

Minimum/maximum charge.

Additional carers.

Charge from start of service.

Review of Disability Related Expenditure (DRE).
Attendance Allowance/Disability Living Allowance/Personal
Independence Payments.

Resolved:- That public consultation be commenced with service users
and carers so as to inform the changes to the current policy and to
provide opportunity for the public to provide feedback on the following
proposals:-

(@) The removal of the maximum charge for non-residential care, while
maintaining the minimum charge of £1.

(b) The introduction of charges where additional carers are provided.

(c) Amend the policy so that service users are charged from the start of
their service provision, instead of from when they are informed of
their financial contribution following their financial assessment.

(d) To include the full value of high rate Attendance Allowance and
Disability Living Allowance, and the enhanced daily living component
of Personal Independence Payments, when carrying out non-
residential financial assessments for all services not just services
provided at night.

(e) To consult on a standard list or rate of Disability Related Expenditure
(DRE) to be allowed in the financial assessment.

HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT - CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
PATHWAY TENDER

Consideration was given to the report which provided an update on the
changing needs of young people accessing housing related support
services. It outlined recommendations for the future commissioning of the
Housing Related Support Service for young people aged 16 - 25.



Page 44
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

The main purpose of the supported housing service was to provide short
term safe accommodation and assist vulnerable young people to gain the
skills needed to obtain and/or maintain a secure accommodation and
supported young people’s transitions from supported housing into their
own tenancy as well as offering intervention where there was an
increased risk of homelessness.

The contracts were awarded in October, 2017 and formed part of the
Young People Pathway. The contract period was awarded for one year
from 1st October, 2017 to 30th September, 2018, with an option of a one
year extension subject to a contract review. The Council have taken
advantage of the built in contract extension for a period of nine months to
allow for the re-procurement for the service.

Several cost benefits linked to this service in terms of health, education,
future issues which in turn would assist with saving money.

The report set out in detail:-

o An overview of the current commissioned services and key issues.

o The national and local context of young people’s changing needs,
due to young people presenting with more complex issues.

o An overview on the revision of the existing services and the progress
to co-produce a future model that will meet the needs of all young
people.

o Outlined how Adult Care and Children were jointly developing clear
pathways which may differ depending on the needs of the individual
and the statutory requirements for Children and Young People’s
Services.

Cabinet Members sought clarity on the timeline for the tender process
which was set out as part of the report, which would lead to the award of
contact by May, 2019. It was suggested that a further report be submitted
to Cabinet on the conclusion of the procurement process.

Resolved:- (1) That the new service model defined following the
completion of the Co-production work and this will inform the specification
for the new contractual arrangements be noted.

(2) That the tender for the Housing Related Support Service for young
people aged 16-25 following completion of co-production work with
relevant stakeholders to develop the new service be approved.

(3) That a further report be submitted to the Cabinet on the conclusion of
the procurement process.



Page 45

THE CABINET -17/12/18 4

70.

71.

ANNUAL UPDATE ON THE ESTABLISHMENT OF EDUCATION
PROVISION AT WAVERLEY

Consideration was given to the report which detailed how the Waverley
residential and business community development site based in
Rotherham had outline planning consent for up to 3,890 homes, retail
units, community facilities, two primary schools and green infrastructure.

The report, therefore, provided an update in relation to the establishment
of education infrastructure on the Waverley site.

As the full pupil yield from new housing could take several years to be
realised, the current trigger points to release funding to develop the
second Waverley primary school were currently considered to be too early
and would have an adverse effect on Waverley Junior Academy as, if the
second school opened too early, there would potentially be significant
surplus capacity in both schools until the pupil yield increased and
schools were funded based on pupil numbers from schools census.

A longstanding Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
funding agreement stipulated the funding release trigger points and
timescale for the use of the funding to create primary school education
infrastructure. Stipulations have been met for Waverley Junior Academy
and any subsequent deed of variation relating to trigger points for school
number two would need to be determined through the planning process
should it be required to increase the trigger of occupied dwellings for the
second primary school by a further 800 occupied dwellings by the
developers.

Resolved:- That the annual update report be noted.

PROPOSAL TO INCREASE CAPACITY AT ASTON ACADEMY
THROUGH BASIC NEED FUNDING

Consideration was given to the report regarding Aston Academy which
was currently oversubscribed and the trend set to continue in future years
given its popularity.

This report, therefore, sought approval to fund an increase in capacity at
the school to accommodate the current and future demand for places,
subject to a successful planning application.

There were significant additional costs to the building project as there
were four temporary classrooms and a school gymnasium with changing
rooms on site which have a temporary planning consent, as they are
located on Green Belt land. These resources were installed as an interim
solution as the school was to be completely rebuilt under the Building
Schools for the Future (BSF) project. Subsequently, the Department for
Education terminated the BSF project and Aston Academy’s rebuild
project was cancelled. The temporary classrooms and gymnasium would



72.

73.

Page 46
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

have to be replaced and relocated on site as part of the previous planning
conditions. The cost of this work could be met from DfE funds provided to
the Local Authority to meet their statutory obligations to provide sufficient
school places in maintained schools, academies and free schools. Any
other maintenance projects would have to be met by the Academy itself.

Resolved:- That, subject to a successful planning application, the
proposal to allocate £4.5m capital to increase capacity by 150 places at
Aston Academy by the installation of additional classroom space to
accommodate future pupil numbers and to replace temporary classrooms
currently on site be approved.

PROPOSAL TO MAKE PRESCRIBED ALTERATIONS TO THE
WILLOWS SCHOOL

Consideration was given to the report which sought approval to
commence a period of statutory consultation in relation to proposals to
make prescribed alterations to the Willows School in line with the
requirements of the School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013 by increasing the
number of places available by twenty and changing the age range of the
school to nineteen so students could continue their education in a familiar
environment.

This formed part of the report approved by the Cabinet on 19" February,
2018 - Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND), Sufficiency and
Increase in Educational Provision — Phase1 and the proposals to increase
the number of SEND places available in the Borough by an additional 125
places between 2018 and 2021.

Cabinet Members welcomed these proposals in the borough when the
lack of SEND provision was being reported as a concern nationally.

Resolved:- (1) That a period of statutory consultation be approved to
commence by the posting of a public notice in relation to making
prescribed alterations to the Willows School.

(2) That a further report be submitted in due course detailing the outcome
of the consultation and seeking determination.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY UPDATE

Consideration was given to the report which detailed the Council's
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and set out a framework for
understanding the challenges the Council faced and supported corporate
planning. It helped the Council to shape its finances over the medium
term by examining the projected resources available to meet the priorities
as set out in its Council Plan.



Page 47

THE CABINET -17/12/18 6

74.

The Strategy sets out the framework and principles upon which current
and future financial projections, over the medium term, would be
predicated. The MTFS financial projections were revised and updated
alongside the setting of the revenue budget 2018/19 and illustrated
budget gaps of £29.7m over the period 2019/20 and 2020/21. The
financial projections have been reviewed and updated again alongside the
development of a two-year budget for 2019/20 and 2020/21 and were
incorporated into the MTFS. The details of the budget including outcomes
of consultation would be reported to Cabinet and Council in February,
2019 when the Budget and Council Tax Report 2019/20 was considered.

The Strategy document attached to this report represented an interim
update to the Council’'s medium term financial plans, which would be
further updated following completion of budget consultation and the
receipt of further information on the Council’s funding from Government
within the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement for 2018/19.

This report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board as part of the pre-scrutiny process who were in
support of the recommendations, but requested the Strategy be updated
by the Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services to take
account of the funding announcements from Central Government and
addressed the concerns expressed by Members.

Resolved:- (1) That the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy be
approved and that it be noted that the final version of the Strategy would
be submitted to Cabinet and Council in February, 2019.

(2) That the Strategy be updated by the Strategic Director of Finance and
Customer Services to take account of the funding announcements from
Central Government and addressed the concerns expressed by
Members.

CHANGES IN LEGISLATION FOR THE COUNCIL TAX PREMIUM ON
EMPTY PROPERTIES

Consideration was given to the report that detailed how from 2013/14 the
Government introduced changes affecting the way that Council Tax was
charged on certain types of empty property or second homes, by allowing
Local Authorities increased discretion to set the level of charges locally.

One option available to Local Authorities was the introduction of a 50%
Premium for long term empty properties which had been unoccupied and
substantially unfurnished for a period of over two years. The principle of
the introduction of the Premium was to incentivise owners to bring empty
properties back into use.

The Council introduced the Council Tax Premium with effect from 1t April,
2013 with the 50% Premium being charged on the two year anniversary of
a property becoming unoccupied and substantially unfurnished.



75.

Page 48
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

In the November 2017 Budget statement, the Chancellor of the
Exchequer announced that authorities would be given the power to
increase the Council Tax Empty Homes Premium from the current level of
50% to 100% as further encouragement to owners to bring empty
properties back into use.

In January 2018 Cabinet approved the introduction of the 100% Premium,
which was expected to be effective from 1st April, 2019. However it had
subsequently been announced that further changes were to be introduced
to the Premium for the financial years 2020/21 and 2021/22, which would
allow Councils to apply larger premiums to properties unoccupied and
unfurnished for over five and ten years. It was understood that further
guidance regarding implementation of the 2020/21 and 2011/22 changes
may be released by the Government at a later date.

Legislation to introduce the changes to premiums received Royal Assent
in November 2018 and it was expected that guidance in respect of the
changes that could be applied from 2020/21, would be issued thereafter.

Cabinet Members supported these proposals and welcomed any incentive
to bring long standing unoccupied properties back into use.

Resolved:- That it be recommended to Council that subject to the
legislation being introduced an increase in the Empty Property Premium
as follows:-

(@) From 2020/21 a 200% premium for properties unoccupied and
unfurnished for over five years.

(b) From 2021/22 a 300% premium for properties unoccupied and
unfurnished for over ten years.

(c) Any decisions required in relation to the implementation of premiums
following the issue of Government guidance, be delegated to the
Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services, in consultation
with Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Finance.

REVIEW OF POLLING PLACES 2019

Consideration was given to the report which sought approval to
recommend to Council for the commencement of a statutory review of
polling districts and polling places within the borough.

A preliminary review had been undertaken by Council officers to inform
the Returning Officer’s initial proposals which were set out in the
Consultation Paper attached at Appendix 2.



Page 49

THE CABINET -17/12/18 8

76.

Some current polling places would not be available in future, and the
review also took into account the impact of the ward boundaries which
would come into effect at the 2020 elections. Where possible schools had
been removed as polling stations to prevent closures which could impact
on education.

Cabinet Members welcomed the review and sought assurances that the
maps were accurate.

Resolved:- (1) That Council be recommended to:-

a. approve a review of polling places in 2019 following the process
described in this report.

b.  note the scope of the review and the proposals for changes.
c. agree the outline timetable for the review, as set out in Appendix 1.

d. power to designate polling places in accordance with section 18B of
the Representation of the People Act 1983 is continued to be
delegated to the Chief Executive, such power to be exercised only in
circumstances where a decision is required at short notice and it is
not possible to await a decision of Council.

(2) That following the outcome of the consultation on the review, the
Assistant Director of Legal Services report to Cabinet with final review
proposals for determination in order for Cabinet to make final
recommendations to Council.

COUNCIL PLAN Q2 PERFORMANCE REPORT

Consideration was given to the report which set out details of the
Performance Report and Performance Scorecard and an analysis of the
Council’'s current performance against fourteen key delivery outcomes
and seventy measures. This report was based on the currently available
data and also included an overview of progress on key projects and
activities which contributed to the delivery of the Council Plan.

At the end of the second quarter (July to September 2018) 24 measures
had either met or had exceeded the target set in the Council Plan. This
represented 45% of the total number of indicators where data was
available or where targets have been set. This was a slight decline in
performance from the first quarter when 47% of indicators hit their targets.
The Priority area with the highest proportion of targets met was Periority 1
(Every child making the best start in life) where 53% of indicators were
marked on target.



Page 50
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

The direction of travel was positive for 33 (57%) of the indicators
measured in this quarter. This was a significant improvement compared to
the 45% figure for last quarter and suggested that, although there had
been an increase in the number of targets marked as “off track”, overall
performance was improving.

Cabinet Members were invited to highlight progress and performance
related to their portfolio areas.

Councillor Watson, Deputy Leader, reported on the good practice in
children’s social care with repeat protection plans in two years going down
to an all-time low. In addition, the reduction in the number of exclusions
from schools which were fixed term was reducing which highlighted the
good work taking place.

Councillor Beck, Cabinet Member for Housing, reported on the number of
new homes as a result of Council intervention was positive and was
fulfilling the need for housing for groups of vulnerable people. The
selective licensing scheme was also performing above the target with
97% of dwellings now inspected and working through to compliance. This
was a positive picture.

Councillor Allen, Cabinet Member for Cleaner Greener Communities, was
pleased to report on the direction of travel for the number of engagements
with the Council’s culture and leisure staff and the number of visits to
facilities. Around 10,000 more people attended Rotherham Show in 2018
taking the total up to 60,000 attendees.

Street cleaning and grounds maintenance had seen a slight increase in
requests for service, but the actual number of complaints was incredibly
low.

Councillor Lelliott, Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy,
reported on economic activity and how planning remained at 100% at
both major and minor applications. Rotherham was still the fastest
growing economy, but there were still pressures on the town centre.
Rotherham was not unique and development of Forge Island and Markets
would help with this.

Councillor Hoddinott, Cabinet Member for Waste, Roads and Community
Safety, confirmed hate crime outcomes had fallen significantly and in the
right direction with an increase in the outcomes. Staff would continue to
talk to Police on how positive outcomes for victims were achieved. Victim
satisfaction was very high as a result of the investigations going forward.

One area for improvement and performing well was anti-social behaviour.
Officers and the Police were working with repeat victims, which was going
down, and anti-social behaviour perception, which was going up.



Page 51

THE CABINET -17/12/18 10

77.

In terms of enforcement new service with Doncaster was now having a
dramatic effect showing an increase with fixed penalty notices.

Councillor Roche, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health,
reported on the measures for Public Health which saw a reduction in
smoking during pregnancy. Rotherham was one of the few authorities
that tested for CO2.

Work was taking place with the new provider with overall progress being
made in the reduction in the number of successful completions of drug
treatment.

Councillor Alam, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Finance,
reported on the areas performing well relating to non-domestic business
rate collections and council tax collections. 85% of actions from the
Equalities Peer Review had also been implemented. Areas for
improvement included the closing of complaints within timescale and
number of days lost to sickness, which was hovering just above the
target. Work was progressing to address these areas of concern and how
employees could be assisted back to work.

Resolved:- (1) That the overall position and direction of travel in relation
to performance be noted.

(2) That consideration be given to measures which have not progressed
in accordance with the target set and the actions required to improve
performance, including future performance clinics.

(3) That the performance reporting timetable for 2018-2019 be noted.

ROTHERHAM TOWN CENTRE MASTERPLAN - FORGE ISLAND
AGREEMENTS

Consideration was given to the report which within the Masterplan
identified the redevelopment on Forge Island as an essential catalyst to
wider regeneration.

Following an extensive selection process, a development partner had
been identified for the Forge Island development, this report sought
approval for the approach required to deliver this. This included both the
legal and financial aspects outlined in the ‘Agreement for Lease’ and
‘Development Agreement’ documents.

The head lease approach required that the developer raised funding for
the total development costs and built out the scheme in return for the
Council taking a head lease of the completed development over a fixed
term. The Council, as head lessor, would sublet to and collect rents from
operators, which would generate an income stream to fund the head
lease costs. This was the option being proposed.



11

Page 52
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

Under the proposal submitted by Muse, the Council did not take on the
head lease until the various phases of the development were completed
and a sufficient number of sub-tenants have been secured and have
entered in to lease agreements, thereby minimising the financial risk for
the Council.

This report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board as part of the pre-scrutiny process who were in
support of the recommendations, but requested that quality updates be
provided, that the Cabinet Member provide exception reports in the event
of the scheme not progressing to plan, that further assurances be
provided that the insertion of a break clause was not feasible prior to
entering the lease agreement and that a report be provided on the
feasibility of inserting a break clause for future major projects.

The Chair confirmed Cabinet were happy to accept the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Board’s recommendations and assured the Chair
of the Board that the financial arrangements were feasible, but would be
content for further information to be provided in taking break clauses
forward.

Resolved:- (1) That the entering into a development agreement and the
granting of the long lease of the Forge Island development site to the
selected developer, Muse Developments Ltd. be approved.

(2) That the outlined financial approach to deliver the Forge Island
development be approved and the Strategic Director for Regeneration
and Environment be authorised to approve the final proposal in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy;
subject to confirmation by the Strategic Director for Finance and Customer
Services that the final proposal is affordable within the Budget and
Financial Strategy and within the following parameters:

o The initial rents the Council is entitled to receive from occupiers are
greater than the initial head lease rent and

o The financial modelling over the 35 year period shows that the
Council’s anticipated income from the development exceeds the total
anticipated head lease costs.

(3) That the Assistant Director of Legal Services be authorised to agree
the final legal documentation.



Page 53

THE CABINET -17/12/18 12

78.

79.

SWINTON TOWN CENTRE REDEVELOPMENT - DEVELOPMENT
BRIEF, APPOINTMENT OF DEVELOPER AND DISPOSAL

Consideration was given to the report which provided an update on
progress following the market testing of a redevelopment opportunity for
two sites one a vacant Council owned site proposed for residential
development and the other the existing Council buildings in Swinton Town
Centre.

The site was fronted by Council owned retail and residential units and
community facilities, the rear of the site was vacant. The vacant element
was suitable for housing and the development of this land offered the
opportunity to bring forward improvements to the Council owned assets.
This report also requested the approval required to progress this project
through the submission of a Development Brief to the open market.

Resolved:- (1) That aims and objectives for the redevelopment of
Swinton Town Centre as set out at section 2 of this report be approved.

(2) That an OJEU compliant procurement process be approved to be
undertaken in accordance with Rotherham Council’s Contract Procedure
Rules and Domestic and European Procurement Law.

(3) That Option 2 be approved as set out at paragraph 4.2 of the report.
This option foregoes an amount of capital receipt to the Council in order to
achieve regenerative benefits to the Community and the Council in
relation to the redevelopment.

(4) That a further report be submitted following the evaluation of the
tender submissions received, which recommends the endorsement of the
preferred proposal and any approvals required for the disposal of land
and property.

COMMUNITY ENERGY SWITCHING SCHEME

Consideration was given to the report which detailed the proposed
community energy switching scheme which would be open to all
Rotherham residents and would reduce the number of households paying
high tariffs for gas and electricity and reduce fuel poverty. Although the
scheme would be open to all residents it should be particularly beneficial
to hard to reach and vulnerable tenants to assist them to identify and
change to a cheaper tariff. Residents could save around £200 to £300 per
year in an average three bedroom semi-detached house.

Having completed the recommended feasibility study the purpose
approval was sought to carry out an OJEU procurement process to
identify a potential partner to develop a community energy switching
scheme and inform a business case that would be developed based on
the results of the tender.



13

80.

Page 54
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

Cabinet Members offered their full support, particularly where residents
would not transfer onto a variable tariff scheme after twelve months, but
the best deal at the time would be sought and the need for consumers to
keep changing suppliers.

This report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board as part of the pre-scrutiny process who were in
support of the recommendations, but asked that customer support and
service standards were ensured and built into the tender framework and
that the performance of customer support and service standards be
reported on a quarterly basis to the Cabinet Member for Jobs and the
Local Economy.

Resolved:- (1) That the OJEU procurement process be approved to
identify a potential partner to develop a community energy switching
scheme and inform a business case that will be developed, based on the
results of the tender.

(2) That the business case and Tender Evaluation Report be submitted to
Cabinet for approval.

IMMOBILISATION OF VEHICLES - PERSISTENT EVADERS AND
UNTAXED VEHICLES

Consideration was given to the report which sought approval in respect of
the adoption of a policy which facilitated the immobilisation of vehicles.
Approval of the proposals would allow untaxed vehicles and vehicles that
were the subject of multiple unpaid parking penalty charge notices (PCNs)
to be immobilised (clamped). This would prevent them being driven away
prior to removal and achieve a safer working environment for officers and
contractors by preventing dangerous actions of some drivers.

This report had been considered by the Improving Places Select
Commission and reported into Overview and Scrutiny Management Board
as part of the pre-scrutiny process who were in support of the
recommendations, but requested the viability of reducing the number of
offences from six to three be explored, that the introduction of vehicle
immobilisation be widely publicised and that an update report be provided
after the introduction of vehicle immobilisation.

The Chair confirmed the Cabinet were happy to accept Overview and
Scrutiny Management Board’s recommendations, but that the viability of
reducing the number of offences was still being explored.

Resolved:- That the operational implementation of the immobilisation of
untaxed vehicles and vehicles of persistent evaders of Parking PCNs, on
the public highway be approved.



Page 55

THE CABINET -17/12/18 14

81.

82.

LEASE OF GREEN SPACE, SCHOOL LANE, PARKGATE TO
ROTHERHAM UNITED COMMUNITY SPORTS TRUST (RUCST)

Consideration was given to the report which detailed how the recreation
ground at School Lane, Parkgate had been leased to Inzone (Yorkshire)
Community Interest Company since 2014 under the Asset Transfer Policy.
The lessee now wished to surrender their lease and there was a risk that
valuable facilities and infrastructure that they have invested in would be
lost as a consequence.

It was, therefore, proposed that the lease be reassigned to Rotherham
United Community Sports Trust (RUCST) who have confirmed they would
purchase, maintain and provide these facilities for continued community
use. RUCST would need to access grant funding to operate and develop
the site, and such funding was dependent on them having tenure of the
site for twenty-five years without break clauses. Since this was a
deviation from Policy, approval was sought to grant an Asset Transfer
Policy Lease Agreement to RUCST without break options and set out the
special circumstances which related to this.

Cabinet Members were happy to support the recommendations as this
would continue to benefit the community in improving fitness.

Resolved:- (1) That the grant of a new Asset Transfer Policy Lease
Agreement be approved, as detailed in Option 1 of this report on land at
School Lane, Parkgate, as shown edged in blue in the site plan at
Appendix 1.

(2) That the Assistant Director of Planning Regeneration and Transport
negotiate and agree the terms and conditions of the lease.

(3) That the Assistant Director of Culture, Sport and Tourism Service
agree and monitor the service level agreement.

(4) The Assistant Director of Legal Services negotiate and complete the
necessary documentation.

RIVERSIDE HOUSE CAFE

Consideration was given to the report which provided detail on the
implementation proposal to achieve a proposed 2019/20 budget saving by
commissioning an external partner to deliver the Riverside House Café
provision.

Riverside House had now been open for seven years during which time
the café has become an established feature.



15

83.

Page 56
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

Soft market testing of the opportunity as a business venture had
established interest and it was considered that a commissioned partner
could offer a more cost effective solution to opening the café. Existing
staff would be transferred through to the organisation via TUPE.

This report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board as part of the pre-scrutiny process who were in
support of the recommendations, but confirmed that if the tender process
was not successful that future proposals be brought back for review and
that preliminary work be undertaken at the earliest opportunity on
alternative options in the event of the tender process not being
successful.

Resolved:- That the conducting an open tender procedure process in
accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and Domestic
and European Procurement Law, in order to identify a partner to deliver
the Riverside House Café through a lease and profit share tenancy
agreement, be approved.

IMPROVING AIR QUALITY IN ROTHERHAM

Consideration was given to the report which detailed how air quality was
now a major issue of growing interest and significance at a national and
international level.

The National Air Quality Plan, published by Department for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) in July 2017, identified those Local
Authorities with areas that are not compliant with the European Union
(EU) Ambient Air Quality Directive were identified through national air
quality modelling. Twenty-eight Local Authorities were included
(‘mandated’) in the plan, including Rotherham Metropolitan Borough
Council (RMBC) and Sheffield City Council (SCC). RMBC and SCC were
jointly mandated’ on the basis that the Parkway in both Sheffield and
Rotherham was identified as being non-compliant.

This had placed Rotherham and Sheffield under a legal duty to improve
the Borough’s air quality by reducing NO, emissions below the legal limits
in the shortest possible time. The Councils were required to submit a
proposal to Government (an Outline Business Case) to demonstrate how
they would reduce emissions in the shortest possible timescale, by 31st
December, 2018.



Page 57
THE CABINET - 17/12/18 16

A feasibility study has been undertaken to locally assess air quality across
Rotherham and Sheffield, to identify key locations where air quality was
above the EU limits and to identify and assess mitigating actions to
improve air quality at these locations. The findings of the study indicate
that Sheffield would need to introduce a Category C charging zone
(covering non-compliant buses, taxis, HGVs, LGVs), within (but including)
the inner ring-road of the city centre, in order to achieve legal compliance
by 2021. The study concluded, however, that a charging zone was not
required in Rotherham for the Borough to achieve compliance.

The study identifies that measures would need to be taken at four specific
locations across Rotherham to achieve compliance. The proposals in
Rotherham, therefore, focused on changes to speed limits on the
Rotherham section of the Parkway, improvements to the Rotherham bus
fleet and the routing of buses on Rawmarsh Hill and Fitzwilliam Road, and
the restriction of HGVs on Wortley Road.

These options were proposed to be accompanied by a number of
additional measures, which aimed to support businesses to improve their
fleet and improve air quality, such as targeted support to upgrade
vehicles.

The Council would seek Government funding, through the Outline
Business Case, to deliver on these proposals.

Following submission of the Outline Business Case, a wide-ranging
statutory consultation across Rotherham and Sheffield was proposed to
begin in early 2019. The Councils would seek the views of people who
lived and worked across both areas, and the views of Rotherham’s
businesses and residents. This consultation would inform the submission
of a Full Business Case to Government later in 2019.

The Council is therefore required by law to identify mitigating actions to
improve air quality at these sites in the ‘shortest possible timescale’. The
sites were:-

o Sheffield Parkway in RMBC area (A630) (8% reduction in NO2
required).

o Rawmarsh Hill (A633), Rawmarsh (6% reduction in NO2 required).

o Fitzwilliam Road (A630), Eastwood (2% reduction in NO2 required).

o Wortley Road and Upper Wortley Road, Kimberworth and Thorpe
Hesley (A629) (3% reduction in NO2 required).

The M1 remained a major cause of air pollution for Sheffield and
Rotherham, however, responsibility for the M1 fell to Highways England
rather than the Local Authorities. Whilst Highways England have been
involved with the development of Sheffield and Rotherham’s proposals
the Council continued to urge Government to take a more robust,
strategic approach with Highways England, to address emissions from the



17

Page 58
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

motorway network.

This report had been considered by the Improving Places Select
Commission and then referred to Overview and Scrutiny Management
Board as part of the pre-scrutiny process. The Board were in support of
the recommendations, but requested that the fleet of vehicles used by
RMBC be reviewed to ensure that they meet the required regulations,
that, on completion of the consultation, the final business case should
make clear those points which have been included arising from the
consultation, that the Cabinet Member for Waste, Roads and Community
Safety notify the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board when funding
has been received from Government for the initiative, that the Clean Air
Zone be kept on the scrutiny work programme and that the outline
consultation plan be reported to Improving Places Select Commission.

The Chair confirmed Cabinet would do its best to support all the
recommendations as part of the pre-scrutiny process.

Councillor Hoddinott, however, pointed out that there was no regulation
specifically on Council vehicles, but took on board the need to look at air
quality and contributions in terms of vehicles. Equally in terms of
Government funding this had already been received for officer time and
research which would be subject to further funding of the mitigation
measures.

The Chair pointed out that the measures required were all subject to
Government rules and based on a national model. However, the Parkway
did cross over the border into Rotherham which meant the Council were
mandated to take action where it was identified in the report.

This matrix approach of policy measures would be undertaken and it
would show the residents of Rotherham that action was being taken and
the Council’s role in fulfilling the policy without resorting to a congestion
charge arrangement.

Resolved:- (1) That Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council’s
(RMBC’s) commitment to improve air quality in the Borough and to
improve health outcomes for residents be endorsed.

(2) That it be recognised that Rotherham and Sheffield’s air quality
challenge is intrinsically connected and therefore approves the
development of a joint air quality plan and package of interventions with
Sheffield City Council (SCC) to protect and improve the health and
wellbeing of people living, working and visiting our areas.

(3) That the evidence and analysis of the air quality challenge across the
areas and the most challenging locations which breach legal limits for
NO; pollution be supported and noted.



Page 59

THE CABINET -17/12/18 18

84.

(4) That the proposed mitigating measures to bring Rotherham’s air
quality within the legal limit for NO, concentrations in the shortest possible
time be approved.

(5) That authority be delegated to the Strategic Director, Regeneration
and Environment, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Jobs and
the Local Economy and the Cabinet Member for Waste, Roads and
Community Safety, to jointly submit, with Sheffield City Council, the
Rotherham and Sheffield Outline Business Case to Government by 31st
December, 2018.

(6) That a further report on Rotherham’s clean air proposals be
submitted, once Government has assessed the proposals in our Outline
Business Case.

(7) That the launch of a statutory consultation in early 2019 on the
Borough’s proposals to tackle NO, pollution be approved.

FOOD SERVICE INSPECTION PLAN 2018-19 AND INTRODUCTION
OF A PRE-INSPECTION SERVICE OFFER

Consideration was given to the report which detailed how the Food
Standards Agency required all Competent Authorities to have an up-to-
date, documented Food Service Plan, which was readily available to food
business operators and consumers. This plan must be subject to regular
review and clearly state the period of time for which the plan had effect.

The Food Standards Agency undertook a focussed audit of this Authority
in May, 2010 and reported that the framework for the plan was in line with
the Service Planning Guidance in the Framework Agreement. The Food
Service Plan for 2018/19 followed this outline.

Food hygiene ratings were increasingly important to the food industry,
with customers taking an active interest in the hygiene standards of the
premises from which they ate, and accordingly making informed choices.

There was an opportunity to offer a pre-inspection advice service to food
business owners. The service could provide valuable information and
guidance prior to statutory inspections which, if heeded, would enable
businesses to enhance their premises and deliver a higher food hygiene
rating.

The Council therefore proposed to introduce an in-house offer to the food
industry, to provide bespoke advice and guidance and support businesses
to achieve compliance and improved food hygiene ratings. This would
support food business, and deliver improved food hygiene outcomes for
Rotherham’s residents.



19

85.

Page 60
THE CABINET - 17/12/18

Whilst there were a number of food premises which would not take
advantage of the offer, either because they have their own internal
compliance systems, or where they did not see food hygiene as a priority,
it was expected that a market existed for support to businesses who were
eager to improve their rating and attract more customers.

The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board confirmed
this had been part of the budget proposals that had been considered and
supported.

Resolved:- (1) That the Food Service Plan for 2018/19 be approved.

(2) That the introduction of a new Council service to provide pre-
inspection advice to food businesses, for which a charge of £195 plus
VAT will be made, be approved.

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
MANAGEMENT BOARD

Consideration was given to the circulated report, the contents of which
were included as part of the relevant item and the details included
accordingly.



Page 61 Agenda Item 11

Rotherham »
Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Public Report
Council

Summary Sheet

Committee Name and Date of Committee Meeting
Council — 23 January 2019

Report Title
Recommendation from Cabinet — Review of Polling Places

Is this a Key Decision and has it been included on the Forward Plan?
Yes

Strategic Director Approving Submission of the Report
Judith Badger, Strategic Director of Finance and Customer Services

Report Author(s)
Claire Wardle, Electoral Services Manager
01709 823521 or claire.wardle@rotherham.gov.uk

Ward(s) Affected
Borough-wide

Summary

At its meeting on 17 December 2018, the Cabinet considered a report in respect of
the review of Polling Places which contained recommendations for the Council to
approve the commencement of the review. Cabinet agreed to make the
recommendations to Council.

The original report providing detail to the proposals is appended in order to provide
Members with sufficient knowledge to agree the proposals.

In order to give effect to the recommendations from Cabinet, consideration and
approval by Council must be given to the recommendation set out below.

Recommendations

1. That approval be granted to undertake a review of polling places in 2019
following the process described in this report.

2. That the scope of the review and the proposals for changes be noted.

3. That the outline timetable for the review, as set out in Appendix 1, be agreed.



Page 62

4. That power to designate polling places in accordance with section 18B of the
Representation of the People Act 1983 is continued to be delegated to the
Chief Executive, with such power to be exercised only in circumstances where
a decision is required at short notice and it is not possible to await a decision
of Council.

List of Appendices Included

Appendix 1

Appendix A
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5

Review of the Polling Places — Report to Cabinet — 17 December
2018

Review Timetable

Notice of Review

Consultation Paper

Maps of current wards

Maps of new wards

Background Papers
Electoral Commission quidance on the review of polling districts and polling places

Consideration by any other Council Committee, Scrutiny or Advisory Panel
Cabinet — 17 December 2018

Council Approval Required

Yes

Exempt from the Press and Public

No


http://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/i-am-a/electoral-administrator/polling-place-reviews

Page 63

Rotherham »
Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Public Report
Cabinet

Summary Sheet

Name of Committee and Date of Committee Meeting
Cabinet — 17 December 2018

Report Title
Review of Polling Places 2019

Is this a Key Decision and has it been included on the Forward Plan?
Yes

Strategic Director Approving Submission of the Report
Judith Badger, Strategic Director Finance & Customer Services

Report Author(s)
Claire Wardle, Electoral Services Manager
01709 823521 or claire.wardle@rotherham.gov.uk

Ward(s) Affected
Borough-wide

Summary

The purpose of this report is to seek a recommendation from Cabinet to Council for
approval of the commencement of a statutory review of polling districts and polling
places within the borough.

Recommendations

1. That Cabinet recommend to Council that:

a. approval is granted to undertake a review of polling places in 2019
following the process described in this report.

b. the scope of the review and the proposals for changes be noted.

c. the outline timetable for the review, as set out in Appendix 1, be
agreed.

d. power to designate polling places in accordance with section 18B of
the Representation of the People Act 1983 is continued to be
delegated to the Chief Executive, such power to be exercised only in
circumstances where a decision is required at short notice and it is
not possible to await a decision of Council.



Page 64

2. That following the outcome of the consultation on the review, the Assistant
Director of Legal Services report to Cabinet with final review proposals for
determination in order for Cabinet to make final recommendations to
Council.

List of Appendices Included
Appendix 1 Review Timetable
Appendix 2 Notice of Review
Appendix 3 Consultation Paper
Appendix 4 Maps of current wards
Appendix 5 Maps of new wards

Background Papers
Electoral Commission gquidance on the review of polling districts and polling places

Consideration by any other Council Committee, Scrutiny or Advisory Panel
Council — 23 January 2019

Council Approval Required
Yes

Exempt from the Press and Public
No


http://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/i-am-a/electoral-administrator/polling-place-reviews

Page 65

Review of Polling Places 2019

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Recommendations
That Cabinet recommend to Council that:

1.1.1 approval is granted to undertake a review of polling places in 2019
following the process described in this report.

1.1.2 the scope of the review and the proposals for changes be noted.
1.1.3 the outline timetable for the review, as set out in Appendix 1, be agreed.

1.1.4 power to designate polling places in accordance with section 18B of the
Representation of the People Act 1983 is continued to be delegated to
the Chief Executive, such power to be exercised only in circumstances
where a decision is required at short notice and it is not possible to await
a decision of Council.

That following the outcome of the consultation on the review, the Assistant
Director of Legal Services report to Cabinet with final review proposals for
determination in order for Cabinet to make final recommendations to Council.

Background

Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the council has a duty to
divide its area into polling districts and to designate a polling place for each
district.

The following definitions may be helpful when reading the report and
Appendices.

e “Polling districts” are geographical electoral areas into which wards
and constituencies may be sub-divided.

o “Polling places” are the buildings or areas designated by the
council where electors in a polling district go to vote in person.

e “Polling stations” are the number of issuing desks in the building
that is the designated polling place.

The Electoral Administration Act 2006, as amended, introduced a duty on all
local authorities in Great Britain to review their polling districts and polling
places at least once every five years. The Council undertook the last full
compulsory review between November 2013 and December 2014. An interim
review was undertaken in 2017, but a full review is now due and should be
completed by December 2019.



2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Page 66

The Local Government Boundary Commission carried out an electoral review of
the Rotherham Borough between September 2016 and October 2017. The
Rotherham (Electoral Changes) Order was made on 8 March 2018, and the
new ward boundaries will take effect from May 2020. The polling places review
will consider the polling places and polling districts for the new wards.

Ward boundaries cannot be changed as part of this review. Ward and
constituency boundaries are the responsibility of the Local Government and
Parliamentary Boundary Commissions respectively. This review can only
consider the internal boundaries of polling district within wards.

The review will be governed by the provisions of Schedule 1A to the
Representation of the People Act 1983, and follow the Electoral Commission
guidance on the review of polling districts and polling places.

Key Issues

A preliminary review has been undertaken by council officers to inform the
Returning Officer’s initial proposals which are set out in the Consultation Paper
attached at Appendix 2.

Some current polling places will not be available in future, and the review also
takes into account the impact of the ward boundaries which will come into effect
at the 2020 elections. The main issues considered in the development of the
initial proposals were:

a) To try and identify new polling places in areas where the existing
provision is unsuitable or unavailable

b) To consider, as appropriate, feedback received following recent
elections raised by members of the public, elected members and other
stakeholders

c) To ensure, as far as practicable, that any new polling places are
accessible to people with disabilities

d) To ensure that ell electors have such reasonable facilities for voting as
are practicable in the circumstances

e) To try and minimise disruption to schools. It should be noted that the
Returning Officer is entitled to use schools and academies free of
charge. However, where alternative premises exist which can provide
better facilities for voting, they may be considered.

f) To minimise any inconvenience to voters where polling district
boundaries are altered as a result of the ward boundary changes.

Further details about the existing polling scheme and the proposals for changes
are outlined in the Consultation Paper, a copy of which is attached at Appendix
2.

Following this initial assessment of the current issues and proposals of change,
the process for designating new polling places should be robust and allow input
from interested parties. There are five key stages in the review process.



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

6.2

Page 67

3.4.1 Notification of the review — the Council will give public notice of the
review, using the Notice attached at Appendix 3, and will publicise the
review via the council website and press release.

3.4.2 Consultation — As well as making details of the consultation available on
the website, the consultation paper will be sent to borough ward
members, parish councillors, MPs, and local political parties. It will also
be sent to any other interested persons or groups, including local
disability groups

3.4.3 Concluding the review — All representations will be considered, and a
further report will be brought to Council with final proposals for
determination.

3.4.4 Publishing the conclusion of the review — the final decisions will be
published, along with the reasons for those decisions, and along with all
representations received during the consultation period.

3.4.5 Appeals process — certain persons, on specific grounds, can appeal to
the Electoral Commission about the alteration of polling places.

Options considered and recommended proposal

Option 1 — Do not carry out a review, and do not change any polling places
before the 2020 elections. This option has been discounted because the
council has a statutory duty to carry out a review, and some existing polling
places will not be available in 2020.

Option 2 — Carry out a full review of polling places commencing in February
2019 to allow sufficient time to consult and determine changes in time for the
Borough, Parish and Police and Crime Commissioner elections in May 2020.

It is recommended that a full review of polling places be undertaken, following
the statutory process and guidance issued by the Electoral Commission.

Consultation

As outlined in paragraph 3.6 (2), certain stakeholders will be consulted directly.
The review will be widely publicised and any elector will be entitled to respond.

Timetable and Accountability for Inplementing this Decision

An outline timetable for the review is given at Appendix 1, commencing with the
notice of review on 4 February 2019. The work involves seeking comments on
the existing arrangements and initial proposals for change, preparing final
proposals, Council determination of the final proposals, publishing the
conclusions, and altering the electoral register as required.

The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations
2000 provides for decisions on polling districts and places to be made by the
Council.



6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

11.1

12.

12.1

Page 68

The Assistant Director for Legal Services will be responsible for implementing
the decisions.

Financial and Procurement Implications

The cost of conducting the review will be funded from within the existing
Electoral Services budget.

Subject to the final recommendations following the consultation, any increased
hire charges arising from the use of private premises, if necessary, will be offset
by a reduction in the number of polling stations.

There are no financial implications for the General Fund. The Council only
funds the cost of Borough elections, with all other elections being funded from
grant monies from Central Government.

Legal Implications

The Council has a legal duty to review polling districts and polling places, as
described in this report. The legislative framework for reviews of polling
districts and places consists of: (i) sections 18A to 18E and Schedule A1 of the
Representation of the People Act 1983, as inserted by section 16 of the
Electoral Administration Act 2006; (ii) section 17 of the Electoral Registration
and Administration Act 2013 introduced a change to the timing of compulsory
reviews.

Human Resources Implications
None arising directly from this report.
Implications for Children and Young People and Vulnerable Adults

The voting age is 18 or over. The recommendations link to the council priority -
every adult secure, responsible and empowered.

Equalities and Human Rights Implications

The council must seek to ensure that, so far as is reasonable and practical,
every polling place for which it is responsible is accessible to people who are
disabled. Provision of reasonably convenient polling arrangements is an
essential element of the free and fair elections required under Protocol 1,
Article 3 of the Human Rights Act.

Implications for Partners and Other Directorates

None arising directly from this report, but partners and other directorates will be
engaged as appropriate through the consultation.



Page 69

13. Risks and Mitigation

13.1 Polling places are essential for the conduct of elections. Inadequate provision
of polling places and polling stations could have a detrimental effect on voter

turnout and could be the source of an election challenge.

14. Accountable Officer(s)

Dermot Pearson, Assistant Director (Legal Services)

Approvals obtained on behalf of:-

(Monitoring Officer)

Named Officer Date
Strategic Director of Finance & Nikki Kelly 18.11.2018
Customer Services
(S.151 Officer)
Assistant Director of Legal Services | Dermot Pearson 18.11.2018

Assistant Director of Human N/A N/A
Resources (if appropriate)
Head of Procurement N/A N/A
(if appropriate)

Report Author Claire Wardle, Electoral Services Manager

01709 823521 or claire.wardle@rotherham.gov.uk

This report is published on the Council's website or can be found at:-

http://moderngov.rotherham.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Cateqgories=



http://moderngov.rotherham.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories

Review of Polling Places 2019 — Draft timetable

Resolution from Council providing for

commencement of the review

Page 70

Notice of Interim Review published in relevant
areas and elected members of the area notified
Commencement of Consultation on current

provision and proposed changes
End of Consultation

Consider comments and if necessary revise

proposals

Final proposals published via Agenda papers and

website
Cabinet Meeting

Council meeting — approval of polling place

scheme
Publication of review result

Publish Electoral Register on new wards and

polling districts

Elections on new boundaries and polling place

scheme

Appendix 1 — Draft Timetable

Wednesday 23 January 2019
Monday 4 February 2019
Monday 4 February 2019

Friday 26 April 2019
Friday 17 May 2019

22 July 2019 (tbc)

5 August 2019 (tbc)
4 September 2019 (tbc)

September 2019
1 December 2019

Thursday 7 May 2020
(Borough, Parish and Police and
Crime Commissioner elections)



Appendix 3

ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
Notice of Review of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council is carrying out a review of polling districts and polling
places in the borough.

This is in accordance with the requirements of section 18C of the Representation of the People
Act 1983.

Details of the current arrangements and the Returning Officer’s proposals for changes can be
viewed:

on the council’'s website at www.rotherham.gov.uk/elections

at the Customer Service Centre, Riverside House, Main Street, Rotherham
at Aston Library & Neighbourhood Hub, Worksop Road, Aston

at Maltby Library and Neighbourhood Hub, Braithwell Road, Maltby

at Wath Library, Montgomery Square, Wath

at Dinnington Library and Neighbourhood Hub, Laughton Road, Dinnington
at Rawmarsh Library & Neighbourhood Hub, Barbers Avenue, Rotherham

Any registered elector may make representations on the current and proposed arrangements. We
welcome comments and suggestions from anyone who has expertise in access for people with
any type of disability.

Where possible, people making representations should suggest alternative places that may be
used as polling places.

Representations should be made in writing by no later than Friday 26 April 2019 to Electoral
Services by using the online form on the council’s website, or by post to Riverside House, Main
Street, Rotherham S60 1AE, or by email to electoral.services@rotherham.gov.uk.

The results of the review will be published by the Council in September 2019 and will be available
for inspection on the council’s website and the above mentioned offices. Persons or groups
making submissions need to be aware that, upon completion of the review, all
correspondence/representations received must by law, also be published.

Dated 4 February 2019

Sharon Kemp, Chief Executive


http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/elections
mailto:electoral.services@rotherham.gov.uk

Page 72

Review of Polling Districts and
Polling Places

Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

Consultation Paper

Consultation Period runs from 4 February to 26 April 2019



Page 73

1. Background to the Review

Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the council has a duty to divide its
area into polling districts and to designate a polling place for each district for
Parliamentary elections. The arrangements made for parliamentary elections are also
used at other elections, and the council must keep the arrangements under review.

The Electoral Administration Act 2006, as amended, introduced a duty on all local
authorities in Great Britain to review their polling districts and polling places at least
once every five years. Rotherham council undertook the last full compulsory review
between November 2013 and December 2014, so another full review is now due and
should be completed by December 2019.

2. Boundary changes

The Local Government Boundary Commission carried out an electoral review of the
Rotherham Borough between September 2016 and October 2017. The aim of the
electoral review was to recommend ward boundaries that mean each councillor
represents approximately the same number of voters.

The Boundary Commission’s final recommendations have been made law through the
Rotherham (Electoral Changes) Order, made on 8 March 2018. The new ward
boundaries will take effect from May 2020. The ward boundary changes are significant,
affecting each area of Rotherham:

e Instead of 21 wards, there will be 25 wards
e Each ward will be represented by two or three councillors
e The number of councillors will reduce from 63 to 59

A map of the new wards is reproduced at p.6, and a list of the new wards and the
number of councillors that will represent each ward is set out on p.7.

Further information about the electoral review can be found at
http://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/yorkshire-and-the-humber/south-
yorkshire/rotherham

As a result of the changes to electoral wards, the polling districts in the borough need to
be reviewed and amended. The polling district boundary changes required are included
in this compulsory review of polling districts and polling places.

Maps of the current wards and polling districts and the new wards and polling districts
can be found on the council’'s website at www.rotherham.gov.uk/elections or are
available from Electoral Services.

It should be noted that electors will continue to be electors of their current ward in the
event of any local by-election occurring before the May 2020 elections.


http://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/yorkshire-and-the-humber/south-yorkshire/rotherham
http://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/yorkshire-and-the-humber/south-yorkshire/rotherham
http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/elections

Page 74

The Parliamentary Boundary Commission for England has recently published its final
recommendations for new constituency boundaries, which will now be subject to
parliamentary approval. If approved, the Wentworth and Dearne constituency would be
renamed Wentworth and Hoyland, and it would take in three different wards from
Barnsley MBC. The current Wickersley Ward would be in the Rotherham parliamentary
constituency rather than the Wentworth constituency, and so this potential change must
be taken into account when reviewing the polling arrangements for the new Bramley &
Ravenfield and the Wickersley North Wards.

Neither the ward boundaries, nor the parliamentary constituency boundaries, can be
changed as part of the council’s review of polling districts and polling places, as they are
the responsibility of the relevant Boundary Commission.

3. Definitions

“Polling districts” are geographical electoral areas into which wards and constituencies
may be sub-divided. In areas with parishes, each parish should be its own polling
district.

“Polling places” are the buildings or areas designated by the council where electors in a
polling district go to vote in person.

The polling place should in normal circumstances be situated within the polling district
for which it is designated, but in some circumstances, for example where no suitable
polling place can be found, then the polling place may be designated outside the polling
district.

“Polling stations” are the number of issuing desks in the building that is the designated
polling place, which generally range from one to three. The Returning Officer
determines the number of polling stations depending on the electorate at a particular
election. Wherever possible there should be no more than 2,500 electors (excluding
postal voters) allotted to a polling station.

4. The Review Process

A preliminary review has been undertaken by council officers to inform the proposals
now set out in the representations of the (Acting) Returning Officer. The proposals have
been included in this consultation paper, from p. 8, and the council invites comments on
these proposals.

The main issues considered in the development of the proposals were:

a) To try and identify new polling places in areas where the existing provision is
unsuitable or unavailable.

b) To consider, as appropriate, feedback received following recent elections raised
by members of the public, elected members and other stakeholders.



Page 75

c) To ensure, as far as practicable, that any new polling places are accessible to
people with disabilities.

d) To ensure that all electors have such reasonable facilities for voting as are
practicable in the circumstances.

e) To try and minimise disruption to schools. It should be noted that the Returning
Officer is entitled to use schools and academies free of charge'. However, where
alternative premises exist which can provide better facilities for voting, they may
be considered.

f) To minimise any inconvenience to voters where polling district boundaries are
altered as a result of the ward boundary changes.

The council is required to publish a notice of the holding of a review. Information about
the review is made available on the council’s website. The consultation paper will be
sent to councillors, Members of Parliament, local political parties, parish councils, and
any other interested groups or persons, including those who have particular expertise in
relation to access to premises or facilities for persons who have different forms of
disability.

5. Making comments

The council would welcome comments on the proposals. We would encourage anyone
making representations to suggest alternative polling districts or places to those
proposed where appropriate, along with their reasons, so that they may be given full
consideration.

Anyone registered as an elector in the Rother Valley, Rotherham or Wentworth and
Dearne constituencies may make representations to the council. Please note that all
representations are required by law to be published.

Representations will also be considered from persons who have particular expertise in
relation to access to premises or facilities for person who have different forms of
disability.

Any representations must be received by Friday 26 April 2019, and should be
addressed to:

Electoral Services, Riverside House, Main Street, Rotherham, S60 1AE

or emailed to: electoral.services@rotherham.gov.uk

The sheet at Appendix 1 may be used for submitting your views. Or you can respond
using our online form via www.rotherham.gov.uk/consultations

' Rule 22, Sch 1, Representation of the People Act 1983


mailto:electoral.services@rotherham.gov.uk
http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/consultations

Page 76

6. The Review Timetable

Publication of notice of review

Monday 4 February 2019

Publication of consultation paper including (Acting)
Returning Officer’s proposals

Monday 4 February 2019

Closing date for representations

Friday 26 April 2019

Council’'s Cabinet meeting — recommendation of polling
place changes

5 August 2019 (tbc)

Council meeting — ratification of polling district and polling
changes

4 September 2019 (tbc)

Publication of Electoral Register on new wards and polling
district boundaries

1 December 2019

Rotherham Borough Council Elections /Parish elections /
Police and Crime Commissioner elections

Thursday 7 May 2020

7. Completion of review

The council will publish:
The results of the review

8. Role of the Electoral Commission

The minutes of council meetings concerning the review
All correspondence received in connection with the review
All representations made by any person in connection with the review

The council will follow guidance issued by the Electoral Commission in undertaking the

review.

Although the Electoral Commission has no role in the review process itself, it can
consider comments if people do not think that the review has met the reasonable
requirements of electors or taken sufficient account of the needs of disabled electors.

The following people can make representations to the Electoral Commission:

30 or more registered electors
any person who made comments during the review
any parish council or parish meeting for the area

accessibility of disabled persons

any non-elector who the Commission fells has sufficient interest in the

The Electoral Commission has the ability to direct the council to make alterations to

polling places if it thinks that is necessary.




Page 77

New Borough and Parish Wards coming into effect for May 2020 local elections

Romarbam:Shoet 1 M 1 Heraton 13_T

Map referred to in the Rotherham (Electoral Changes) Order 2018

may
‘ ‘applied as partof his roview.

ot b G ey et e h o o G Sy
R e e Bl € G oot
b

“They may difier ‘
T Lo e By S ‘

SWINTON
ROCKINGHAM

KILNHURST
& SWINTON

RAWMARSH
WEST

GREASBROUGH

ROTHERHAM
WEST

DALTON &
THRYBERGH

BRAMLEY & RAVENFIELD

WICKERSLEY

HELLABY &
MALTBY WEST

MALTBY EAST

BRINSWORTH

THURCROFT &
WICKERSLEY
SOUTH

AUGHTON &
SWALLOWNEST
-

ASTON &
TODWICK

KEY TO PARISH WARDS

ANSTON &
WOODSETTS

—
=] =1
= ]

[




Page 78

List of new wards from May 2020

Ward Number of | Electorate
Councillors | (2022)
Anston & Woodsetts 3 9,714
Aston & Todwick 2 7,348
Aughton & Swallownest 2 6,849
Boston Castle 3 10,526
Bramley & Ravenfield 2 7,423
Brinsworth 2 7,715
Dalton & Thrybergh 2 7,503
Dinnington 3 10,089
Greasbrough 2 6,567
Hellaby & Maltby West 2 6,467
Hoober 3 10,286
Keppel 3 11,058
Kilnhurst & Swinton East 2 6,342
Maltby East 2 6,945
Rawmarsh East 2 7,365
Rawmarsh West 2 7,286
Rother Vale 2 6,550
Rotherham East 3 10,917
Rotherham West 3 10,812
Sitwell 3 10,285
Swinton Rockingham 2 6,447
Thurcroft & Wickersley South 2 7,573
Wales 2 7,480
Wath 2 6,854
Wickersley North 3 9,862
Totals: 59 206,263




Polling station scheme and Returning Officer’s Proposals
Electorates as at 1 July 2018 (electorate figures are approximate in the case of new / amended polling districts)

1 - Anston & Woodsetts Ward (Rother Valley Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
AA ANA Anston 1,278 Anston Greenlands Primary S|ng|e None No
(North School, Edinburgh Drive
Ward)
AB ANB Anston 1 ,197 Anston Park Junior SchooL Double None No
(North Park Avenue (polling place
Ward) will be shared
with ANF)
AC ANC Anston 1,587 Anston Parish Hall, 15A Single None No
(North Ryton Road
Ward)
AD AND Anston 1,377 South Anston Methodist Single None No
(South Community Hall, Sheffield
Ward) Road
AE ANE Woodsetts 1 ,01 1 Woodsetts V|||age Ha”’ DOUble None No
Gildingwells Road (polling place
is also used
for DIF —
Dinnington
Ward
DE ANF Dinnington | 261 Anston Park Junior School, | Double (Fj’.rei\/_iotus PtE Lglli/n% Ex:sttri]ng pollitng place,
0 J Mli I istrict split — 12% to ut these voters
(12%) SFE J(E(hn S Park Avenue (S%ngg svﬁﬁe this ward, and 88% previously voted at
(Par ANB) remaining in Dinnington | Dinnington St Joseph’s
Avenue ward Catholic School.

Ward)

6. ebed



RB ANG Thorpe 276 Harthill Village Hall, Winney | Double No
Salvin Hill (polling place
is also used
for WAA —
Wales Ward)

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals

The new Anston & Woodsetts ward is based on the previous Anston and Woodsetts ward with the addition of part of Dinnington Parish and

Thorpe Salvin Parish.

Anston Park Junior School has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues to avoid closing the school. No alternatives have

been identified to date, but suggestions for alternatives are welcome.

A new polling district of ANF will need to be created for electors in the Borrowdale Crescent and Park Avenue area which is being
transferred from Dinnington Ward, as this is a new parish ward as a result of the boundary changes. Previously, these electors would have
voted at Dinnington St Joseph’s Catholic School in Dinnington Ward. It is desirable to avoid sharing polling places across wards, to
minimise confusion for voters and complications at the counting of votes. The new polling district is too small and without any suitable
polling place within its boundaries to justify having its own polling station. The proposed polling place for this new polling district is Anston
Park Junior School, as this is situated in the Anston and Woodsetts Ward. . The voters affected would not have to pass their previous

polling place on the way to the new assigned polling place.

08 abed



2 - Aston & Todwick Ward (Rother Valley Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electo | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling Polling rate station boundary review
District District (exc|ud
ing
postal
voters)
FA (44%) ASA Aston-cum- 869 Aston_cum_Aughton Parish Double g‘retv'iotus ::f‘ p4(_)4|_“/ngt No
Aughton (polling place istrict split — 44% to
(Soguth Ward) Hall, Rosegarth Avenue shared with this ward, and 56% to
AUA) Aughton & Swallownest
Ward
FB ASB Aston-cum- 1,945 | Aston Hall Junior & Infant Single None No
Aughton School, Church Lane
(South Ward)
FC ASC Aston-cum- 1,361 | Aston Lodge Primary Single None No
Aughton School, Lodge Lane
(South Ward)
RC ASD Todwick 967 Todwick Village Hall, Kiveton | Single None No
Lane

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Aston & Todwick Ward is made up of part of the previous Holderness ward with the addition of Todwick Parish and the removal of
part of Swallownest.

The polling district of ASA will consist of nearly half of the former FA polling district. The voters from FA would have previously voted at
Aston-cum-Aughton Parish Hall, and we propose that this continues. Although this would mean sharing a polling place between Aston &
Todwick Ward and Aughton & Swallownest Ward, the polling place is considerably more convenient for the affected voters and is large
enough to contain two polling stations.

10

| g abed



3 - Aughton & Swallownest Ward (Rother Valley Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
FA (56%) | AUA Aston- 1106 Aston-cum-Aughton Parish (Dollﬁblel dPirsci\r/iiCotussp:?tA pé)él(i)/ngio No
- ollin ace - °
Zumht Hall, Rosegarth Avenue S%aregvf’/ith this ward, and 44% to
ugnton ASA) Aston & Todwick Ward
(North
Ward)
KB AUB Orgreave | 385 Aston Fence J&I School, Doqble None No
Sheffield Road (polling place
AUD)
KC AUC Aston- 1027 Swanownest Community DOUbIe None No
cum- Centre, Rotherham Road (polling place
Aughton Zrbalged with
(West )
Ward)
KD AUD Aston- 454 Aston Fence J&' School’ DOUbIe None No
cum- Sheffield Road (polling place
Aughton Zrbaéed with
(West )
Ward)
KE AUE Ulley 101 Ulley Village Hall, Main Single None No
Street
FD AUF ASton' 740 Swanownest Community DOUbIe None NO
cum- Centre, Rotherham Road (polling place
Aughton ZTJaéed with
(North Wd) )

11

28 abed



FE AUG ASton' 1020 Aughton Ear'y Years Centre’ Slngle None NO
cum- Main Street
Aughton
(North
Ward)

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Aughton & Swallownest Ward is made up part of the of the previous Holderness and Rother Vale wards with the addition of Ulley
and Orgreave parishes.

The polling district of AUA will consist of over half of the former FA polling district. The voters from FA would have previously voted at
Aston-cum-Aughton Parish Hall, and we propose that this continues. Athough this would mean sharing a polling place between Aston &
Todwick Ward and Aughton & Swallownest Ward, the polling place remains convenient and is large enough to contain two polling stations.

The Head of the Aughton Early Years Centre, and others, have asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues to avoid closing
the Centre. Prior to 2015, the polling place for AUG was Aughton Junior Academy, Turnshaw Avenue. It has been suggested that this was
a better polling place.

Electoral Services officers have visited a number of premises to assess their suitability as a polling place for the AUG polling district,
including Aughton Junior Academy, Windy Ridge and Heighton View Neighbourhood Centres, and Aston-cum-Aughton Leisure Centre.

Aughton Junior Academy is not considered ideal in terms its approach from the road and limited parking. There are no rooms which could
be used to prevent closing the school for the day. The two Neighbourhood Centres are quite small, with limited parking and it is likely that
their use as a polling place would inconvenience the neighbouring residents. It has not been confirmed that the Leisure Centre can
accommodate being designated as a polling place, and Aston Academy does not appear suitable or appropriate.

Therefore it is proposed that Aughton Early Years Centre be retained as the polling place for AUG, at is considered to be the most suitable
venue.

12

¢g abed



4 - Boston Castle Ward (Rotherham Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place

Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review

District District posta'

voters)
BA BCA n/a 350 MyPlace Rotherham, St Single None No
Ann’s Road
BB BCB n/a 682 Talbot Lane Meth0d|st S|ng|e None NO
Church, Moorgate Street
BC BCC n/a 658 United Methodist Church Single None No
Clifton, Lister Street
BD BCD n/a 604 Beevers|eigh Community Slngle None No
Centre, Clifton Lane
BE BCE n/a 2,498 Broom Va”ey Club Room, Double See Table 1 below No
(2249 as Guest Place
amended —
see Table 1
below)

QJ (40%) n/a 445 Previous QJ polling Existing polling place,
district split — 40% to but these voters
this ward, and 60% to previously voted at
Rotherham East Ward Herringthorpe Infant
(See table 1 below) School.

BF BCF n/a 857 Boston Castle, Boston Single See Table 1 below | No

(1106 as Castle Grove
amended —
see below)

13

{8 ebed



BG BCG n/a 586 Canklow Woods Primary Slngle None No
School, Wood Lane

BH BCH n/a 269 Garden Building, Clifton Single None No
Park, Clifton Lane

Bl BCI n/a 366 The Hub, 103 Canklow Road | Single None No

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The Boston Castle Ward is largely unchanged, with the addition of part of the former QJ polling district from the former Valley Ward.

The voters from QJ would have previously voted at Herringthorpe Infant School. While it is proposed that Herringthorpe Infant School is
retained for the voters transferring to Rotherham East ward, it would be more appropriate for the voters transferring to this ward to vote in a
polling place for the Boston Castle ward.

The part of the QJ polling district transferring to Boston Castle is quite small and does not contain a suitable polling place. However, simply
adding this area to BCE would make the polling district too big for one polling place, and the electorate would increase to approximately
2943.

Therefore we propose to amend the boundary between BCE and BCF and reassign some of the electors from the Broom Valley Club Room
to the Boston Castle polling station. This would be a more convenient polling station for the electors shown in Table 1 and it would relieve
some of the pressure from the Broom Valley Club Room. The net polling station electorate in BCE would decrease to 2694 and the
electorate in BCF would increase to 1106.

This would also mean that the use of Broom Valley Community School as a polling place could be avoided, although it would be a suitable
contingency.

14

Gg abed



Table 1 — Properties to be transferred from BCE to BCF

Roads No of No of No of electors
properties electors excluding postal voters

(approximately)

Hall Grove 12 21 12

Hall Road 78 139 90

Heather Close 20 34 20

Moorgate Chase 34 23 12

Moorgate Grove 24 40 32

Moorgate Lane 5 8 1

Moorgate Road (no. 43 to 71 only) 18 41 13

Rotherstoke Close 30 38 18

Welham Drive 17 34 21

Whiston Grove 25 50 30

Total | 263 428 249

15

9Q abed



5 - Bramley & Ravenfield Ward (Rotherham Constituency; Rother Valley Constituency; Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
EB BRA Bramley 1639 Bram'ey Youth Centre, F|ash S|ng|e None NO
(South Lane
Ward)
NG BRB Bramley 618 Bramley Parish Ha”, Cross Trlp|e (Polllng None NO
(North Street place is also
Ward) used for BIRC
and WYF in
Wickersley
North Ward)
TC BRC Bramley 273 Bramley Parish Ha”, CI‘OSS Trlp|e (Polllng Plrev_ious TC pO”mg NO
(22%) (North Street place is also d|§tr|ct split — 22°/2 to
Ward) used for B.RB thIlS ward, and 78% to
and WYF in Wickersley North Ward
Wickersley
North Ward)
NH BRD Ravenfield | 1573 Ravenfield Parish Hall, Single None No
Birchwood Drive
NI BRE Hooton 102 Thrybergh Parish Hall, Park | Triple (polling | None No
Roberts Lane place shared
(parish with DAA and
. DAC in Dalton
meeting) & Thrybergh
Ward)
TE BRF Bramley 912 Bramley Grange Primary S|ng|e None No
(North School (The Grange Zone),
Ward) Howard Road

16

/8 9bed



Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Bramley & Ravenfield Ward is made up parts of Bramley parish which were previously contained in Hellaby, Silverwood and
Wickersley borough wards, with the addition of Hooton Roberts and Ravenfield parishes.

The polling place for both NG and TC previously was Bramley Parish Hall. It is proposed that this is retained for the BRB and BRC polling
districts, as well as being used for the WYF district in Wickersley North ward.

The new BRC polling district will be quite small, but it cannot be merged with the BRB polling district because of the proposed parliamentary
constituency boundary (BRC will be in the Rotherham constituency, but BRB will be in the Wentworth and Hoyland constituency). It would
not be appropriate to merge BRC with BRF, because the Bramley Grange Primary School would not be a convenient polling place for many
electors in BRC.

The polling place for the former NI polling district was Thrybergh Parish Hall, which was also used for two other Silverwood polling districts.
As Hooton Roberts will be in Bramley & Ravenfield ward, and the other two districts will be in Dalton & Thrybergh ward, some consideration
was given to designating Ravenfield Parish Hall as the polling place for BRD. However, voters would have further to travel, so in the
absence of a suitable alternative within the district itself, it is proposed that Thrybergh Parish Hall be retained for BRE.

17

gg abed



6 - Brinsworth Ward (Rotherham Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
CA BWA n/a 582 Rotherham West Community | Single None No
Centre, Brinsford Road
CB BWB Brinsworth | 2192 Brinsworth Community Hall, | Single None No
Brinsworth Lane (previously a
double station
but could be
reduced to a
single)
CC BWC Brinsworth | 892 Brinsworth Howarth Primary Single None No
School, Whitehill Lane
CD BWD Brinsworth | 1101 Brinsworth Whitehill Primary Single None No
School, Howlett Drive
CE BWE Brinsworth 899 St Andrews Church’ Bonet S|ng|e None No

Lane

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Brinsworth Ward is based on the previous Brinsworth and Catcliffe Ward, with the removal of Catcliffe.

As Brinsworth Community Hall was being refurbished at the 2018 elections, Brinsworth Manor Infants School was used instead, but the
Community Hall will now be available for future elections. There is no reason to change the other polling places for this ward.

68 ebed



7 - Dalton & Thrybergh Ward (Rotherham Constituency; Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
ND DAA Thrybergh | 519 Thrybergh Parish Hall, Park | Triple (polling | None No
(North Lane place shared
Ward) with BRD and
DAC)
NE DAB Thl’ybergh 713 Stap'e Green Community Slngle None No
(North Centre, Staple Green
Ward)
QA DAC Thrybergh | 1075 Thrybergh Parish Hall, Park | Triple (polling | None No
(South Lane place shared
Ward) with BRD and
DAA)
QC DAD Dalton 467 The Willow Tree Children’s | Single Slight adjustment of | No
(North Centre, Foliambe Drive boundary, will not
Ward) affect any electors
QE DAE Dalton 760 Trinity Croft CE J&I School Single Slight adjustment of | No
(North (Parish Room), Dalton Lane boundary, will not
Ward) affect any electors
QF DAF Dalton 477 Dalton Parish Hall, Single None No
(North Doncaster Road
Ward)
QG DAG n/a 1211 H|gh Greave Junior School Slngle None No

(Sports Hall), High Greave
Road

19

06 @bed



Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Dalton & Thrybergh Ward is made up part of Dalton parish and the whole of Thrybergh parish which were previously contained in

the Valley and Silverwood borough wards, and including East Herringthorpe.

The Willow Tree Children’s Centre is not part of the Children and Young People’s Service review of children’s centres, and is considered
the most suitable venue for a polling place in the DAD polling district.

There is no reason to change any of the current polling places for this ward.

20

|6 abed



8 - Dinnington Ward (Rother Valley Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta|
voters)
DA DIA Laughton- 767 Laughton Village Hall, Single None No
en-le- Firbeck Avenue
Morthen
DB DIB ThurcrOft 1 136 Monksbridge Community DOUbIe None NO
(South Centre, Monksbridge Road | (Polling place
Ward) shared with
DIC)
DC DIC Dinnington | 1131 Monksbridge Community Double None No
St John’s Centre, Monksbridge Road | (Polling place
(Town shared with
Ward) DIE)
DD DID Dinnington 2660 Dinnington Resource Double None No
St John’s Centre, Laughton Road
(Town
Ward)
DE DIE Dinnington | 1911 St Joseph’s RC Church Single Previous DE polling Yes — previously
(88%) St John’s Hall fjpregliouswt a f;rt]g?; ifg'fn_tﬁiz /W g | Dinnington St
’ t H y .
(Town Swinston Hill Road Dot could be | and 12% o Anston & | Joseph’s Catholic
Ward) reduced to a Woodsetts ward SChOOl
single)
DF DIF Gildingwells | 65 Woodsetts Village Hall, Double None No
(parish Gildingwells Road .(p°'|""'9 Place
i IS also use
meeting) for ANE —
Anston &
Woodsetts
Ward)

21

26 abed



DG DIG Letwell 70 Letwell Village Hall, Barker | Single None No
Hades Road
DH DIH Firbeck 195 Firbeck Village Hall, New Single None No

Road

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals

The Dinnington Ward is largely unchanged, with the removal of the Park Avenue area of Dinnington St John’s Parish to the Anston &
Woodsetts Ward.

Dinnington St Joseph'’s Catholic Primary School would have been retained for the part of the former DE polling district which will remain in

Dinnington Ward. However, Dinnington St Joseph’s Catholic Primary School has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues
to avoid closing the school.

Electoral Services officers have visited a number of premises to assess their suitability as a polling place for the DIE polling district,

including Middleton Hall, Salvation Army Hall, the Bridge New Life Church, Jade Youth and Community Centre and St Joseph’s RC Church
Hall. St Joseph’s RC Church Hall, Swinston Hill Road is considered to be the most suitable venue, with a central location, good facilities for
voters and polling staff, plenty of parking and disabled access.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

22

€6 abed



9 - Greasbrough Ward (Rotherham Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
UA GRA n/a 2393 Greasbrough Primary Double None No
School, Munsborough Rise | (Pusy station
keep as a
double)
UB GRB n/a 1218 Rockingham Professiona' Slngle None NO
Development Centre,
Roughwood Road
UC GRC n/a 1028 Youth Centre’ W|ngf|e|d S|ng|e None No

Academy, Wingfield Road

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Greasbrough Ward is based on the former Wingfield Ward, with the removal of the Kimberworth Park area to the Keppel Ward.

There is no reason to change the current polling places for this ward.

23

16 obed



10 - Hellaby & Maltby West Ward (Rother Valley Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
EC HEA He"aby 481 Centenary Ha”’ Bateman S|ng|e None NO
Road
ED HEB Maltby 2691 Hilltop School, Larch Road Double None Yes — previously
(West Addison Day Centre
Ward)
IA HEC Maltby 909 Maltby Linx Youth Centre, Single None No
(West Lilly Hall Road
Ward)
1B HED Maltby 433 The Grange Warden Centre, | Double No
(West St Bartholomew’s Close (polling place
Ward) shared with
HEE)
ID (2%) Maltby 19 Previous ID polling Existing polling place,
(West district split — 2% to this | but these voters
Ward (total for ward, and 98% to previously voted at the
ard) HED - 452) Maltby East Ward Wesley Centre.
IH HEE Hooton 70 The Grange Warden Centre’ Double None No
Levitt St Bartholomew’s Close (polling place
(parish shared with
meeting) HED)

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Hellaby & Maltby West Ward is made up part of Maltby parish, Hooton Levitt and Hellaby parishes which were previously
contained in the two separate Hellaby and Maltby borough wards.

G6 ebed



The Addison Day Centre is due to close within the next few years, and so alternative premises should be identified.

Electoral Services officers have visited a number of premises to assess their suitability as a polling place for the HEB polling district,
including Maltby Redwood Academy, Maltby Lilly Hall Academy, Redwood Community Centre and Hilltop School. Hilltop School, Larch
Road is considered to be the most suitable venue, with a central location, good facilities for voters and polling staff, plenty of parking and
disabled access. Unfortunately this would mean that the school is likely to close on polling day.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

The Maltby Linx Youth Centre is included in the Children and Young People’s Services review of youth centres. However, the building
could still be used as a polling place for HEC, as it will be asset transferred to Maltby Academy. Bevan Crescent Neighbourhood Centre
has also been identified as a contingency polling place for HEC.

The polling district of HED is proposed to be made up of the former IB polling district, and a small part of the former ID polling district
(Church Lane and Church Close). The voters from ID would have previously voted at the Wesley Centre, Blyth Road, and this would be
retained for the voters remaining in the Maltby East Ward. The polling place for the current IB polling district is the Grange Warden Centre,
and so it is proposed that this be the polling place for the enlarged HED polling district. The voters from the previous ID polling district
transferring to Hellaby & Maltby West would not have to pass their previous polling place on the way to the new assigned polling place.

25

96 abed



11- Hoober Ward (Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District | District postal
voters)
GA HOA Brampton 2774 Brampton Bier'ow Parish Double None No
Bierlow Hall, Knollbeck Lane
GB HOB Wentworth | 93 Wentworth Mechanics Tripartite None No
(Wentworth Institute, Main Street (polling place
Ward) ’ shared with
HOE and
HOH)
GC HOC n/a 2027 West Melton Primary School, | Single None No
Stokewell Road
GD HOD n/a 975 Christchurch Hall, Single None No
Christchurch Road
GE HOE Wentworth | 267 Wentworth Mechanics Tripartite None No
(Wentworth Institute, Main Street (polling place
Ward) ’ shared with
HOB and
HOH)
GF HOF Wentworth 394 Har'ey Church’ Har'ey Road S|ng|e None No
(Harley
Ward)
GG HOG Wentworth 51 Tnn'ty Community Centre’ Trlp|e (also None No
(Harley Sough Hall Avenue usedas
Ward) double polling

station KEA in

26

.6 9bed



Keppel ward)

GH HOH Wentworth | 61 Wentworth Mechanics Tripartite None No
(Wentworth Institute, Main Street (polling place
Ward) ’ shared with
HOB and
HOE)
SG HOl n/a 757 Wath upon Dearne RUFC Double (I;’revious |SG %%”I/ng No
0 roposed that istrict split — 90% to
(90%) Clubhouse, Moor Road gz)”iﬁg Sace. | this ward, and 10% o
be shared with | Wath Ward
WHF in Wath
Ward)

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals

The Hoober Ward is based on the previous ward of the same name, with the removal of the Manor Farm polling district to the Rawmarsh

West Ward, and the addition of most of the Manvers polling district from the Wath Ward.

There is no reason to change the current polling places for this ward.

27

86 abed



12 - Keppel Ward (Rotherham Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling Polling (excluding station boundary review
District | District postal voters)
HA KEA n/a 1875 Tnn'ty Community Centre’ DOUbIe None NO
Slough Hall Avenue (polling place
also used for
HOG in
Hoober ward)
HB KEB n/a 109 Scholes Cricket Pavilion, Single None No
Scholes Village
HC KEC n/a 822 Roughwood Primary SchooL Slngle None No
Roughwood Road
HD KED n/a 1030 Chislett Centre, Kimberworth | Single None No
Park Road
HE KEE n/a 232 St John’s Church. St John’s Double Previous HE polling Existing polling place,
(15%) G ’ district split — 15% to but these voters
reen this ward, and 85% to previously voted at St
Rotherham West Ward | Bede’s Catholic Primary
School
MH n/a 644 No — but separate No
polling district no longer
required
ubD n/a 1971 No — but separate No
(total for KEE polling district no longer
2847) required
HF KEF n/a 1219 ArtWorks Community Single None Yes - previously

Centre, Brook Hill

Thorpe Hesley
Primary School

28

66 @bed



Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The Keppel Ward is based on the previous ward of the same name with the removal of most of the Toll Barr polling district to the
Rotherham West Ward, and the addition of the eastern part of Kimberworth Park from the former Wingfield and Rotherham West wards.

The polling district of KEE is proposed to be made up of the former MH polling district, the former UD polling district and part of the former
HE polling district, around Eilam Road.

The former HE polling district will be divided between Keppel Ward and Rotherham West Ward, as a result of the ward boundary changes.
The voters from HE would have previously voted at St Bede’s Catholic Primary School. Although the school could have been suitable for
voters from the HE part which is transferring to Rotherham West, the proposed polling place for the voters remaining in Keppel is St John’s
Church, which is already used as a polling place for Keppel. The voters affected would not have to pass their previous polling place on the
way to the new assigned polling place, or cross the main Wortley Road.

St John’s Church was previously a shared polling place for both the former MH polling district and the UD polling district. However,
previously MH was a smaller polling district (for Rotherham West ward) and UD was a larger polling district (for Wingfield ward). Now that
both areas are in Keppel ward, a single enlarged polling district can be created. A double station will still be required, but the register can
be split more equally between the two stations.

Thorpe Hesley Primary School has been used as a polling place for the former HF polling district since 2016, but previously the polling
place was the OAP Centre on Brook Hill. The building on Brook Hill is now being run by ArtWorks and is currently undergoing
refurbishment, and will be available as a polling place from early 2019. It is proposed that ArtWorks Community Centre, Brook Hill be
designated the polling place for KEF.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

29

00} abed



13 - Kilnhurst & Swinton East Ward (Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District | District postal
voters)
NB KIA n/a 341 K”nhurst Community S|ng|e None NO
Resource Centre, Victoria
Street
PC KIB n/a 436 The Brookfield Centre. Lime | Single Previous PC polling Existing polling place,
(37%) G ’ district split — 37% to but these voters
rove this ward, and 63% to previously voted at
Swinton Rockingham Swinton Civic Hall.
PE n/a 1237 No
(total for KIB
-1673)
PD KIC n/a 1 100 St Thomas CE Primary Slngle None NO
School, Meadow View Road
PF KID n/a 1491 Piccadilly Methodist Church, | Single Slight adjustment of No

Wentworth Road

boundary, with Swinton
Common being moved

to Swinton Rockingham
Ward

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Kilnhurst & Swinton East Ward is formed of the east Swinton area which was previously in Wath Ward, and the rest of Kilnhurst
which was previously in Silverwood Ward.

10} abed



The former PC polling district will be divided between Kilnhurst & Swinton East Ward, and Swinton Rockingham Ward, due to the ward
boundary changes. The voters from PC would have previously voted at Swinton Civic Hall. While it is proposed that Swinton Civic Hall is

retained for the voters transferring to Swinton Rockingham Ward, it would be more appropriate for the voters transferring to this ward to vote
in a Kilnhurst & Swinton East polling place.

A new potential polling place for this area has been identified, the Liberty Church, Charles Street. However, as this part of the PC polling
district quite small, and an existing suitable polling place is nearby, it is proposed that this area is merged with PE to create an enlarged

polling district of KIB, with the Brookfield Centre as the polling place. The voters affected would not have to pass their previous polling place
on the way to the new assigned polling place.

31

201 abed



14 - Maltby East Ward (Rother Valley Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
IC MAA Maltby 1351 Maltby Manor Academy, S|ng|e None NO
(East Davy Drive
Ward)
ID (98%) | MAB Maltby 940 The Wesley Centre, Blyth Single Previous ID polling | No
(East Road district split — 98%
Ward) to this ward, and
2% to Hellaby and
Maltby West Ward
IE MAC Maltby 862 Edward Dunn Memorial Hall, | Single None No
(East Tickhill Road
Ward)
IF MAD Maltby 999 Ma'tby St Mary’s Catho“c S|ng|e None No
(East Primary School, Muglet Lane
Ward)
IG MAE Maltby 733 Ascension C|ose Warden S|ng|e None NO
(East Centre, Ascension Close
Ward)
1 MAF Maltby 525 Charles Foster Community S|ng|e None NO
(East Centre, Woodland Gardens
Ward)

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Maltby East Ward is formed of most of the former Maltby Ward, east of the Braithwell Road.

32

€0l ebed



Maltby Manor Academy has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues to avoid closing the school. No alternatives within
the polling district have been identified to date, but suggestions for alternatives are welcome.

A new potential polling place has been identified for the ward, the Full Life Church, High Street. However, this is situated in the former ID
polling district, and it is not as convenient and suitable for voters as Maltby Manor Academy, and is therefore not being proposed as an
alternative.

33

v0| abed



15 - Rawmarsh East Ward (Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
JD (47%) | RAEA n/a 207 Rawmarsh St Joseph’s Single Previous JD polling Existing polling place,
Catholic Pri School (previously a district split — 47% to but these voters
atholic Frimary school, double station | this ward, and 53% to previously voted at
Green Lane but could be Rawmarsh West Ward | Rawmarsh Methodist
reduced to a Church
JF n/a 1132 single) No — but separate No
polling district no longer
required
NC n/a 279 No — but separate No
(total for polling district no longer
RAEA - required
1618)
JG RAEB n/a 829 Rawmarsh Rycroft |nfants Slngle None NO
School, South Street
JH RAEC n/a 945 Marshall Close Community Slngle None No
Centre, Marshall Close
NA RAED n/a 2086 Rawmarsh Sandhm Primary S|ng|e None No

School, Kilnhurst Road

(previously a
double station
but could be
reduced to a
single)

34

GOl ebed



Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals

The new Rawmarsh East Ward is formed of the eastern part of the former Rawmarsh Ward with the addition of the western part of the
former Silverwood ward.

The polling district of RAEA is proposed to be made up of the former JF polling district, the former NC polling district and part of the former
JD polling district, to the east of the High Street. The polling place for the current JF and NC polling districts is Rawmarsh St Joseph'’s
Catholic Primary School.

The former JD polling district will be divided between Rawmarsh East Ward and Rawmarsh West Ward, as a result of the ward boundary
changes. The voters from JD would have previously voted at Rawmarsh Methodist Church. Although the Methodist Church can be
retained for voters from the JD part of Rawmarsh West, it would be more appropriate for the voters transferring to this ward to vote in a
Rawmarsh East polling place.

The part of the JD polling district falling in Rawmarsh East is quite small and no suitable available polling place has been identified within its
boundaries. Therefore, it is proposed that this part of the JD polling district be merged with JF/NC to create an enlarged polling district of
RAEA, with the Rawmarsh St Joseph’s Catholic Primary School as the polling place. The voters affected would not have to pass their
previous polling place on the way to the new assigned polling place.

Rawmarsh St Joseph’s School was previously a shared polling place for both the former NC polling district and the JF polling district.
However, previously NC was a smaller polling district (for Silverwood ward) and JF was a larger polling district (for Rawmarsh ward). Now
that both areas are in Rawmarsh East ward, a single enlarged polling district can be created.

35

90} abed



16 - Rawmarsh West Ward (Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place

Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review

District District posta'
voters)

Gl RAWA n/a 1127 Manor Farm Community S|ng|e No — but separate No

Centre, Harding Avenue (previously a polling districts no
’ double station | longer required
but could be

JA n/a 657 reduced to a No

(Total for single)

RAWA —

1784)

JB RAWB | n/a 1991 Monkwood Primary Single None No
Academy, Monkwood Road | (Previously a

double station
but could be
reduced to a
single)

JC RAWC n/a 893 Salvation Army Ha", Quarry S|ng|e See Table 2 below No
(819 as Street
amended —
see Table 2
below)

JD (53%) | RAWD | n/a 233 Rawmarsh Methodist Single Previous JD polling No
(353 as ; district split — 53% to
amended — Church, High Street this ward, and 47% to
see Table 2 Rawmarsh East Ward
& 3 below)

JE RAWE n/a 606 Rawmarsh Ashwood Primary S|ng|e See Table 3 below No
(560 as School, Ashwood Road
amended —
see Table 3
below)

36

/01 ebed



Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Rawmarsh West Ward is formed of the western part of the former Rawmarsh Ward with the addition of the Manor Farm area which
was previously in the Hoober Ward.

Manor Farm Community Centre was previously a shared polling place for both the former JA polling district and the Gl polling district.
However, previously JA was a smaller polling district (for Rawmarsh ward) and Gl was a larger polling district (for Hoober ward). Now that
both areas will be in Rawmarsh West ward, a single enlarged polling district can be created.

It is proposed that Rawmarsh Methodist Church be retained as the polling place for the western part of the former JD polling district which
will fall in Rawmarsh West Ward. However, this would now become quite a small polling district.

To make it more viable, we propose to amend the boundary between RAWC and RAWD and reassign some of the electors from Salvation
Army Hall to Rawmarsh Methodist Church. This would be a more convenient polling station for the electors shown in Table 2.

We also propose to amend the boundary between RAWD and RAWE and reassign some of the electors from Rawmarsh Ashwood Primary
School to Rawmarsh Methodist Church. This would be a more convenient polling station for the electors shown in Table 3.

The net electorate for RAWD would increase to approximately 353.

Rawmarsh Ashwood Primary School has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues. No alternatives within the polling
district have been identified to date, but Electoral Services will continue to work with the school, for example by providing fencing, to enable
to school to remain open on polling day.

37

801} abed



Table 2 — Properties to be transferred from RAWC to RAWD

Roads No of properties | No of electors | No of electors
excluding postal voters
(approximately)
Blyth Avenue 39 69 61
Dale Road (no. 16 to 28 only) 7 18 13
Total | 46 87 74

Table 3 — Properties to be transferred from RAWE to RAWD

Roads No of properties No of electors | No of electors
excluding postal voters
(approximately)
Church Avenue 4 16 11
Church Croft 7 16 9
Church Street 23 44 26
Total | 34 69 46

38

601 abed



17 - Rother Vale Ward (Rother Valley Constituency; Rotherham Constitueny)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District | District postal
voters)
CF RVA Catcliffe 1151 Catcliffe Memorial Hall, Old | Single None No
School Lane
CG RVB Waverley | 252 AMP Technology Centre, Double None No
Brunel Way (polling place
shared with
RVD)
KA RVC Treeton 1851 Treeton Village Community | Single None Yes — previously
Hub, Pit Lane Treeton Youth
Centre
KG RVD Waverley | 739 AMP Technology Centre, Double None No
Brunel Way (polling place
shared with
RVB)

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Rother Vale Ward is based on the Catcliffe, Waverley and Treeton areas which were previously in Brinsworth and Catcliffe Ward
and the former Rother Vale Ward.

Waverley is a new parish coming into effect from 1 April 2019 covering the new housing development spanning the area previously covered
by part of Catcliffe and Orgreave parishes. However, the RVB and RVD polling districts cannot be merged into one district, because of the

39

011 ebed



current and proposed parliamentary constituency boundary (RVB is in the Rotherham constituency, and RVD is in the Rother Valley
constituency).

Treeton Youth Centre is included in the Children & Young People’s Service’s review of youth centres, and it is no longer considered to be
the most suitable building for a polling place.

Electoral Services officers have visited a number of premises to assess their suitability as a polling place for the RVC polling district,
including Treeton Parish Council reading rooms, Treeton Baptist Church, St Helen’s Church, and Treeton Village Community Hub. The
Treeton Village Community Hub, Pit Lane is considered to be the most suitable venue, with good facilities for voters and polling staff, plenty
of parking and disabled access. This would also mean that the use of Treeton CE Primary School as a polling place could be avoided.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

40

11| abed



18 - Rotherham East Ward (Rotherham Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
LA ROEA n/a 672 Eastwood V|||age S|ng|e None NO
Community Centre (Zone 2)
Erskine Road
LB ROEB n/a 401 The Unity Centre, St Single None No
Leonards Road
LC ROEC n/a 1409 St James Vestry (St Francis S|ng|e None No
Room), Cambridge Street
LD ROED |n/a 1151 Rotherham Baptist Church Single None Yes — previously
Hall, Badsley Moor Lane épret‘)’lic’“?'%.a Badsley Moor
ouple station i
but could be Primary School
LE n/a 689 reduced to a Yes — previously
single) Badsley Moor
(total for Primary School
ROED 1840)
LF ROEE n/a 631 Mowbray Gardens S|ng|e None NO
Community Centre,
Mowbray Road
LG ROEF n/a 493 Spnngwe” Gardens Slngle None No

Community Centre,
Eastwood View

41

211 ebed



LH ROEG n/a 1008 The Place Young Peop|es Slngle None No
Centre (next to Coleridge

Primary School)

LI ROEH | n/a 256 Bakersfield Warden Centre, | Single None No
Longfellow Drive

Ql ROEI n/a 757 St Mary’s Catholic Church Single None Yes — previously
(parish room), Herringthorpe Herrlngthorpe’
Valley Road Young People’s

Centre

QJ (60%) ROEJ n/a 667 Herringthorpe Infants S|ng|e Previous QJ pOIIIng No

School, Chatterton Drive district split — 60%

to this ward, and
40% to Boston
Castle

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Rotherham East Ward is largely based on the previous Rotherham East Ward with the addition of parts of Herringthorpe which
was previously in the Valley Ward.

Badsley Moor Primary School has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues to avoid closing the school. The school was
previously used as a polling place for LD and LE polling districts, and it is proposed that the LD and LE polling districts be merged to create
the ROED polling district.

Electoral Services officers have visited a few premises to assess their suitability as a polling place for the ROED polling district, including
the Lanes Community Centre and Rotherham Baptist Church Hall, Badsley Moor Lane. The Baptist Church Hall is considered to be the
most suitable venue, as it is located close to the previous polling place, and has adequate facilities for voters and polling staff, on street
parking and disabled access.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

42

¢l ebed



Herringthorpe Young People’s Centre is included in the Children & Young People’s Service’s review of youth centres, and it is no longer
considered to be the most suitable building for a polling place.

Electoral Services officers have visited the area to seek alternative premises. The parish room at St Mary’s Catholic Church, Herringthorpe
Valley Road is considered to be a suitable venue, with good facilities for voters and polling staff, plenty of parking and disabled access. The
building can be accessed from Herringthorpe Valley Road, or from Goldsmith Road. This would also mean that the use of St Mary’s RC
Junior & Infant School as a polling place could be avoided.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

It is proposed that Herringthorpe Infants School be retained as the polling place part of the former QJ polling district remaining in Rotherham
West Ward.

43

vl abed



19 - Rotherham West Ward (Rotherham Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
HE ROWA |n/a 1312 St Thomas Community Hall, | Single Previous HE polling | Yes — previously St
(85%) High Street district split —85% | Bede’s Catholic
to this ward, and Primary School
15% to Keppel
MA ROWB n/a 853 B|ackburn Primary SchooL S|ng|e None NO
Baring Road
MB ROWC n/a 920 Meadow V|eW Primary S|ng|e None NO
School, Meadowhall Road
MC ROWD n/a 948 Ke'ford SchooL Oakda'e Slngle None NO
Road
MD ROWE n/a 771 Ferham Primary School, Slngle None No
Ferham Road
ME ROWF n/a 788 Hen'ey Community Centre, S|ng|e None NO
Oates Close
MF ROWG n/a 381 Thornh|” Primary SchooL S|ng|e None NO

Clough Bank

44

Gl ebed



MG ROWH | n/a 518 Masbrough & Thornhill Single None No
Community Centre, College
Road

Primary School,
Kimberworth Road

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals

The new Rotherham West Ward is largely based on the previous Rotherham West Ward with the addition of part of the Toll Barr district
which was previously in the Keppel Ward and the removal of the Warren Hill district to the new Keppel Ward.

St Bede’s Catholic Primary School would have been the polling place for the part of the former HE polling district transferring to Rotherham

West Ward. However, the school has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues to avoid closing the school.

Electoral Services officers have visited some premises to assess their suitability as a polling place for the ROWA polling district, including
the Salvation Army Hall and St Thomas Community Hall, High Street. St Thomas Community Hall is considered to be the most suitable

venue, with a central location, readily available, good facilities for voters and polling staff, and disabled access. Although the building does
not have its own car park, arrangements can be made for voters to park at the Salvation Army car park opposite. This would also avoid the

need to use Winterhill School or Abbey School.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

45

911 abed



20 - Sitwell Ward (Rother Valley and Rotherham Constituencies)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place

Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review

District | District postal

voters)

OA SIA n/a 1025 Herringthorpe United Single None No
Reformed Church,
Wickersley Road

OB SIB n/a 789 St Cuthberts Church Hall, Single None No
Bent Lathes Avenue

OC SIC n/a 997 Broom Methodist Church, Single None No
Broom Lane

oD SID n/a 1048 Newman Additional Single None No
Resource (next to Newman
School) East Bawtry Road

OE SIE Whiston 915 Whiston J&I School, Saville | Single None No
Road

OF SIF Whiston 1057 Whiston Worry Goose J&I Single None No
School, Hall Close Avenue

OG SIG Whiston 760 Whiston Parish Hall, Well Single None No

Lane

46

/11 ebed



QH SIH n/a

389

St Bernards Catholic High
School, Herringthorpe Valley
Road

Single

None

No

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Sitwell is largely based on the previous Sitwell Ward with the addition of the St Bernard’s district from the former Valley Ward.

Whiston J&I School has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues to avoid closing the school. The school does have a
room available in their new extension which could be used while keeping the rest of the school open. However, the room is considered too
small to accommodate the number of voters for the polling district. No other alternatives have been identified to date, but suggestions for

alternatives are welcome.

Another option has been considered, to merge the former OE and OG polling districts, and use Whiston Parish Hall for an enlarged polling
district, with an electorate of 1675. Although the Parish Hall could accommodate this number of voters, parking at the venue is not ideal
and there are concerns that congestion could be an issue. It would also mean that voters would be walking past their previous, suitable
polling place to get to a different one.

Therefore, no changes to the current provision of polling places are proposed.

47

gl 1 ebed



21 — Swinton Rockingham Ward

(Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review

voters)
PA SWA n/a 626 Swinton Fitzwilliam Double No — but separate No

: (polling place polling district no longer
Primary School, Broadway io be shared required
with SWD)
SE n/a 756 (as Previous SE polling No
(South of amended — district split — 98% to
Church see Table 4) this ward, and 2% to
Street) Wath Ward
See Table 4 below

PF n/a 0 Slight adjustment of
(no (total for t(;oundary,K rTarJ;ority gf

SWA - 1382 istrict in Kilnhurst
electors) : Swinton East Ward
PB SWB | n/a 1448 Swinton Queen Primary | Single None No

School, Queen Street
PC SWC n/a 743 Swinton Civic Hall. Station | Single Previous PC polling No
(63%) Street ’ district split — 63% to
ree this ward, and 37% to
Kilnhurst & Swinton East

SE n/a 401 (as See Table 5 below Existing polling place, but
(North of amended - these voters previously
Church see Table 5) voted at Swinton
Street) Total for Fitzwilliam Primary School

SWC - 1144
SD SWD n/a 930 Swinton Fitzwilliam Double Previous SD polling Existing polling place, but
(52%) Primary School, Broadway (polling place district split — 52% to these voters previously

to be shared
with SWA)

this ward, and 48% to
Wath Ward

voted at Saint Pius X
Catholic High School

48

611 abed



Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Swinton Rockingham Ward is formed of the western part of the former Swinton Ward, along with parts of Rookery, Racecourse
and Golden Smithies areas which were previously in Wath Ward.

Electoral Services officers have visited the area to try identify further polling places to relieve some of the pressure from the current polling
places. St Margaret’s Church, Church Street has been visited; however it has no separate hall, and has steps at the entrance with disabled
access being via a temporary ramp. Park View function suite has also been assessed. The venue is accessible; however it is very close to
the existing polling place of Swinton Fitzwilliam Primary School.

Swinton Fitzwilliam Primary School was previously a shared polling place for both the former PA polling district and the SE polling district.
However, previously PA was a smaller polling district (for Swinton ward) and SE was a larger polling district (for Wath ward). Both areas will
be in Swinton Rockingham ward, so a single enlarged polling district could be created. However, it is proposed that the Swinton
Rockingham part of the former SE polling district be divided, with only the properties south of Church Street being included in the new SWA
polling district (See Table 4). This would balance out the electorate between the available polling places. It is proposed that Swinton
Fitzwilliam Primary School be designated the polling place for the new SWA polling district.

The former SD polling district will be divided between Swinton Rockingham and Wath wards, as a result of the ward boundary changes.
The voters from SD would have previously voted at Saint Pius X Catholic High School. Although the High School could be retained for the
voters from the SD part of Wath, it would be more appropriate for the voters transferring to this ward to vote in a Swinton Rockingham
polling place.

No suitable polling place has been identified in the part of the SD polling district falling in Swinton Rockingham. Therefore, it is proposed
that Swinton Fitzwilliam Primary School be designated the polling place for this area. The voters affected would not have to pass their
previous polling place on the way to the new assigned polling place. The School would become a double station as it was previously, with a
net electorate of 2,312.

It is proposed that Swinton Civic Hall be retained as the polling place for the part of the former PC polling district remaining in Swinton
Rockingham Ward. However, this would be smaller polling district than previously. Therefore it is proposed that the properties north of
Church Street from the former SE polling district are included in the new SWC polling district (See Table 5). This would balance out the
electorate between the available polling places. It is proposed that Swinton Civic Hall be designated the polling place for the new SWC
polling district.

49

021 ebed



Table 4 — Properties from former SE to be included in SWA

Roads No of properties | No of electors | No of electors
excluding postal voters
(approximately)

Brameld Road 45 55 39

Broadway 13 25 20

Broadway Close 6 12 8

Central Avenue 72 132 114

Church Street (odds) 30 54 33

Church View 21 34 30

Fitzwilliam Street 2 3 3

Griffin Road 22 43 36

Highfield Road 39 73 51

Park Close 16 27 25

Park Road 50 94 81

Rockingham Road 48 77 58

Rookery Road 97 170 126

Toll Bar Road 78 134 114

Woodlands Crescent 16 30 18

Total | 555 960 756

50

12| abed



Table 5 — Properties from former SE to be included in SWD

Roads No of properties | No of electors | No of electors
excluding postal voters
(approximately)

Birch Court 2 1 1

Church Street (evens) 30 47 33

Far Golden Smithies 80 178 118

Golden Smithies Lane (part) 20 35 26

Low Golden Smithies 63 159 132

Paddock Croft 9 21 16

St Georges Avenue 18 33 23

St Margaret’s Drive 11 17 16

The Stables 9 21 16

Yearling Chase 16 33 20

Total | 258 545 401

51

2¢| abed



22 - Thurcroft & Wickersley South Ward (Rother Valley Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta|
voters)

EA THA W|CkerS|ey 2044 The Church Barn’ Church DOUbIe None NO

(South Lane (kbusy station

eep as a

Ward) double)
KF THB Thurcroft 3534 Gordon Bennett Memorial Double None No

(North Hall, Green Arbour Road

Ward)

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Thurcroft and Wickersley South Ward is formed from the northern part of Thurcroft parish and the southern part of Wickersley

parish.

There is no reason to change the polling districts or places for this ward.

52

¢zl abed



23 - Wales Ward (Rother Valley Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
RA WAA Harthill- 877 Harthill Village Hall, Winney Double None No
with- Hill (;laolling %Ie]\cce
also usea for
Woodall ANG in Anston
& Woodsetts
Ward)
RD WAB Wales 1058 Wales-Kiveton Methodist Single None Yes — previously
(Wales Church, School Road Wales Primary
Ward) School
RE WAC Wales 1305 Old Colliery Offices (training | Single None Yes — previously
(Kiveton room), Colliery Road Kiveton Park Youth
Park & Community
Ward) Centre
RF WAD Wales 1522 Kiveton Park & Wales Single None No
(Wales Village Hall, Walesmoor
Ward) Avenue
RG WAE Harth”l- 219 Peregrine Way Community S|ng|e None NO
with- Centre, Peregrine Way
Woodall
RH WAF Wales 454 Viking Way Community Single None No
(Kiveton Centre, Viking Way
Park
Ward)

53

v2) ebed



Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals

The new Wales Ward is largely based on the previous Wales Ward with the removal of Thorpe Salvin (to Anston & Woodsetts) and Todwick
(to Aston & Todwick).

Wales Primary School has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues to avoid closing the school.

Electoral Services officers have visited some premises in the area to assess their suitability as a polling place, including Wales Jubilee
Sports & Social Club and Wales-Kiveton Methodist Church. Wales-Kiveton Methodist Church is considered to be the more suitable venue,
with good facilities for voters and polling staff, and disabled access. The Church only has a small car park, but this is considered as
sufficient as the current provision for parking.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place

Kiveton Park Youth & Community Centre is included in the Children & Young People’s Service’s review of youth centres, and it is subject to
a further Corporate Property review.

Electoral Services officers have visited a few premises to assess their suitability as a polling place for the WAC polling district, including
Kiveton Park Infant School and the Old Colliery Offices, Colliery Road. The Old Colliery Offices (Training Room) is considered to be the
most suitable venue, with good facilities for voters and polling staff, plenty of parking and disabled access.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

54

Ge| abed



24 — Wath Ward (Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District DiStriCt posta'
voters)
SA WHA n/a 1009 Wath Community Library, S|ng|e None NO
Montgomery Square
SB WHB n/a 698 The Base Community Hub, Single None Yes — previously
Fir Close Oaks Day Centre,
Oak Road
SD (East n/a 302 (as Previous SD polling These voters previously
of amended — district split — 48% to voted at Saint Pius X
Sandygate see Table 6) this ward, and 52% to Catholic High School
Swinton Rockingham
Total for Ward
WHB 1000 See Table 6 below
SC WHC n/a 1298 St Joseph’s Catholic Church | Single None Yes — previously
Hall, Carr Road Wath Victoria
Children’s Centre,
Sandymount Road
SE (2%) n/a 16 Previous SE polling These voters previously

district split — 2% to this
ward, and 98% to
Swinton Rockingham
Ward

voted at Swinton
Fitzwilliam Primary
School

55

9¢| ebed



SF WHD | n/a 1327 Wath Central Primary Single None No
School, Fitzwillliam Street

SD (West n/a 629 (as Previous SD polling These voters previously
of amended — district split — 48% to voted at Saint Pius X
Sandygate) see Table 7) this ward, and 52% to Catholic High School
Swinton Rockingham
Total for Ward
WHE 1956
See Table 7 below
SG WHE n/a 84 Wath upon Dearne RUFC Double P.rev_ious SG polling No
(10%) Clubhouse, Moor Road (proposed that | district split = 10% to

p0|||ng p|ace this ward, and 90% to
be shared with | Hoober Ward
HOI in Hoober
Ward)

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Wath Ward is based on the existing Wath Ward with the removal of the housing north of Manvers Way to the Hoober Ward, and
parts of Rookery, Racecourse and Golden Smithies areas to the Swinton Rockingham Ward.

The Wath Community Library was used as a polling place for the first time in 2018, as the Trinity Methodist Church is no longer available.
For future elections, the Returning Officer will seek to use a space on the ground floor of the library, rather than the meeting room on the
first floor.

The former SD polling district will be divided between Swinton Rockingham Ward and Wath Ward, as a result of the ward boundary
changes. The voters from SD would have previously voted at Saint Pius X Catholic High School. It is proposed that the Wath part of the
former SD polling district be divided, and that the properties east of Sandygate be included in the new WHB polling district (See Table 6).
This would balance out the electorate between the available polling places. The voters affected would not have to pass their previous
polling place on their way to the new assigned polling place. This would also avoid the use of Saint Pius High School as a polling place,
although it would be a suitable contingency.

/2| ebed



The Oaks Day Centre is due to close within the next few years, and so alternative premises should be identified for the WHB polling district.
Electoral Services officers have visited the area to try assess alternatives. Fir Close Meeting Centre was used as a polling place until 2014,
and, having recently been developed into the Base Community Hub, it is still considered to be suitable, so it is proposed that this be
designated the polling place for WHB.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

The polling district of WHC is proposed to be made up of the former SC polling district, and a small part of the former SE polling district (Far
Field Lane and houses at north of Golden Smithies Lane). The voters from SE would have previously voted at Swinton Fitzwilliam Primary
School, and this would be retained as a polling place for the Swinton Rockingham ward. It would be more appropriate for the voters
transferring to this ward to vote in a polling place for the Wath ward.

Wath Victoria Children’s Centre is included in the Children and Young People’s Services review of children’s centres. It is possible that the
building could still be used as a polling place for WHC, and it may be asset transferred to Wath Victoria Primary School. Even so,
alternatives have been sought and considered.

Electoral Services officers have visited some premises to assess their suitability as a polling place, including the Dunholme Social Club and
St Joseph’s Catholic Church Hall. St Joseph’s Catholic Church Hall, Carr Road is considered to be the more suitable available venue for
the WHC polling district, with good facilities for voters and polling staff, disabled access, and a reasonably sized car park. This would also
avoid the need to use Wath Victoria Primary School.

We would welcome comments on this proposed new polling place.

The former SD polling district will be divided between Swinton Rockingham Ward and Wath Ward, as a result of the ward boundary
changes. The voters from SD would have previously voted at Saint Pius X Catholic High School. Itis proposed that the Wath part of the
former SD polling district be divided, and that the properties west of Sandygate be included in the new WHD polling district (See Table 7).
This would balance out the electorate between the available polling places. The voters affected would not have to pass their previous
polling place on their way to the new assigned polling place

57

gz abed



Wath Central Primary School has asked the Returning Officer to consider alternative venues to avoid closing the school. Electoral Services
officers have visited the area to try to identify alternatives for the WHD polling district, including Wath Youth & Community Centre and Wath
upon Dearne Leisure Centre. It has not been confirmed that the Leisure Centre can accommodate being designated as a polling place, and
Wath Central Primary School remains the most suitable venue.

Therefore it is proposed that Wath Central Primary School be retained as the polling place for WHD.

The polling place for the former SG polling district was previously the Wath upon Dearne RUFC Clubhouse, and this would be retained for

the larger proportion of the district which will fall in the new Hoober Ward. Although it is not ideal to share polling places across wards, in
this case it may be the best option. There is new housing around the RUFC clubhouse, and it would not be appropriate to allocate these

voters to a different polling place. Therefore it is proposed that the RUFC clubhouse be designated the polling place for the WHE district in

Wath as well as for the HOI district in Hoober Ward.

Table 6 - Properties from former SD to be included in WHB

Roads No of properties No of electors No of electors
excluding postal voters
(approximately)

Acorn Place 5 5 5

Broom Close 26 69 55

Chestnut Avenue 27 53 27

Elm Way 19 41 37

Holly Grove 32 61 45

Oak Close 18 15 13

Oak Road 29 57 44

Sandygate (no. 105 to 141 only) 19 33 22

Willow Road 34 70 54

Total | 209 404 302

58

621 abed



Table 7 — Properties from former SD to be included in WHD

Roads

No of properties

No of electors

No of electors
excluding postal voters
(approximately)

Boswell Road 33 62 39
Buckleigh Road 75 146 114
Campsall Field Road 15 27 21
Coverleigh Road 37 86 63
Crowley Drive 32 64 54
Dawson Lane 1 2 0
Gipsy Green Lane 15 23 16
Mount Pleasant Road 32 65 54
Quarry Hill Road 88 173 125
Sandygate (no. 90 to 140 only) 29 48 44
Sandygate Crescent 14 34 22
Varney Road 5 7 5
Wath Wood 3 7 6
Wath Wood Bottom 1 2 2
Wath Wood Road (no. 2 to 18 9 18 13
Woodiand Grove 8 17 15
Woodland Road 26 48 36
Total | 423 829 629

59

0¢| ebed



25 - Wickersley North Ward (Rotherham Constituency; Wentworth & Dearne / Hoyland Constituency)

Previous | New Parish Electorate | Polling Place Polling Changes due to New polling place
Polling | Polling (excluding station boundary review
District District posta'
voters)
NF WYA Da|t0n 714 Sunnyside Community Trlp|e . None NO
(East Centre, Flanderwell Lane {shiated with
Ward) WYE)
QB WYB Dalton 375 Sunnyside Community Triple None No
(East Centre, Flanderwell Lane (shared with
Ward) WYE)
QD WYC Dalton 592 Listerdale Primary SchooL S|ng|e None No
(South Beech Avenue
Ward)
TA WYD Dalton 1124 F|anderwe" Ear'y Exce”ence S|ng|e None No
(East Centre, Flanderwell Primary
Ward) School, Greenfield Court
B WYE Dalton 1131 Sunnyside Community Triple None No
(East Centre, Flanderwell Lane shared with
Ward) WYB)
TC WYF Bramley 968 Bramley Parish Ha”, Cross Trlp|e (Polllng P.rev_ious TC polllng No
(78%) (West Street place is also district split — 78% to
Ward ree used for BRB | this ward, and 22% to
ard) and BRC in Bramley & Ravenfield
Bramley &
Ravenfield
Ward)

60

€| abed



TD

WYG

Wickersley
(North
Ward)

2381

Blessed Trinity Catholic
Church, Northfield Lane

Double

None

No

Issues, Options and Reasons for Returning Officer’s Proposals
The new Wickersley North Ward is largely based on the previous Wickersley Ward with the addition of parts of Sunnyside and Brecks from

the former Silverwood and Valley wards, and the removal of south Wickersley.

There is no reason to change the polling places for this ward.

61

2¢| ebed



Appendix 1

Consultation Response Form — Review of polling districts and polling places 2019

All representations or comments in connection with the review must be submitted in writing, eg by letter or email. This form is not
compulsory but it has been designed to help capture the information required for consideration during the review.

Information shown in the grey boxes will be redacted, (blanked out) prior to publication.

Individual — Details Organisation - Details
Name: Name of organisation:
Address: Address:

Voter No: Contact Name:

(if known)

Contact Tel No: Contact Tel No:
(optional) (optional)

Comments on the proposed scheme of polling district and polling places as outlined in the consultation paper

Polling district:

Proposed polling place:

Do you have any comments to make about the polling district?

62

¢el abed



Do you have any other suggestions for the polling district?

Do you have any comments about the proposed polling place?
(issues with accessibility etc?

Is there an alternative that the council should consider?

Why is the alternative a better option?

Please return this form to: Electoral Services, Riverside House, Main Street, Rotherham, S60 1AE

or email to: electoral.services@rotherham.gov.uk
by 26 April 2019

63

v¢1 ebed


mailto:electoral.services@rotherham.gov.uk

Appendix 4 - Current Wards

AA | Anston Greenlands Primary School, Edinburgh Drive, North Anston, Sheffield 525 4HD

AB | Anston ParkJunior School, Park Avenue, North Anston, Sheffield 525 207

AC | Anston Parish Hall, 15A Ryton Road, North Anston, Sheffield 5254DL

AD | South Anston Methodist Community Hall, Sheffield Road, South Anston, Sheffield 525 5DW

Woodsetts Village Hall, Gildingwells Road, Woodsetts, Worksop 581 8QB

0w 12018

Rotherham »
s g

gis@rotherham gov.uk (01709) B23364
Rotherham Metropalitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Anston And Woodsetts Ward Riversile House

Main Street

Rotherham

(Current) S601AE

Ge| ebed


james.moran
Highlight

james.moran_1
Highlight

james.moran_2
Line


Page 136

vl 089S
weylayjoy
j9ang uley

8SNOH apisIaAly

170 syesodion

rounod ybnolog uepjodonapy weyiayoy
POEEZ8 (0L L) ¥n AoB weytsyjoi@siB

(yuaunn)

PIEM\ 2]3S€) Uojsoyg

BL0Z/L B0

#1700 dew Ty sieydesBoss wiuAdoD sdew 24

0001 0N #3U83 IEN P B
LOUAD0D UMOID @ U0 AUBUONELS 5,A1581R N 180 JBR0AUOD BUTH0 LOISSIULIET BU) Ui BUIDIRL ASAINS BILBUPIQ BUI WY Peanpoiday

LE R

10

]

412 095 WEeYI2yloy ‘peOY MO[{uUeD £0T ‘gnH 3yl 19

VYT 595 WeUIayloy ‘@ue] uoll]d “ied uoly|d ‘Bulpjing uspies HE

M%Z 095 Weyiayloy ‘2ue] poosy ‘|ooyas Aewiid Spoop mojyue) o4
gz 095 Weysayloy ‘aaoin 3|1seD uolsog ‘o)1seD uoysog 44d

357 095 WeYLayloy ‘30e|d 15ano ‘wooy gn|D A3jea wooig 34

QvE 595 WEYIaYloY ‘Bue] uolyD Baiuad Ayunwwod ysis|sianaag ag
X¥WEZ GO9S WEeYI2yloy 122415 131517 ‘Uoly|D YainyD 1sipoylaw pauun 24
AFT 005 Weylayloy 123115 31eFI00W ‘Yainyd 1sIpoylaly aue] 1ogel g4
HdT 595 Weyiayloy ‘peoy s,uuy 15 ‘weysayloy ade)dAw wvd

LY
\
SRUEIPOOM
\ Al
A\
\

T .

18 T <,

T
£

% [wnipeig
H104 maN)
P W

4 s pushueg© [/

* & +
7

WYHYIH10Y

BJjUa]) eInuaApy
o109 e El aguslag eudely
|.||||l||-l.||lll|i.|

—



james.moran_3
Highlight

james.moran_4
Highlight

james.moran_5
Highlight

james.moran_6
Highlight

james.moran_7
Highlight

james.moran_8
Highlight

james.moran_9
Highlight

james.moran_10
Highlight

james.moran_11
Highlight

james.moran_12
Line

james.moran_13
Line

james.moran_14
Line

james.moran_15
Line

james.moran_16
Line

james.moran_17
Line


p—— Page 137 s

b g (3uain)) N
SN oprsIoAy Ra wrmoiion
founoo O i PIEM SRI9IED B Uiomsullg

¥OEEZE(60L w,.e AN A0B WB YR LHCIBSIB

T
D004 84 S0 DA U W e, il
sk b)) #o A AL

OMG 095 Wewsyoy SHIEIES ‘Aep [surug “sniusd ABojouyas] JWY )
dS6 095 Weysyioy SIIEIES ‘Bue] [004aS PIO |[BH [BUOWa BIII5IED 40
ANG 095 ‘wewsyloy YUSKEUTT ‘aue] WUSH "Yunyd smalpuy IS N

1HS 095 weLaLyoy

“IGHETIE "snug WEMOH ‘jooyag Aewug TSGR (HEASTE as

IS 095 weysyioy

“(HEMETLE “sueq G ‘jooyds Arwugd yuemol (HEMETLE 29

ngs 09s

‘wesyioy IIGHMETE ‘aue (HGMETNE ey Aunwwoy GIGAHSGTIE 80
1065 095 Weysyoy

“JUGKiEllY ‘peoy PIGISULE ‘anua] Ajunwwog 1sap) WeLs Yoy

o0u3s
431381,
P.mﬂ_sn sunig .u

XINFOHd

2B Qu. uag™
PSS Gmoisii
ﬁw) .@WWMW‘%%\@.
NV D T
SRR
22 5 A 354100 4709
B



james.moran_18
Highlight

james.moran_19
Highlight

james.moran_20
Highlight

james.moran_21
Highlight

james.moran_22
Highlight

james.moran_23
Highlight

james.moran_24
Line

james.moran_25
Line

james.moran_26
Line

claire.wardle
Highlight


DA | Laughton Village Hall, Firbeck Avenue, Laughton-en-le-Morthen, Sheffield 5251¥D

DB | Monksbridge Community Centre, Monksbridge Road, Dinnington, Sheffield 525 305

DC | Monksbridge Community Centre, Monksbridge Road, Dinnington, Sheffield 525 305

DD | Dinnington Resource Centre, Laughton Road, Dinnington, Sheffield 525 2PS

DE | Dinnington 5t. Joseph's Catholic Primary School, Lidgett Lane, Dinnington, Sheffield 525200

DE | Dinnington 5t. Joseph’s Catholic Primary School, Lidgett Lane, Dinnington, Sheffield 525 20D

DG | LetwellVillage Hall, Barker Hades Road, Letwell, Worksop 581 BDF

Firbeck Village Hall, New Road, Firbeck, Worksop 581 8JY

Rolnctl-.a_:n la
e Dinnington Ward
(Current)

0w 12018

gis@rotherham gov.uk (01709) B23364
Rotherham Metropalitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

SB01AE

g¢| abed


james.moran_27
Highlight

james.moran_28
Highlight

james.moran_29
Highlight

james.moran_30
Highlight


EA | The Church Barn, Church Lane, Wickersley, Rotherham 566 1ES

EB Bramley, Bill Chafer, Young People’s Centre, Flash Lane, Bramley, Rotherham 566 1TS

EC Centenary Hall, Bateman Road, Hellaby, Rotherham 566 8HB

ED | Addison Day Centre, Addison Road, Maltby, Rotherham S66 8DG

5
COMMON
=N Praying Fisio §°

Mitsiong B §
Farmy)  EATOT
AN

ety Sebomeey Ofice ©Crmn cogimnt
. < Libwnca Mo, 10001

A2 Wags Copprght Geographery AL Wap Co LM
Rotherham l‘
[y

e Hellaby Ward
(Current)

081172018

gisgrotherham gov. uk (01709) 823364
Rotherham Metropalitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Riverside House

Main Street

6¢1 abed


james.moran_31
Highlight

james.moran_32
Highlight

james.moran_33
Highlight

james.moran_34
Highlight


Spnng /
/
Waed -~

X
b /i
NI Farm

Iy
(v o Vessey HEh T
S, &l HARGHGA
,__mfm arm R

05 :

fardwick
H

Conguit Moor
e
Condu! Commaon

7N
7 L7, Netherthorpe
Cametery /,;‘;‘
i,

ey
& gt

-
ek :,PM
1%%3’\ S

2 %

&t

10KE
Lk

P

FPlantation

Fa | Aston-cum-Aughton Parish Hall, Rosegarth Avenue, Aston, Sheffield 526 2DB

FB | AstonHall ] & | School, Church Lane, Aston, Sheffield 526 28X

FC | Aston Lodge Primary School, Lodge Lane, Aston, Sheffield 526 2BL

FD | Swallownest Community Centre, Rotherham Road, Swallownest, Sheffield 526 4UR

FE | Aughton Early Years Centre, Main Street, Aughton, Sheffield 526 3XH

peatys Seabomery O e ]
- < Lt o, 10001

A2 Wags Copprght Geographery AL Wap Co LM
Rotherham l} Corporate IC°
[y

e Holderness Ward Rversde House

Main Street

(Current) S60 1AE

gis@rotherham gov.uk (01709) 623364
Rotherham Metropalitan Borough Council

081172018

Ol ebed


james.moran_35
Highlight

james.moran_36
Line


Page 141 -

avi 09s
10ais e (uauny)
BSNOK BprsIBARY
101 epesodiog
liounog g ueyjodona weyayioy PIEA 18GO0H
POEEZE (60L10) ¥ Aob weyeyos@sib

P
T T

37 705 weysauloy ‘udney Jaddn ‘snuany Buipiey ‘siiua) AYunwiwo) WIe JoUBy 19
1L/ 295 WEYIRYIoY ‘YHOMIUIAN ‘122415 VBN ‘SINUISU| SAUBLIZ N YHOMIUSA HD

D7 605 weylayloy ‘Aajsad adioy) ‘snuany [|BH Yy8nos ‘aiuad Apunwwo) Auuu) 51a]
an/ 795 weysayloy ‘AsjieH ‘peoy A3jieH 'younyd AsjeH 45

1L£ 295 WELYIBYIoY ‘YUOMIUIN, 183115 UIE "31NUISU| SYUBLYDIS A YHIOMIUSAN 3o

AVNG £95 WeYJayloy ‘auleaq uodn Ylea, ‘PEOY Y2INY2ISUYD ‘JIBH Yanya1suyD ao

4ND £95 WEYIAYI0Y ‘UOY3IN 1S3 'DROY [[3M 3015|0045 ABLILId UDY3IN 153 29
1L/ 795 WEYIBYI0Y ‘YHOMIUIAN ‘133115 UIBIAN ‘SINUISU| SOIUBYIIIN YHOMIUSM a0

¥10 ££5 A3jsuieg mopaig uordwelg ‘'sueT yoagoun ‘JIBH Yysiied mojiaig uoldwesg o)



james.moran_37
Highlight

james.moran_38
Highlight

james.moran_39
Line

james.moran_40
Line

james.moran_41
Line

james.moran_42
Line


m— Page 142 -

i (yuaun))

esnoH eprIsAy

101 sieodion
s’ . PIEM [3dday]

¥9EE28 (602 10) 4 A0B weya 0@ siB

00| wat s ) iy ey A
el a3 1o A A

1dg 195 ‘wewayioy ‘peoy Asuop Jeddn ‘jooyas Aewud AS[ESH adioy) dH

Qdi 195 weysyloy ‘peoy As[uop ‘jooysg Aewud d1joyie) s,8pagis 3H

LrE 195 Wewsyloy ‘PeOY Yied UORTSHINTY ‘siua) 1a|siy) aH

THE 195 weysyioy ‘peoy POCHUBNGY ‘jooyag Aewud PEOMGBHOYH OH

DYz 195 weysyioy ‘sbejji s8joydg "uoljined 1830U2 S8|0Yd5 g4

r'OZ §os wewayloy ‘R3[53H adioy] ‘anuaay [BH ybBnog ‘anusg Auumuwos Apuu] wH

uney
=FyLomsEm

L=
m.._.uuw.x

\
abuesg
auosapunut [ gy
159
iy afueig 4

.w%l(

filtag oEuRTd
AL YINEYE adosspay
A o
=@

u.-mw_n_num;:»
nnH.J a9 vawe0 /.
3 POOM # A
5 a5y x(p seddn

OGNS

530HIS

2 nm“h o]



james.moran_43
Highlight

james.moran_44
Highlight

james.moran_45
Highlight

james.moran_46
Highlight

james.moran_47
Highlight

james.moran_48
Line

james.moran_49
Line


1A | Maltby Linx Youth & Comm. Centre, Lilly Hall Road, Maltby, Rotherham S66 8BE
II IB | The Grange Warden Centre, St. Bartholomew s Close, Maltby, Rotherham 566 8NH

IC | Maltby Manor Academy, (Community Room), Davy Drive, Rotherham S66 8JN

IA

ID | Wesley Centre, Blyth Road, Maltby, Rotherham 566 8JD

IE | Edward Dunn Memorial Hall, Tickhill Road, Maltby, Rotherham 566 7NQ

IF | Malthy St Marys Catholic Primary School, Muglet Lane, Maltby, Rotherham S66 71U

IG | Ascension Close Warden Centre, Ascension Close, Maltby, Rotherham S667NQ.

IH | The Grange Warden Centre, St. Bartholomew s Close, Maltby, Rotherham 566 8NH

Charles Foster Community Centre, Woodland Gardens, Maltby, Rotherham S66 7TN'W

/7 HOOTON
LEVITT

0 Pk das

s Ornance Gurvey mappeg mhifie e ol Con

0w 12018

gisi@rotherham gov,uk {01709) B23364
Rotherham Metropalitan Borough Council

Raotherham l‘ Corporate ICT
- sl |

wovgh Covmeil Manb! Ward l:‘m?e;:ouw
R ol
(Current) Sone

¢y abed


james.moran_50
Highlight

james.moran_51
Highlight

james.moran_52
Highlight

james.moran_53
Highlight

james.moran_54
Line

james.moran_55
Line

james.moran_56
Line

james.moran_57
Line

james.moran_58
Line

claire.wardle_1
Highlight


avL 095
weyByI0Y
1985 e

SN0 BpISIBAY
 Lojeendion

rounog g ) N weyay
POEEZE (60L10) ¥ Aob weyeyos@sib

Page 144

(yuauny)

prep USTEwMmEY

D001 w94 S i i 1B
A i) £ 0 A

MO

809 795 WeUJIU10Y ‘YSIewmey ‘250|J ||BYSJey ‘2a1uad Auunwweon IS0 ||eysien

Hr

MDG 205 WEYISYLoY ;—mumr_..gmm_ BELTI yinos _—_Oocum-mu:mu—r._ uu—O_uw>x YSIEWMEY

or

AMTOS WEYIaYLIoY _;—m_mr_..;mv_ ‘aueTuaaun ~_OO£UW>._WE__Q Jjoylied mSn_wMOH 1S YSIBWMEY

4ar

1HO 795 Weyiayloy
‘a1edyeq ‘193115 Held WIoH ‘(Jun uoRepunoy) Jooyds | 7§ rPOOMYSY YsIEWMEY

ar

N9 795 WEeYI310Y ‘YsIewmey 18315 YBiH 'Udinyd 1SIpoyIain Ysiewmey

ar

80/ 795 WeY3YI0Y 'YsIeWMEY 133115 AuenD ‘||leH Awly uoneaes

ar

Qr/ 795 WEeYI3Y10Y ‘YSIEWMEY ‘PEOY POOMYUCIA ‘AL PEIY AJBLlld POCMYUOIN

ar

3£ 795 Weysayloy ‘ydned saddn ‘anuaay BuipieH ‘aausn Auunwiwod wiedjouepy

i

SHN0Y
Sruii)

: mw
) S
VIO LA mﬁu__m s.ﬂh:
o
-

=1
3

\
4
1}

ALV1SI TVIHLSHONE
AYMALYE SHL

plaiy buhelg



james.moran_59
Highlight

james.moran_60
Highlight

james.moran_61
Highlight

james.moran_62
Line

james.moran_63
Line


SWALLOWNTSY

(=]

THUREROFT 1

BRAMFION
EM LE
MORTHEK

KA | TreetonYouth & Community Centre, Church Lane, Treeton, Rotherham 560 5PZ

KB | AstonFencel & | School, Sheffield Road, Woodhouse, Sheffield 513 97D

KC | Swallownest Community Centre, Rotherham Road, Swallownest, Sheffield 526 4UR
KD | AstonFence ) & | School, Sheffield Road, Woodhouse, Sheffield 513 9ZD

KE | UlleyVillage Hall, Main Street, Ulley, Sheffield 526 3YD

KF Gordon Bennett Memorial Hall, Green Arbour Road, Thurcroft, Rotherham 566 90D
KG | AMP Technology Centre, BrunelWay, Catcliffe, Rotherham S60 SWG

0w 12018

Rotherham »
s g

gis@rotherham gov.uk (01709) B23364
Rotherham Metropalitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Rother Vale Ward Riverside House

Main Street

(Current) gg!:ln:.‘;r?'n

G| ebed


james.moran_64
Highlight

james.moran_65
Highlight

james.moran_66
Highlight

james.moran_67
Highlight

james.moran_68
Highlight

james.moran_69
Highlight

james.moran_70
Highlight

james.moran_71
Line

james.moran_72
Line

james.moran_73
Line


vl 095

Page 146 .

198 =]

N s ooy (quaun))
101 sieodion

|tounogy

opze (604 10) 4 Aob weyapor@sIb

HTZ 695 WEYI3Y10Y ‘amig mo||248u0T ‘241ua) uapien plaiisiayeg n
MIT Go5weysayloy [ HI
‘peoy a8pusod ‘(jooyas Aewld 38pusjon 01 xau) ‘a1pua) s,a)doad Bunoi a0e)d UL
HNT 695 WEYISYI0Y ‘“M31N Poomise] ‘aaiuad Ayunwwod suapiegjamsunds | o1
HINZ 595 Weydayloy ‘suapien Aesgmoly ‘221030 Aunwiwod suapien Aeigmopy 11
SDZ 605 Weylayloy ‘aueioon Asjspeq ‘looyas ewd Joow A|jspeg 1
SDE 605 Weylayloy ‘auetioo Asjspeq ‘looyas Aewud Jjoow Asjspeg | a1
¥SE 505 WEeYJISYIoY ‘193115 38puque) ‘(wooy spueld 115) ‘Agsapsaweris | ol
QdT 595 Weyl3yjoy ‘peoy s pJEUDST1S ‘Bauad Agunayl | d1
44T 505 WEeYJSYLoY ‘pROY SUsI3 ‘Biua) Auunwwor) 38e|A poomlses Lal

z -

@ o\& ]
= ,\w&@hl, Fzll el
Zy1y )
ol —aay

o e -
2
= =
P2l LEZE (e 2 YIS W4 \\Z
; s mm.ot&?

JINT) -
JHORYIAS

31VIS3 ONIOYHL
Q00MLS!

affemag

wnesnpy
podsues]

H'1



james.moran_74
Highlight

james.moran_75
Highlight

james.moran_76
Line

james.moran_77
Line

james.moran_78
Line

james.moran_79
Line

james.moran_80
Line

james.moran_81
Line

james.moran_82
Line

james.moran_83
Line


YL 095

Page 147

o215 o (yuaung)
L0 sieiodiog

oo : PIETA TS3M WEIS0IoY

92228 (604 10) A n0B weIB OIS

001 ek w18
v s o A VA

MO

JHT TO5 WEeYI3Y10Y ‘PEOY JUOAUSGUINY ‘211U37 5,Uaip|iyD ANunwiwod yuoam aguiry 1N

IrE T9S WeyIayloy “ded yHomIagquury ‘usain s, ugor 15 ‘'yainyd s,uyor 1s HIN

31T 095 Weyayloy ‘peoy 383|100 ‘aiua) Auunwwod [puuioy] 3 udnolgsely o

QLT 195 Weysayioy yueg ysgno|d ‘jooyas Aewid [yuioyl 4

d1T 195 Weyiayloy ‘aso[D sa1e0 ‘aunuad Ayunwwod Asjuay E1

d¥T 195 WEeYJI3Yloy ‘peOY WEYJ2 ‘jooyoss AMBw 4 WEeyI24 aw

NNZ T95 WEeYI3yloY ‘PEOY J[EPHEQ |00Y2S5 PIOYFH JWN

Iz 195 Weyiayloy ‘peoy [[eymopeay ‘(wooy Aunwwo]) ‘|ooyas Aewl d m3IA MOPESN an
NGz 195 Weylayloy ‘wingyaelg ‘peoy Suueg ‘jooyss Aewid uingyie|g TN



james.moran_84
Highlight

james.moran_85
Highlight

james.moran_86
Highlight

james.moran_87
Highlight

james.moran_88
Highlight

james.moran_89
Highlight

james.moran_90
Highlight

james.moran_91
Highlight

james.moran_92
Highlight

james.moran_93
Line

james.moran_94
Line

james.moran_95
Line

james.moran_96
Line

james.moran_97
Line

james.moran_98
Line

james.moran_99
Line

james.moran_100
Line


vl 095

Page 148

1saljS Uiy CC@;.‘_DOV
SSN0H BpIsIBAY
101 sziodiog

|tounogy

poEeze (604 10) ¥ nob weyepos@sb

[IL T )

d8t 595 Weysauloy ‘ygiaghiyl ‘sue yied ‘JleH ysued ysiaghayl | IN

1dt595 Weyiayloy ‘plaijuaaey ‘anig poomydalig ‘JleH yslied pjaiyuaaey | HN

Y57 005 Weyiayloy ‘A3jwelg ‘133115 55010 ‘||BH UsUed Asjwelg | oN

T4£ 995 Weuwlayloy apisAuuns ‘aue] jaruapue)d ‘anuad Ayunwwo) apishuung 4N

w595 Weysayloy ‘'ydiaghayl ‘usadg adels ‘aipuad Apunwwosuaaig 3jdels | 3N

33F 595 Weysayloy ‘'ysiaghuyl ‘sue yied ‘jleH ysued ysiaghiyl | aN

AM0 705 WEeYI3yloY ‘Ysiewmey ‘sue]uaaln ‘jooyss fewndooyied sydasor 1sysiewmey | DN
D55 195 YBNoJoqxaAl “1SINyuiy ‘122415 BUIO1IIA ‘211US0 32UN0saY "o 1sinyupy | an

H1S 795 Weyiayloy ‘ysiewmey ‘peoy 1sanyupy ‘Awapesy Aewud [Iypues | vN

g BT



james.moran_101
Highlight

james.moran_102
Highlight

james.moran_103
Highlight

james.moran_104
Highlight

james.moran_105
Highlight

james.moran_106
Highlight

james.moran_107
Highlight

james.moran_108
Line

james.moran_109
Line

james.moran_110
Line

james.moran_111
Line

james.moran_112
Line


L 095 @
WeBYioY
Bang e
BSNoH ey
101 sziodiog
|tounogy i

(luaun))
oeeze (604 10) 4 Aob wewyaiyr@sib

PIEM [[2MIIS

et

[IL T )

¥

¥HT¥ 095 WeISYL1oY "UoIsIUA ‘SUBT [19M0 |BH Ysued uolsiym | D0

DV 095 WEYISYIoY ‘UOISIYM ‘BNUBAY 350[D ||BH ‘|ooyds | 7§ asoon Auop uolsiym | 40

X0t 095 WEYIIYI0Y ‘U0ISIYM, ‘PEOY 3INES |o0Yas | 78 Tuolsiym | 30

¥1E 095 WeYayloy ‘peoy Aimeg 1se3 (|ooyas UBLUMBN 011X3U ) 324N0SaY |BUCIUPPY UBLWUMBN | O
MNE 095 Weylayloy ‘sue]woolg ‘yainydisipoylaw woolg | 20
N8t 095 WEYI3Y10Y ‘aNU3AY S3Y1ET 1U3g “[|BH YaInyJ3s,uaqyind 1s | 90
NI 095 Weyiayioy ‘peoy A3|siaxaim 'yainyd pawloiay payun 2dioyiduizy | VO

T L

syEmgiIng fo

VO



james.moran_113
Highlight

james.moran_114
Line

james.moran_115
Line

james.moran_116
Line

james.moran_117
Line

james.moran_118
Line


Page 150

L 095
weysyoy
ponc 215 N (Juawun)) §
o m_L&umM ‘& weysoUioy
jBunoy | uepjod E@ﬁdﬂﬂ.—a
¥oEEZE (502 L0) A nob weysipoi@siB )

MO

Zr2 95 Yysnoiogxap ‘uoluims ‘peoy yuomiuaa ‘'yoinydisipoylaw Ajjpeaod | 4d
518 95 YIN0oJIogxa N ‘UOIUIMS ‘SA0ID S ‘313UaD plaipjooig a4l | 3d

VNS FO5 USnologqxa ] ‘1sInyupry ‘peoy Mmals mopealy ‘|ooyas Adewd sewouy] 15 | ad
Zd8 #95 UBnoJogxapy ‘UoluIms ‘192415 UOIELS |lBH MD uoluimg [ Dd

INE 95 YyFnoiograw 'uoluims ‘183115 uaan ‘jooyas Aewild usang uoluims | 9d
4HE 95 Yygnolsogxaw ‘uoluims ‘Aempeocig Jooyss AMewild welmzu4 uolums | vd

, W s
wm. . ST 0,
yAENE 5 N, %@
:@:._aﬂs_mw o ,@
= S QU S uoeaigey
P . ,@

53 TYLSNON
LR ROLNIME



james.moran_119
Highlight

james.moran_120
Highlight

james.moran_121
Highlight

james.moran_122
Highlight

james.moran_123
Highlight

james.moran_124
Highlight

james.moran_125
Line

james.moran_126
Line

james.moran_127
Line

james.moran_128
Line


Page 151 P
wipewon
o215 o (Juauny) N
.wu.m_pan.nu

founo) . PIEM AS[IEA

$9E£28 (60410) 4 A0B weeLoi@sIB

D001 w94 S i i 1B
O b)) HoR A VAT

MIZ GOS WEYIIYI0Y ‘@A UopS11eYD ‘Joouas sjuesul adioyiBuiay

o7 505 WEeYJIaY10Y ‘peoY J20neyD ‘anuad s sjdoad Bunoy adioyiBuuay

38£ o5 Weyiayloy ‘peoy Asjea adioyiBuliay ‘jooyas YBiH Mjoyied spiewiag 1s

7€ §95 Weylayloy ‘pecy aaea1n iy ‘{)leH seods) jooyasioiuny aneaio ydiH

[DE 505 WeYIay10Y ‘erled UoYEQ ‘BUe UoYeq ‘(Wooy Ysued) ‘ooyas 17§ 13 Jo D 1yoid Auuul

NHE 505 Weylayloy ‘s¥alg ‘anuany Ydaag ‘|oouyds Aewld 3|epaals]

[o]

[#]

HD

o0

MIE GOS WEYIIYL0Y ‘U0l e ‘peOY Ja1sEIu0d ‘||BH Uslied uoyeqa | 4D
El®]

ano

o0

DHY 595 WELYIaY10Y ‘Uo}ed ‘@aig 2quwelo ‘a11us) 5,UsJpjiyd 931 MOJIA 3YL

TYE 995 WeWayloy ‘apisAuuns ‘suetjamiapueld ‘aiuad Aunwwod spistuuns | 9D

dat 5o5 weysayloy ‘'Yydiaghuyl ‘suet yied ‘|eH ysued ysiaghiyl

=/ eufepy
o | uoyeq

ooy,
BARRG Japun |

|3dHOHFONINYIH |-
sv3



james.moran_129
Highlight

james.moran_130
Highlight

james.moran_131
Line

james.moran_132
Line

james.moran_133
Line


Ra | Harthill Village Hall, Winney Hill, Harthill, Sheffield S26 7YL
RBE | Harthill Village Hall, Winney Hill, Harthill, Sheffield S26 7YL
RC | Todwick Village Hall, Kiveton Lane, Todwick, Sheffield 526 1HJ

RD

Wales Primary School, School Road, Wales, Sheffield 526 50G

RE

Kiveton Park Youth & Comm. Centre, Station Road, Kiveton Park, Sheffield 526 6QQ

RF

Kiveton Park & Wales Village Hall, Walesmoor Avenue, Kiveton Park Sheffield 526 SRG

RG

Peregrine Way Community Centre, Peregrine Way, Harthill, Sheffield 526 7UP

Viking Way Community Centre, Viking Way, Kiveton Park, Sheffield 526 6RX

0w 12018

wymapEeg mehife permmsorn
Crtmn copyripht sl may lead i
ey A Map o L

Rotherham »
ey

Wales Ward

(Current)

gis@rotherham gov.uk (01709) B23364
Rotherham Metropalitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

SB01AE

25| abed


james.moran_134
Highlight

james.moran_135
Highlight

james.moran_136
Line

james.moran_137
Line

james.moran_138
Line


Page 153 i

L 095
weyiayloy
jeails e CCQL_._ DOV e Wy
estolisptient Qe dmysotion
IIunog Bnoiog ueyiodon wewoy PIEA UIEAL
¥oEEZE (502 L0) A nob weysipoi@siB

00|+t S0terx | DY L Al s £ e e 0 ]
A0 i) 3 SR A LTSI P4 T il

£
1 i

!
poop, :
__

em

20 N

Sl JUTES"Y

.(\1‘ !
.m.Dm.

<{ |2
Amg WSS
At bl

1¥J £95 wewsyloy SUIEs{ uodn (IEfA ‘peoy Jooyy ‘asnoygn) Sy SWEsq uodn (TEfA os
O/ £95 weyayloy “SUes uodn (B 1eans welmzy4 ‘jooyss Aewud [eiuald QIEfR 48
4H8 #3S ‘yBnosogxajy ‘uoums ‘fempeolg ‘jooyss AWy Wel|IMZH ] UCIMS 3s

Dd{ €95 WEWEYloY
‘SiiEs{ uodn (ERR ‘peoy poop (ERA](1eH swods) jooyas ybiy anoyies X snid unes as
g/ £95 Wewsyloy “SiEs uodn e[} peoy JUNCWAPLES ‘anua) s usipiyD euciiy QIEfR 28
gg/ £95 wewsyloy SWEs uodn (IEfA ‘peoy yeQ ‘anusd Aeq syeQ gs
Zd/ £95 weysyloy SWES] uodn GiERE ‘ssenbg Aswobuopy “Aeigr) Apunwwo] GiERE vs



james.moran_139
Highlight

james.moran_140
Highlight

james.moran_141
Highlight

james.moran_142
Highlight

james.moran_143
Line

james.moran_144
Line


S S 7 Branieya
i e - \ unnyside
Schs.

TA Flanderwell Early Excellence Centre, FElanderwell Primary School, Greenfield Court, Flanderwell, Hotherham, 566 2JF
B Sunnyside Community Centre, Flanderwell Lane, Sunnyside, Rotherham 566 3RL

TC Bramley Parish Hall, Cross Street, Bramley, Rotherham, 566 254

D Blessed Trinity Catholic Church, Northfield Lane, Wickersley, Rotherham 566 2HF

TE The Grange Zone, Bramley Grange Primary School, Howard Road, Bramley, Rotherham 566 25%

AT Mgt Cappeght Gengraphers A7 MapCa L0

081172018

gisgrotherham gov. uk (01709) 823364

Rotherham Metropalitan Borough Council
Rotherham »

Corporate ICT
oo o ic e Riverside House
Main Street
Rotherham
(Current) SE0 1AE

G| ebed


james.moran_145
Highlight

james.moran_146
Highlight

james.moran_147
Highlight

james.moran_148
Highlight

james.moran_149
Highlight

james.moran_150
Line

james.moran_151
Line

james.moran_152
Line

james.moran_153
Line


YL 095

Page 155

wons wery (yuaun)) I
ssmomepiseay | T =R Rl -
1o spiodiony & weLeyioy

$9E£28 (60410) 4 A0B weeLoi@sIB

FreTpeTr e p——
vt a3 ) S0 Ammm 1

MO

1rE 195 WEYJISYIoY Hied YLOAMIBQUINY ‘U310 S,uyor 15 ‘yaunyds.uygoris | an

Nt 195 Weyiayloy ‘pecy plaiduim ‘Awspedy pjaiduip ‘211usd yinoa | DN

AHT TOS Weylayloy ‘peoy poomydnoy ‘aiiuad wawdojanag |euoissajold weysuoy | an
gyt T0S Weysauloy ‘UBnoigseass ‘asiy ugnologsuniy Jooyas Aewd ySnosgsealn | wN

? 2
D
B\cD
v i
h\” 5
wie4 AN
[Fyedsonibvisseg x..“..
/f o
ATy
s
4«9@%@5%&
ANt 4
:f i 4 M
va {HLUOMYIGNIN G U8
IfeH joqieg A\ wnoy Nsan ! 1
e w =g, 1, 4
aleljog Piaiyed o ame | S .\
) ! & T

Mopefung ayf

prard Burdejd

15_#
HINO¥AsY3y9 SFS I
- ]
aw%\. smm. fhm
Ty
ANy,
O ol

2
SPUYS/ vonetreiq
Wis—=/ abpuqipuiy
Fa

N

07314 390148 Y3aNID

THE

on



james.moran_154
Highlight

james.moran_155
Highlight

james.moran_156
Line

james.moran_157
Line


Page 156

BLOZ/HLEL

vl 09S (moN)
weyiayoy

joalg Ul — _
asnoH apisiony PIEA\ SHOSPOOM ® UOISUY K | %

18 weyayjoy

19 ejetodion
jlaunos yBnosog uepjodonay Weyayoy
poeeze (60L1.0) 0" rob weyisyjoi@sib

TALOZS PI2IRYS ‘INYLeH ‘IiH Asuwpn ‘[leH 28eIA IYLEH | ONY

707 STS PIRIY2YS ‘Uolsuy YUON ‘@nuany jied Jooyls Joiunfyjied uolsuy | ANV

g8 185 dosyIoN 'S1125p00oA, ‘PEOY S||2MBUP|ID ‘||eH 28.|A S1195pooad | ANY

MAS SZS PI21L2YS ‘U0lsUY YInos ‘peoy plRiays ‘Ied Auunwiwod 1sipoylaw uolsuy yinos | ANy
10+ SZS Pl21ays ‘Uolsuy yUoN ‘peoy uolAY WST ‘JleH Ysued uolsuy | INY

707 GZS PIRILaUs ‘'Uolsuy UUON ‘SnNU3AY Jied |ooyds Jolunf jied uolsuy | aNY

dHt 525 PIRIL2YS 'Uolsuy YUoN ‘aaug Ydinguipd ‘jooyas Mewd spuejuasio uolsuy | YNY

spJep\ MaN - G Xipuaddy


james.moran_158
Highlight

james.moran_159
Line


Spring
Wood -~

\}‘\Q’
N
7 T Strait Milg
/| Hardwick : FRIEYA_~
/ it T

.'||"X|..i'."
Groundg

Todwick Common
Farm

Troowicek

comMMan oid H_ﬁy ]
ASD e

Todwick

Prim, Sch.

Low Larthes

Todwick -
Flantation -

———

& winomLe |
THWL

ASA | Aston-cum-Aughton Parish Hall, Rosegarth Avenue, Aston, Sheffield S26 2DB
ASB | Aston Hall Junior & Infant School, Church Lane, Aston, Sheffield S26 2AX

/G| ebed

ASC | Aston Lodge Primary School, Lodge Lane, Aston, Sheffield S26 2BL
ASD | Todwick Village Hall, Kiveton Lane, Todwick, Sheffield $26 1HJ
Paumsu‘:ed from the Ordnance Sury ey mapping withthe PENTHSSIoN ofths COHII’DIIS{ ofHer Maiesly's Stalmﬂery Office QC oW (ODWEM
P S 1o T A S S gis@rotherham.gov.uk (01709) 823364
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council
Rotherham ») Aston & Todwick Ward gprpor:te P:CT
e (New) et e
Rotherham
S601AE
12/11/2018



james.moran_160
Highlight


AUB

Aston-cum-Aughton Parish Hall, Rosegarth Avenue, Aston, Sheffield 526 2DB

AUB | Aston Fence J & | School, Sheffield Road, Woodhouse, Sheffield $13 92D

AUC | swallownest Community Centre, Rotherham Road, Swallownest, Sheffield 526 4UR
AUD | Aston Fence J & | School, Sheffield Road, Woodhouse, Sheffield $13 92D

AUE | Ulley Village Hall, Main Street, Ulley, Sheffield $26 3YD

AUF | Swallownest Community Centre, Rotherham Road, Swallownest, Sheffield 526 4UR
AUG

Aughton Early Years Centre, Main Street, Aughton, Sheffield 526 3XH

Raproduced from the O Surveymapping with the permission of the Contraller ofHer Majesty's Stationery Otfice ©Crown copynght

Unauthonsed reproducti
A-7 Maps Copyright Ge

ges Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceadings. Rotherham MBC Licence No_ 10001
rs'A-Z Map Co. Ltd

Rol_hqrham l)
Borough Council B

121172018

Aughton & Swallownest Ward

(New)

gis@rotherham.gov.uk (01709) 823364
Raotherham Metropolitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

S601AE

8G| ebed


james.moran_161
Highlight

james.moran_162
Highlight

james.moran_163
Highlight

james.moran_164
Highlight

james.moran_165
Line

james.moran_166
Line


Page 159

BLOZ/L LT

3v1 09s (meN)

weylayjoy

NI i

asnoH apisiony PIEM 3[}SED UO)SOg

170 syesodion

rouno? ybnolog uepjodonapy weylayjoy
POEEZ8 (0L LD) ¥n AoB weytsyjoi@siB

P17°02 dew T4 SI0UdRIBO8 S WiuAdoD Sdew 24

0004 0N 03USNT IBN EERLE dunizio P 2 P
yfuddon umouD@ ey 0 Aseuonels 5415808 W J8H 0 JeR0aU0 D 8 po LoIssILUEd Byl ypm Buiddew Asang SIUBLIPID BUIWOY PEINpoIde s

4rg 095 Weyiayioy ‘peoy mopued £01 ‘AnH3UL | |10g

WWZ GOS Weyayloy ‘sueT uoylD ied uoyld ‘Buiping uspies | yog

I'XZ 09S WeYayjoy ‘aueT pooph ‘1ooyos Aewild SPoopA MOPjUBD | ©)ng
Vdg 095 Weysyjoy ‘snoig apse) uolsog ‘spsed uosog | 40g

3SZ 095 Weyiayioy 99e|d 159n9 ‘Wooy gnj Ages woolg | 394

AWZ §9S Weylayjoy ‘sueT uoyD anuad Agunwwoed ybisisienslg | qag
XV G9S Weysyloy 19a0s 11si ‘uoyl|D Yyainyd 1sipoylsy piun | 90g
AJZ 095 weylayioy wansg sebiooly ‘yoinyg jsipoyiey aue jogel | gog
Hdl §9S Weylayjoy ‘peoy suuy 1S ‘weyiayioy a9eidAp | wog

@17 ANJUIARY
W0 El sauspsg eudey

RHEULEH | 351450H
a2/ HYHYIHLON

-

7

DNIAY Tl



james.moran_167
Highlight

james.moran_168
Highlight

james.moran_169
Highlight

james.moran_170
Highlight

james.moran_171
Highlight

james.moran_172
Highlight

james.moran_173
Line

james.moran_174
Line

james.moran_175
Line

james.moran_176
Line

james.moran_177
Line

james.moran_178
Line

james.moran_179
Line

james.moran_180
Highlight

james.moran_181
Highlight


avl 09s
weylayjoy
Jeals uey
asnoH apisiany
170 syesodion
lounog yBnolog uepjodosay Weysyoy
poeezg (604 10) 3N Aob weyseyjoi@siB

Qe weotioy

#1700 dew 2o seydeibioss wluddod sdew T4

BLOZ/ LT

0001 ON #UsNT I8N LR R d a0 Adh 5 1

yfuddos umouD@ 8oy AsBUonelS SA1S80E W JeH 0 JeR0AU0D 8 po LoISSILUSd Byl yprm Buiddew Asang 8aUBLRUD Ul WY PeINpoIdey

HOWNOD
a3INIAYY_ -

L =
\Q

1
piem proyuaney § Aiuesg

SLHI80Y |
NOLOOH {

NOWWOD

NOLOOH

ASZ 005 Weylayioy ‘Asjwelg ‘peoy piemoH jooyos Aewily 2buelq Asjwelg ‘auoz abuelg ay | 148

d8b 695 wewayioy ybiaghiyl ‘suesed leH ysted ybiaghiyl | gyug

1db §9S Weyiayioy ‘pRijuaARY ‘SALIJ Poomyolg lBH Ysied priusAeY | qug

VST 995 Weiayioy ‘Asjwelq 19ans ssoi) e usued Asjwelg | nyg

VST 995 Weyiayioy ‘Asjwelq 19ang ssoi) e usued Asjwelg | gug

S11 995 wewsyjoy “Asjwielq ‘sue yseld ‘anua) s sjdoad Buno A Jejeys g ‘Asjwelg | vyg



james.moran_182
Highlight

james.moran_183
Line

james.moran_184
Line


Page 161

M3

3vL 09S A Zv
weylayjoy

leadls uep PIEff YHOMSUIIG

asnoH apisiany

170 syesodion
lounog yBnolog uepjodosay Weysyoy
poeezg (604 10) 3N Aob weyseyjoi@siB

0 i Ao

Q004 ON 03USHT AW wowiuo y §0u

BLOZ/L LT

1700 deg 2o seydeibioss wluldod sdew T4
Tubuddod UsosD Se0uLY W uwonINEosdes PESUOYINBUN
yfuAdos umou D @ BaYE 0 AIBU0RIS 5415308 JEH 0 SRDAUOT B0 UD|SSILLSd sUl Uk BUIddEL ASAINS BILBLRIG UL WOY PRINpoIdey

4NS 09S WeYIBYloy ‘'Yuomsuug ‘aueT jauog ‘Uainyo Smalpuy 1S

4MH

1HS 09S WEWIaUIoY ‘Yuomsuug ‘sAuq JIMOH ‘[00U2S Alewild [IUsHUM YHoMSULg

amd

UIG 09S WeyIaUyioy ‘Yuomsuug ‘sueT [IUsiiup Jooyds Alewild UUBMOH UHOMSULE

QM-

NES 09S WELIAIoY ‘Yuomsulg ‘sueT yuomsuug ‘JleH Aunwwo yuomsuug

dMH

10S 09S WeYIsyloy ‘UHoMSULG ‘PEOY pIojsullg ‘a1jusD AHUNLWILOYD IS\ WEBLISUIoY

hfitits

YIS Witid
il yuem mr_

nuvf»)_m

ol D)

oeE|
W %ﬁw Mu 5
S/

100Y38
aAISUBYaIdWO)
YLIOMSULIG
o

.\‘/_,'/'

6\
A
AT

=]
=

=

ew.o.w Fy ._\V A Q \
=T 5140 .
BN, : S o 2

354107 4109
XINFOHd

N

<

==

\
A
Y
v
0

=

SHIOM T
woneii

M \@

.

JSHN0J 4708 XINFOHd /

d

(i}



james.moran_185
Highlight

james.moran_186
Highlight

james.moran_187
Line

james.moran_188
Line

james.moran_189
Line


av1 098
weyeyioy
loas wEW

asnoH apiany
10l sieiodiog
lrounog

¥9EE28 (602 10) 4 A0B weya 0@ siB

_umows uzmm .

PIEAA UBISGAIGL % Uoleqd T -
frrchon

| & frieme

0 kit 100 2y
Ty
0 M g parpariely

T
v e ) Ko 0 A LA

eudely
uojjeq

7€ §9S weusauoy ‘peoy aneaus UbiH ‘(jleH spods) ‘jooyos sounraneig UbiH | gyg
M3IE G895 WeyIayloy ‘uoyeq ‘Peoy Jajseauod JIeH Usled uoled | gyg

rOE §9S Weypyloy ‘erled uoyeq ‘aueT uoyeq (Wooy ysued) 10040S | B 1 340 DYoID Al | gyg
DHP §9S WeWawoy ‘uoleq 2AuQ aquwelod ‘anuad susIpiyd aall Mollm 3Ul | gyg
33y 69S Weyiswoy ‘ybiaghiy ‘aueTyied ‘IeH ysued 4Byl | qyg

Yay 595 wewayiey ‘ybiagiliy] ‘usaig adels ‘anuan Ajunwwon usalg ajdels ava
d8F 595 Weyayloy 'ybiaqiiy) ‘aueyied ‘JleH ysued ubegfiyl | wyq



james.moran_190
Highlight

james.moran_191
Highlight

james.moran_192
Highlight

james.moran_193
Highlight

james.moran_194
Line

james.moran_195
Line

james.moran_196
Line


Page 163

BLOZ/L LT

v 098 (maN)
weylayjoy
Joauls ey TErTUSTRTTATS _
asnoH apisieny Piep uojbuluuiq \| -
121 Em__oEo.o & wewsayioy
jlaunos yBnosog uepjodonay Weyayoy
poeeze (60L1.0) 0" rob weyisyjoi@sib

Arg 18S dosyiopy qoaqiid ‘peoy maN ‘lleH abelia399aid | 1yiq

408 185 dosxiop) ‘Jl2meT ‘peoy sspeH Jexieq JleH abeliA 1w | g

908 185 dosyiony ‘spaspoop) ‘peoy sjEmbulpio JleH abeia sHaspoop | 41

® XMZ 5ZS Ppliays ‘uojbuluuig ‘peOY |IIH UOISUIMS | flBH ydinyD DY sudssoris | gig
S 47 7S pRIYaYs ‘uoibuiuuig ‘peoy uoybne ‘anuan 20inosay uoibuuug aiqa

SOE GZS PlRrWBYS "uolbuiuuig ‘peoy abpugsxuopy snusd Ayunwiwod abpugsyuoiy | o
SOE GZS PlRWRYS ‘uojbuiuuiq ‘peoy abpugsyuopy anua) Ayunwiwo) abpugsyueiy | gig
AAlL §ZS PIRIHAYS ‘usyuoN-al-ua-uolybneT ‘snuany ¥oaqui4 ‘JleH abeqi uobneT | g

puep, volBuug

NOLOOH 3015

HyYI



james.moran_197
Highlight

james.moran_198
Oval

james.moran_199
Oval


BLOZILWEL
av1 09 (MaN)
weylayjoy
Jeals uey
asnoH apisiany
170 syesodion
lounog yBnolog uepjodosay Weysyoy
poeezg (604 10) 3N Aob weyseyjoi@siB

#1700 dew 2o seydeibioss wluddod sdew T4
0004 0K 83USHT JBIN uwdoy §0u dpaizdo P hd 2 l P
yBuAd0T UMOID @ 200 AISUDNRIS 5 A5 J8H 10 JBR0ALD 81110 UDISEIUET BU} LM BUIJIBL ASAING SIUBLIPIY BULWOY PeanpoIdes

NV 19S Wewiayjoy ‘peoy playbuipy Alspedy pjaybuip ‘enusd YINoA | =y
AHT 195 wewsyoy ‘peoy poomybnoy ‘snuan wawdoaaaq [euoissajold weybumooy aasy
A4y 10S weylayioy ‘'ybnoigseals ‘asiy ybnologsunpy ‘jooyas Aewud ybnoigseals )

w.ie4 i
Ihadioyibusseg o

i)

L2 < Buiids

T adsoyibuisseg
i 3

Znani ‘4 al
fuvg o _
£ !
1eH Bﬁmm@ i \\
g
abe}I09 pj2iHEd (Hiloayyg \
O \
mopelbung ayj m,...u i
[z
Z0S,
\\\M,..w_._ Q% Sm— : -
a0 < Wil 1034V = JI4ONIM

.j.:iDHJ (<)

NHOOY) <

B
A

Y34,
- o
NUTJVM‘

Ll
PN
e =1
=
=

—
[ o3

WIS Wikid =S
M7 bN0IgsEDIY & g

3 B [ -
WS = e
SIS =3 =\

| b Qhun_!-ll.uruuullﬂ.

/%mcm. < Jouepy ?&%Hn uoieud

JOPUID// yonerirery 2= g 3377
> WEIUBI / s X009,
oﬁu [ abpuqiapul)y 7 0%
£

S . u

m v ]

I woneuey
=\ abpLgiapuiy

07314 390148 H3ANID



james.moran_200
Highlight

james.moran_201
Highlight

james.moran_202
Highlight


Nt
=l
S

.
[ —
==
o>
=1
=_I

Hilltop School, Larch Road, Maltby, Rotherham S66 8AZ

gis@rotherham.gov.uk (01709) 823364
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council

Corporate ICT
Riverside House
Main Street
Rotherham

S60 1AE

(New)
G9| ebed

HEA | Centenary Hall, Bateman Road, Hellaby, Rotherham S66 8HB

HEB

HEC | Maltby Linx Youth & Comm_ Centre, Lilly Hall Road, Maltby, Rotherham S66 8BE

HED | The Grange Warden Centre, St. Bartholomew's Close, Maltby, Rotherham S66 8NH
HEE | The Grange Warden Centre, St. Bartholomew's Close, Maltby, Rotherham S66 8NH

121172018



james.moran_203
Highlight

james.moran_204
Highlight

james.moran_205
Highlight

james.moran_206
Highlight

james.moran_207
Highlight

james.moran_208
Line

james.moran_209
Line

james.moran_210
Line

james.moran_211
Oval

james.moran_212
Oval


..........

HOA | Brampton Bierlow Parish Hall, Knollbeck Lane, Brampton Bierlow Barnsley S73 0TX \
HOB | wentworth Mechanics Institute, Main Street, Wentworth, Rotherham S62 7TL f°% bl HOL
HOC | west Melton Primary School, Stokewell Road, West Melton, Rotherham S63 6NF oy
HOD | Christchurch Hall, Christchurch Road, Wath upon Dearne, Rotherham S63 MW ?ﬂ
HOE | wentworth Mechanics Institute, Main Street, Wentworth, Rotherham S62 7TL \Coranerong K778
HOF | Harley Church, Harley Road, Harley, Rotherham S62 7UD o Ty
HOG | Trinity Community Centre, Sough Hall Avenue, Thorpe Hesley, Rotherham S65 2Q.) _ e HOA [y
HOH | wentworth Mechanics Institute, Main Street, Wentworth, Rotherham S62 7TL a g R 5 v O
HOI | Wath upon Dearne RUFC Clubhouse, Moor Road, Wath upon Dearne, Rotherham S63 TRT : '.< < $
~ [(HOA
HOD
.ﬂ.ﬂ . HOB
> Ty .HOB
L g ) Lok Lea Brook B - ::
: G J.I .:F.L;f
W{ Wa'ﬂ-\ i
-"Ez."r,w _{Jﬂ_rlkﬁ?’_‘f l‘?’!’& 2 h ¢ &g 4 i
?_._ - , : Sy g g 1 O L B Ccf"wm" 6O G ER THR
: .mmvéc-aﬁ- .12]\5':»_,4;%) 2 i R\ % *r e Hogbes /)

{455 Nether Haugh

D). v

Reproduced from the Crdn
Unauthorised reprodu

arofHer Majesty's Station
ight and may lead to prosecution or civil procas,

2 Survey mapping with the permission ofthe Con & Crown copyright

 Licence No. 10001

&2 Maps Copyright G eographers' &-Z Map Co. Ltd

Rotherham m ) Hoober Ward
serom s I

(New)

121112018

gis@rotherham.gov.uk (01709) 823364
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

S601AE

99| abed


james.moran_213
Highlight

james.moran_214
Highlight

james.moran_215
Highlight

james.moran_216
Highlight

james.moran_217
Highlight

james.moran_218
Highlight

james.moran_219
Highlight

james.moran_220
Highlight

james.moran_221
Highlight

james.moran_222
Line

james.moran_223
Line

james.moran_224
Line


Page 167

BLOZILWEL
3w 098 (meN)

weylayjoy

b PIEM 13393y
asnoH apisiany
170 syesodion
lounog yBnolog uepjodosay Weysyoy
poeezg (604 10) 3N Aob weyseyjoi@siB

0001 0N 83U JBN W0 $0u
whuddog umolD @ sayyo A

e JDZ 195 wewsyjoy ‘AsisaH adioyl |IiH ¥ooig ‘siusd AHUNWWOD SHIOMHY | 43y
rE 19S WeWsyjoy Hied YHOAUBJWIY 'ussl9) S,uyor 1S yanyd suuyoris | gay

1M€ 19S WeyIayjoy ‘peoy 3ied YUoauaquury anuad #aisiyd | qgy

THE 19S WeWayjoy ‘peoy poomybnoy ‘jooyos Aewld poomubnoy | gy

DYZ 19S Weulayjoy abej|IA S8|ouds "UoliAed 180U SB|oUdS | gy

MZ oS weylayioy ‘As|say adioy] ‘snusAy ||leH ybnos ‘anusd Ajunwiwony Ajluu | v

T
pooy Jaqieg
-.w_

aa/dda]
$3/045

aNNoYD

S3T0HIS

apeIses
L7



james.moran_225
Highlight

james.moran_226
Highlight

james.moran_227
Highlight

james.moran_228
Line

james.moran_229
Line

james.moran_230
Oval

james.moran_231
Oval


Page 168

A\SOZV SI0ZIL 42D
vl 08S
weysyoy
j9als uley o
BSNOH apisiomy ] 1 \ [
10l ajesodion & weyayoy
lounog yBnolog uepjodosay Weysyoy
poeezg (604 10) 3N Aob weyseyjoi@siB

21100 dew T ieydesBoss wiuAdos sdew 24
0001 9N 630637 I8N g CELENE] Sk ]

yBuAT0D UMOID @ 300 AISUDNRIS 5 M550 N J6H 10 JSN0NUD 8110 UDISEILET BUl UM BUIddEW ABAINS SIUBLPIY UL WOY PeanpoIdey

2 ﬁ% SYIOM

oz,zﬁ%m

g QOONNIE )
% RITELL

a
o=

NS i
TS YL

U= L SNINTp
witio)|Z MO TN

ommw

. o Q&\
\_”\s. \34 ....mm

_wm._a._E.w:az_ ia._.z__;w
QYA NOLNIMS \VV

. ELINE
) NOLNINSS

A10)08
~ y N Y w0~ ity
T et \M )A@ _Iﬂ_m.:x.mw_
Ay
¥/
~d 4 m\v» S9SN0YasBA)
—
S
Ky

Zrg ¥9S UBN0IOGXa|N ‘UOJUIMS ‘PBOY YUOAJUBAA ‘U2INUD ISIPOUaiN AllIPeIdId | qpy

VNS ¥9S UBN0oIogxajy I1SINYuiny ‘peoy MaiA MOPEa|N ‘[00YaS AL SBWOYL IS | oy
918 95 UBNoIogxajy ‘UOJUIMS ‘BA0ID) BWIT ‘a1jua) plauyoold UL | gpy

DSS ¥9S UBnologxapy ‘ISINyUyY 1831 BUOPIA ‘@1JUaD 82IN0SaY WO ISINYUID | vy



james.moran_232
Highlight

james.moran_233
Highlight


Page 169

3v1 09s (meN)
weyiayioy
Joo)S LRI T — _
asnoH apisiony PIEM ISE] AQHEWN “.”.,‘

10| @jelodion € weyeayjoy

jlaunos yBnosog uepjodonay Weyayoy
poeeze (60L1.0) 0" rob weyisyjoi@sib

BLOZ/L LT

f

. - : AvIN
- avIN

MIN/ 995 WeLI2g10y AQYE|N Su2pIeg puB|pooj), =0ua7) Alunwiaon) 121s04 saeyD [ 49
DN/ 005 Weylayioy "AQie |y ‘2500 UoISU30SY 21Ua) USpIBA) 250]0) uoisuzosy | Iy
Nrl 99S Weysyioy "Agye|y sue Bbnpy ‘jooyds Atewid dajoyed sAey 1S Agieiy | Qv
DN/ 995 Weysayioy ‘Agye|N "PeoY (U211 leH [euowS| uung piemp3 [ DV
ars 99s weyLyoy ‘Agyey ‘peoy yilig snuad Asisap | gy
N8 09S weyayioy aaug Ase (wooy Auunwiwony) "Awspeay Jouey Aguew | wwi



james.moran_234
Highlight

james.moran_235
Highlight

james.moran_236
Highlight

james.moran_237
Highlight

james.moran_238
Line

james.moran_239
Line

james.moran_240
Line

james.moran_241
Line


Page 170

(maN)
avl 09s

weylayjoy

Jeals uey

asnoH apisiany

170 syesodion

lounog yBnolog uepjodosay Weysyoy
poeezg (604 10) 3N Aob weyseyjoi@siB

PIEfATSET USIEWMEY

BLOZ/L LT

21100 dew T ieydesBoss wiuAdos sdew 24

0004 0K 83USHT JBIN uwoy 55 CELENE] ek 3

yBuAT0D UMOID @ 300 AISUDNRIS 5 M550 N J6H 10 JSN0NUD 8110 UDISEILET BUl UM BUIddEW ABAINS SIUBLPIY UL WOY PeanpoIdey

Welsyloy

‘ E’ﬁﬂ_se._ ;

IS HSNBATOR

an e SA ]
ST :..:HIE.._ o=
| L

[ = =1 =
= YiHOLJ1A .A_m ][} ,_Em _:W
\.lll_ﬁw =S .ﬂ =22, =, =

S 2R

e ﬂUDnN_ﬂHPn—Dm.
354N00 e e
47089 ﬁHHnH%H >0

aooMannod W NOLYE

NEAR <
milldss =

abpug
yBiaqin

s

B TTHSVAd 3

H spfald buieqd\ \z)

140493ny BRE

Ty
P
1 “

A

ELL R

aAlasay ainjey
pasy uAmg

LAy 1)
WC‘—_
= SOuTHW

9 SSINISA SOa Awapeoy i wing
IS 1SHIANTE IHUDUES e

WiSon
Mo

HS 295 Weylayloy ysiewmey ‘peoy isinyurny ‘Awspeosy Aewud [ypues

a3vy

909 795 WEYIay0y ‘Ysiewmey ‘2so|7) Jlrysiely ‘anuan) Auunwiwuon aso|D) [[eysiey

23V

MOIS 29S Weyiayloy Ysielumey ‘19211 Yinog j0oyos SIUeiU| JoloaAy ysieLumey

g3avd

AMO 795 WeYIag1oy Ysiewmey ‘aue uaauo ‘Jooyoss Aewiud ojoyien sydasor 1S ysiewmey

vavd



james.moran_242
Highlight

james.moran_243
Highlight

james.moran_244
Highlight

james.moran_245
Highlight

james.moran_246
Line

james.moran_247
Line


mﬁ____‘ wa A\SQZV BLOZILWEL
weylayjoy

Jeals uey

asnoH apisiany

170 syesodion

lounog yBnolog uepjodosay Weysyoy
poeeze (60L1.0) 0" rob weyisyjoi@sib

21100 dew T ieydesBoss wiuAdos sdew 24

1H9 295 ot o s s i
Em_._hm_._”_.ﬁum nm”_.mm_u__hm.n_ n”_.mmh_.m ”_.._.m_n_ E_._U_l_ n._””—__u__]_ _._.D_”_.mﬁzu_:.ﬂn: H_._u._u_._..z.u_m _ ﬁ _J EOEM.{. F—MHWE%E m___._c_.__.__ﬂ..m yBUADED UMOLD @ 83U AIBUONELS 5A1530 A JBHI0 SBR0NUGD 81110 UDISEILLSd SUl LM BUddEL ASAMYS BILBLPIQ Ul WOy PRanpoIdey

N9 Z9S Weyayloy ‘Usiewmey 18NS UBIH ‘YoInuD 1SIPOUIR|N USIBWMEY | qpavy

80/ 295 Weysyoy ‘ysiewmey 1925 ALenD ‘leH AWy UOIBAIRS | Ay

ar/ £9s Weyiayloy Ysielmey ‘peoy poosmyuoly ‘Aluspedy AR pOOMYUOLY aMvy

3

03/ 795 wWewayoy ybney Jjeddn ‘anusny BuipieH ‘snuas) Anunwuwio ) wie- 10uB)y

A b L NIV i
U
; _Qg_hm.um
v 183 Hmesnan 29 WNIGv oo
AWIALYS L ﬁumm_ms_
SYI0M
- 401y

vl
1 we

k.

ybuey

8snoy
| AlioH
!

.U.rr
,a‘\:,. %Wmm 0
Ei i

HONYH ¥3ddN .

-

asnoH ualiey



james.moran_248
Highlight

james.moran_249
Highlight

james.moran_250
Line


\A}
Treetan
Junction

Sports
/ Gr%und

J el

11 6id Flatts
F

¥

2

¥5

oS

5 —’]‘_l_l‘;"'ﬁ* LR

e o

WSk f {{gﬂ* VAo
Ui fg'&o- 6L
—_—

'-Q\\\

TN Sports, ‘..\
v NGround 2 W
W

OPENCAST WORKINGS

o
Tl

Pav.y 5~ ;
Plapgras®, )

Settling Tanks
oo r Sewage Works %,
S.".uage,,’ QO Fitter &

Beds; jOQQBeds

=JL000 7

N
\>=~/Bole Hill
J Plantation
'

5 ,?' & Spa Well

Spa House

5
Bole Spa Houses ~<x.
ill S
s P
B
RVC Spa Hilt AT
< N g
’_/\\\ \\\\ :\\
/ s Burnt Wood W
,'/ \:\ PN \]J
o, / W
B, NS o4 A\ Packmd
( N Bridge
| T ™
I |."; Gas_ﬁ_fve
(- S | Compound|
S/ S Burial 6rd
’,:J;’, o
Treeton et

Grange TN

Sfudge O
Tanks

i

TREETON. -~~~ A
\‘_\-‘\ WQODI:_L—"

/!
hS
L
1
1

RVA]

Catcliffe Memorial Hall, Old School Lane, Catcliffe, Rotherham 560 55F

RVB

AMP Technology Centre, Brunel Way, Catcliffe, Rotherham 560 5WG

RVC

Treeton Village Community Hub, Pit Lane, Treeton, Rotherham S60 ECIT.

RVD

AMP Technology Centre, Brunel Way, Catcliffe, Rotherham 560 5WG

Reproduced from the Ordnance Surveymapping with the permission of the Controlisr ofHer Majesty's Stationary Otfice ©Crown copynght
Unauthonised reproduction infenges Crown copynight and may lead to prosecution orcvil procaedings. Rotherham MEBC Licence No. 10001
#-Z Maps Copynight Geographers’ A-Z Map Co. Ltd

Rotherham »

Malropuidan
Barough Catmei|

1211172018

Rother Vale Ward
(New)

gis@rotherham.gov.uk (01709) 823364
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

S601AE

2/ | ebed


james.moran_251
Highlight

james.moran_252
Highlight

james.moran_253
Line

james.moran_254
Oval

james.moran_255
Oval


Page 173

BLOZILWEL
avl 09s
weyayjoy (maN)
Jeals uey
asnoH apisiany
170 syesodion
liounog yBrolog ueyjodoss|y weyiayjoy PIEfAISE] WEYIA oY

poeezg (604 10) 3N Aob weyseyjoi@siB

21100 dew T ieydesBoss wiuAdos sdew 24
0001 0N 03U IBM CERL dpaizJo Sk 3
yBuAT0D UMOID @ 300 AISUDNRIS 5 M550 N J6H 10 JSN0NUD 8110 UDISEILET BUl UM BUIddEW ABAINS SIUBLPIY UL WOY PeanpoIdey

MIZ §9S Weuayioy ‘aaug uodapeyd jooyds siuejul adiobulia | rgoy

®vas o5 Weuieyloy ‘peoy AsiieA adiouibuLLIRH (LW00Y Uslied) YNy dlouie) sKIej 1S 130y

HZ 595 Weysayioy ‘aaug mojjpybuc ‘anuad uspieps pRusIded | w30y

ML GO9S Weyspoy
‘proy abpuajon (jooyas Alewlyg a2bpusjon 011xau) ‘anuad sadoad Bunoj 20e|d 2uUL 930y

3

HMI SOS Weylayioy ‘mals poomise] ‘aaua) Ayunwiwo suaples lembunds 130

HNZ 595 Weylayoy ‘suapiec Aeigmoy ‘aaua Auunwiwo ) suapiec ABIigmoy 330y

®  4DZ59S Weysyioy ‘aueT Jooj A2ispeg L6k ‘IIEH YoInyD isideg weyryoy | qoy

XSZ 95 Weyiayioy 12ans abpuquie) (wooy siouelq 18) ‘AsapssWweris | ngoy

adl §9S Weyisyloy ‘peoy s pieuosTis ‘anusd AN sul | g0y

4¥1 695 Weyiayioy ‘peoy aunjsi3 ‘anual Apunwiwo) abejip poomises | ygoy

2

47

44
)

a2

/{3?

0
Vo)
Pc VAL
DILLIAA=S

SYRON

CHIFL L
B

JHORYLS

==
—
-
-
-

51109~

wnasnjy
yodsuelj



james.moran_256
Highlight

james.moran_257
Highlight

james.moran_258
Highlight

james.moran_259
Highlight

james.moran_260
Highlight

james.moran_261
Highlight

james.moran_262
Highlight

james.moran_263
Highlight

james.moran_264
Highlight

james.moran_265
Highlight

james.moran_266
Highlight

james.moran_267
Line

james.moran_268
Line

james.moran_269
Line

james.moran_270
Line

james.moran_271
Line

james.moran_272
Line

james.moran_273
Line

james.moran_274
Oval

james.moran_275
Oval

james.moran_276
Oval

james.moran_277
Oval


Winterhill
Youth Centre

Playing Field
N

8
24

s

E S Meatlow View
\?‘Prfm. Sch.
57/

- K|S
MEADOW EANK% £ .

Q INDUSTRIAL
ESTATE

>

5t Thomas Community Hall, High Street, Rotherham S61 2BH

Blackburn Primary School, Baring Road, Blackburn, Rotherham 561 2BU

Meadow View Primary School, (Community Room), Meadowhall Road, Rotherham 561 24D

Kelford School, Oakdale Road, Rotherham 561 2MU

Ferham Primary School, Ferham Road, Rotherham 561 1AP

Henley Community Centre, Oates Close, Rotherham 561 1TP

Thornhill Primary School, Clough Bank, Rotherham S61 1TD

Masbrough & Thomhill Community Centre, College Road, Rotherham 560 1JE

Reproduced from the Ordnance Surveymapping with the permission of the Controlisr ofHer Majesty's Stationary Otfice ©Crown copynght
Unauthonised reproduction infenges Crown copynight arcwil MBC Licence No. 10001
#-Z Maps Copynight Geographers’ A-Z Map Co. Ltd

12/11/2018

Kimberworth Community Children's Centre, Kimberworth Road, Rotherham 561 1HE

Rotherham West Ward

(New)

gis@rotherham.gov.uk (01709) 823364
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

S601AE

/1 ebed


james.moran_278
Highlight

james.moran_279
Highlight

james.moran_280
Highlight

james.moran_281
Highlight

james.moran_282
Highlight

james.moran_283
Highlight

james.moran_284
Highlight

james.moran_285
Highlight

james.moran_286
Line

james.moran_287
Line

james.moran_288
Line

james.moran_289
Line

james.moran_290
Highlight

james.moran_291
Oval

james.moran_292
Oval


Page 175

A>>®Zv BLOZILLEL

YL 095
weylayjoy

j9alls uley —_—

asnoH apisiony PIEA [IDMUIS w‘ -
10| @jelodion € weyeayjoy

j1ounog ybnolog uepjodonay weysayjoy
poeeze (60L1.0) 0" rob weyisyjoi@sib

Jg¢ 695 ‘wewayloy ‘peoy Asjes SUIOUIBULEH ‘jooyog ybiy dijoyied s piewag s HIS

XHF 098 Weysyloy USSR ‘sueT 13p IIEH Ysued UBTSIORR 0|15

O 095 Weyayloy TSGR "anuany aso|d |y |ooyds | g [ 500G ALGAA UTTSTIA JIS

XOF 095 Weysyjoy USEIIA ‘peoy 8||Aeg jooyas | '§ [ UBIEI]A 35

XE 095 Wweyayloy ‘peoy KIWEF 1se] (jooyag UBLWMSN O} 1x8U) 82IN0S3Y [EUOIIPPY UBLUMSN as
MME 095 Wewayloy ‘auewoolg ‘yaunyg Isipoyis|y woolg 1S

NG 095 WeWayloy ‘Bnuany sayie] uag ‘Jley Yauny s uaquing 1S als

NIt 095 weysyloy ‘peoy RSEIFYSIA "yaunyg pawojey payun SAIGHBULEH IS



james.moran_293
Highlight

james.moran_294
Highlight

james.moran_295
Highlight

james.moran_296
Highlight

james.moran_297
Highlight

james.moran_298
Highlight

james.moran_299
Highlight

james.moran_300
Line

james.moran_301
Line

james.moran_302
Line

james.moran_303
Line

james.moran_304
Line


llouno YBnoliog yeyjodosjepy wWeyayioy
$9e€Z8 (604 L)) yn' nob weyeyoi@sib

Page 176

Ma

vl 08S A Zv

weylayjoy

ioauIs Ul PIEA WEUBUN 50y UCTUTRS

8SNoH apisiomy
170 syesodion

BLOZ/L LT

1700 deg 2o seydeibioss wluldod sdew T4

Q004 ON 03USHT AW wowiuo y §0u ] i A ReBuAdod Unos 500U UeNINE0s0N pRSLIUINEUN

yBuAD0D UMOID @ 20O AISUDNRIS 5 M550 JEH 0 JSH0RUOD S0 UDISSIULIEd SU Lm BUIddeL A8AMS 8IUBURIG BU) WoY Peanpoldel

4H8 #9S Ubnoiogxaly ‘uoIuIMS ‘ABMPEOIG '|00UIS AlBWIL WEN|IMZ)I{ UOJUIMS

AMS

Zd2 #9S ubnologxsjy ‘uUojuIMS 19a1S UONE]S [|BH JIAID UOIUIMS

OMS

JN2 #05 ybnologxs|y ‘'UoiuIMS 193l UsanD jooyds AMelWlld UsanD UoIUIMS

HMS

4H8 $95 Ubnologxajy ‘ucjuims ‘Aempeolg ‘|ooyds AMeLd WelIMZ)4 UoJUIMS

YMS

.J - \

NOLNIMS / 0N RIUEly N
- auy
1 ;Iﬂfn;:\ Jo0weyoelg

-\» -....-.f/.{
S\ NOILVINY I V/\
7

[ poam
“\ I./&%ugui
=

| 8021109
s sadasy
S~ o= | voneued

paiausog

o :

Guifejd .E_om § Z \.co..m._ &‘ﬁx
; \00( 0 45 ”

2\oja) :
> 2R
H twm%k &

n

gl 3

il §
I 3V >
_szzm_f I
N\ IS i
%Q%@ Loy
53, .
SO e
XYL 5 N\, ;
EW =

0y STIHLNS 4
Lie

AY
Y
Ay



james.moran_305
Highlight

james.moran_306
Highlight

james.moran_307
Highlight

james.moran_308
Highlight

james.moran_309
Line

james.moran_310
Line


Page 177

Ma

vl 09S (MON)

weyisyoy

199l}S Ule PIEM UINOS AS[SIO9NDIW 8 JOIoINYL a

asnoH apisiany
170 syesodion

lounog yBnolog uepjodosay Weysyoy
poeezg (604 10) 3N Aob weyseyjoi@siB

0‘ . ;
@ welayjoy

BLOZ/L LT

21100 dew T ieydesBoss wiuAdos sdew 24

0004 0N 63USHT AN oWy $0us dpniz e 1] ek +f

yBuAT0D UMOID @ 300 AISUDNRIS 5 M550 N J6H 10 JSN0NUD 8110 UDISEILET BUl UM BUIddEW ABAINS SIUBLPIY UL WOY PeanpoIdey

NOLdWrHE

06 995 WEWSUIoY HoI2INY ] PEOY INOGIY USBID ||BH [ELIOWS|N JBuusg uopio

gdHLl

S31 995 Wewayioy 'A3|SIxdIz BUET uaunyd ‘weg yainyd syl

WHL



james.moran_311
Highlight

james.moran_312
Highlight


W -
14 Bedgraae New il &
Rathed Vadley Covery Pi
b Vistors Ceetre

N

WOODALL
COMMON

Kiveton Park |

Station

WAA | Harthill Village Hall, Winney Hill, Harthill, Sheffield $26 7YL

WAB | wales-Kiveton Methodist Church, School Road, Wales, Sheffield 526 5QJ

WAC | 0Id Caolliery Offices (training room), Colliery Road, Kiveton Park, Sheffield S26 6LR @

WAD | Kiveton Park & Wales Village Hall, Walesmoor] Avenue, Kiveton Park Sheffield S26 5RG

WAE | peregrine Way Community Centre, Peregrine Way, Harthill, Sheffield S26 7UP

WAF | viking Way Community Centre, Viking Way, Kiveton Park, Sheffield $26 6RX

Reproduced from the Ordnance Surveymapping with the permission of the Controlisr ofHer Majesty's Stationary Otfice ©Crown copynght
Unauthonised reproduction infenges Crown copynight and may lead to prosecution orcvil procaedings. Rotherham MEBC Licence No. 10001
#-Z Maps Copynight Geographers’ A-Z Map Co. Ltd

Rotherham »
i)

\stropoia
Barough Catmei|

12/11/2018

Wales Ward

(New)

gis@rotherham.gov.uk (01708) 823364
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council
Corporate ICT

Riverside House

Main Street

Rotherham

S60 1AE

g/ | ebed


james.moran_313
Highlight

james.moran_314
Highlight

james.moran_315
Highlight

james.moran_316
Highlight

james.moran_317
Highlight

james.moran_318
Highlight

james.moran_319
Line

james.moran_320
Oval

james.moran_321
Oval

james.moran_322
Oval

james.moran_323
Oval


Page 179

8LOZ/LLEL
3vl 09S (meN)
weyiayjoy
1981]S UIB
asnoH apisiony [EIE

170 syesodion
l1ounog yBnosog UeljodoljB |y Weyiayjoy
#9e£28 (604 1.()) N A0B Weysayjoi@sib

P17 '97 de 2o, SeudeBoe s WOuAdoD SdBN I
Q004 ON 03USHT AW wowiuo y §0u ] i A ReBuAdod Unos 500U UeNINE0s0N pRSLIUINEUN
yfuA0D UMEUD D B3UHD AIBUONEIS 541580 JEH 10 JBR0NUG D B0 UDISSIEd By Ui Buddew A8AMnS 8aUBUPIQ Sl WY peanpouda

14/ £95 wesyjoy “SUIESE uodn YIERA ‘peoy Joojy ‘ssnoygnid TIY SWESE uodn [IER JHMN
OH/ £9S Weyayjoy ‘SIS uodn QERR ‘jeang welmzy jooyas Mewud [enus) ERR | THW
® NN/ £95 Wewsyjoy “SLiEsE uodn GFEA ‘peoy 1EF 7 ‘jley y2inyd 21joyie) s,ydasoris JHW
[ ) NN/ £95 Wewsyioy GER ‘asof Ji4 "gny Anunwwo) aseg ay)| BHW
74/ £9S Weyayloy SEST] uodn (iEfL ‘auenbg Aswobiuopy ‘Aeigr Ayunwwony TER LA

- m_\::_n__

wuired
J8A0OUYM

7
PN LT

-

1 1 08D a1 auee| / Tl Siumsn uwva = 257 £
1 i ) .,
INgvaa | Do flm G ké , b TS
NOdN HLYM oouos et i | Tz 1= =
0|

{ i1y o T RAUIED LIBM
salreag ) : 1

A __/,)\\\mpﬂﬂ;;
¢

GRYl

A

AT 8
wmmmwam, m o Twnw._x f,asy
95 Em_m_ 5 AS < 1S3

ﬂﬂ../;.

suom OF

mqwrum.Oﬁw..

\qnfa jeog o
olpsiEp
</ sianuey

T\x ﬂ_

S

__2_
m:__.:m
JuoapegEs



james.moran_324
Highlight

james.moran_325
Highlight

james.moran_326
Highlight

james.moran_327
Highlight

james.moran_328
Highlight

james.moran_329
Line

james.moran_330
Line

james.moran_331
Oval

james.moran_332
Oval

james.moran_333
Oval

james.moran_334
Oval


Page 180

3vi 09s (moeN)
weyiayjoy
aal ule . .
mm:or mmw_m_a_u PIEM UHION AS[SIS}DIM \ [Fehoias
120 E.m“_on__o.o 0- weayioy
jlaunos yBnosog uepjodonay Weyayoy
poeeze (60L1.0) 0" rob weyisyjoi@sib

BLOZ/L LT

4HZ 99S WEWBUI0Y 'ASISIHIM SUET PISFUNON UdINYD JNOUYIED AULL PaSS3Ig | jo An

VSZ 99S Weyisyjoy ‘As|welg j9a1s ss01) '||eH Usued AsjWwelg | 4,

THE 005 Weylayloy spisAuuns sueT [Jaadapue]d ‘snuad Alunwiwod spisiuuns JAM
42 995 Weyiayjoy [|aanuspue|y

"UNo9 plalussin) jooyas Aewlud |jlaadaspueld ‘sius aous||eox3 AJe] |lavispueld aAM

NHE G9S WEeLISIoY ‘s¥d2ig ‘8NusAY Udsag '[00UdS ABWLd SIEPISISIT | A ) an

THE 005 Weylayloy spisAuuns sue [|eadspueld ‘aiusD Aunwwod spisfuung GAM

THE 005 Weylayloy spisAuuns sueT [Jaadapue]d ‘snuad Alunwiwod spisiuuns YAM

T B4
_ﬁ_\nl;n_n,w 7
)

- syiop abiem

NOILYINYId SHOIHE @

a5 pwc\_

- 5
%

oS fapisiuin
Y i&:_@

HOINY]

3

A

SR



james.moran_335
Highlight

james.moran_336
Highlight

james.moran_337
Highlight

james.moran_338
Highlight

james.moran_339
Highlight

james.moran_340
Highlight

james.moran_341
Line

james.moran_342
Line

james.moran_343
Line

james.moran_344
Line

james.moran_345
Highlight


Page 181 Agenda Item 12

Rotherham »
Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Public Report
Council

Summary Sheet

Committee Name and Date of Committee Meeting
Council — 23 January 2019

Report Title
Recommendation from Cabinet — Housing Revenue Account Rents & Service
Charges 2019/20

Is this a Key Decision and has it been included on the Forward Plan?
Yes

Strategic Director Approving Submission of the Report
Anne Marie Lubanski, Strategic Director of Adult Care, Housing and Public Health

Report Author(s)
Mark Scarrott, Finance Manager
01709 822007 or mark.scarrott@rotherham.gov.uk

Tom Bell, Assistant Director of Housing Services
01709 254954 or tom.bell@rotherham.gov.uk

Ward(s) Affected
All

Summary

At its meeting on 21 January 2019, the Cabinet is due to consider a report in respect
of the proposed rents and service charges for the Housing Revenue Account
2010/20.

As the Cabinet meeting is not until after the publication of this agenda, the formal
recommendations from the Cabinet will be reported to the Council meeting within the
Mayor’s Letter.

To assist Members in their decision making, the report to Cabinet providing detail in
respect of the proposals is appended in order to provide Members with sufficient
knowledge to agree the proposals.

Recommendations

1. That consideration be given to the recommendations of the Cabinet in respect
of the Housing Revenue Account Rents & Service Charges 2019/20.



Page 182

List of Appendices Included

Appendix 1 — Housing Revenue Account Rents & Service Charges 2019/20 —
Report to Cabinet — 21 January 2019

Appendix A — HRA Draft Budget Operating Statement 2019/20

Background Papers
Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016
DCLG Guidance on Rents for Social Housing from 2015/16 (May 2014)

Consideration by any other Council Committee, Scrutiny or Advisory Panel
Cabinet — 21 January 2019

Council Approval Required
Yes

Exempt from the Press and Public
No



Page 183

Rotherham »
Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Public Report
Cabinet

Summary Sheet

Name of Committee and Date of Committee Meeting
Cabinet — 21 January 2019

Report Title
Housing Revenue Account Rents & Service Charges 2019/20

Is this a Key Decision and has it been included on the Forward Plan?
Yes

Strategic Director Approving Submission of the Report
Anne Marie Lubanski, Strategic Director of Adult Care, Housing and Public Health

Report Author(s)
Mark Scarrott, Finance Manager
01709 822007 or mark.scarrott@rotherham.gov.uk

Tom Bell, Assistant Director of Housing Services
01709 254954 or tom.bell@rotherham.gov.uk

Ward(s) Affected
All

Executive Summary

The purpose of the report is to seek approval for the proposed values for the setting
of the housing rents, non-dwelling rents, District Heating and service charges and
the draft Housing Revenue Account Budget for 2019/20.

Recommendations
1. That Cabinet recommend to Council:-

(a) That dwelling rents are reduced by 1% for 2019/20 in line with the
requirements outlined in the Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016.

(b) That there is a 2.4% increase to charges for garage rents, communal
facilities, cooking gas and laundry facilities in 2019/20 in line with the
increase in Consumer Price Index (CPIl) as at September 2018.

(c) That the unit charge per Kwh for District Heating Schemes remains at
the same level as agreed by the Council in December 2017.

(d) Agree the draft Housing Revenue Account budget for 2019/20.

(e) That rents and service charges will be collected over 52 weeks in line
with Universal Credit payments.



Page 184

List of Appendices Included
Appendix A HRA Draft Budget Operating Statement 2019/20.

Background Papers
Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016
DCLG Guidance on Rents for Social Housing from 2015/16 (May 2014)

Consideration by any other Council Committee, Scrutiny or Advisory Panel
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board - 16 January 2019
Council — 23 January 2019

Council Approval Required
Yes

Exempt from the Press and Public
No



Page 185

Housing Revenue Account, Rents and Service Charges 2019/20

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Background

Historically social housing landlords charged different rent levels for the same
type and size of property, which was inequitable. Therefore Government set a
target for social housing providers to achieve equitable rents by 2015/16. This
process is known as ‘rent convergence’. It enabled landlords with low rent
levels such as the Council to charge an additional £2 rent above a ‘formula rent’
where rent was low. Rotherham’s rents were not scheduled to reach full
convergence until 2016/17. However, changes to the rent formula in 2015
removed the flexibility for landlords to increase rents above formula rent, so the
Council has not achieved rent convergence.

The former Housing Revenue Account (HRA) subsidy system was replaced
with a devolved system of council housing finance, called self-financing in April
2012. This gave local authorities the resources, incentives and flexibility
needed to manage their own housing stock. It enabled long term financial plans
to be developed and gave tenants greater transparency and accountability as
to how rent is collected and spent on the services provided. The impact of not
achieving rent convergence is lower levels of income which impact on the
investment plans within the HRA Business Plan. Government guidance states
that where properties have not reached formula rent by April 2015 it is expected
that the rent is moved up to formula rent when the property is re-let following
vacancy. Approximately 900 properties are re-let each year; it is anticipated
that this will generate additional income of approximately £66k in 2019/20.

Section 23 of The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 implements the
government’s policy on social housing rents which requires providers of social
housing to reduce rents by 1% per year for four years with effect from April
2016 to March 2020. The policy applies to all registered providers of social
housing including local authority landlords, who have a statutory obligation to
implement the policy.

In October 2017 the government confirmed details of future social rent policy
from 2020, after the four-year period of 1% rent decreases ends. The
announcement confirms that for the five years from 2020/21, providers will be
able to increase rents, up to a limit of Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) plus 1%
each year.

This report also considers the charges for garages, garage plot sites, cooking
gas and communal facilities including laundry services where provided, District
Heating charges for 2019/20 and summarises the draft HRA budget.



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Page 186

Key Issues

Housing Rents

The average rent in 2018/19 is currently £72.87 when aggregated over 52
weeks. The 2019/20 average weekly rent based on the statutory 1% reduction
would be £72.27, an average reduction of £0.60 per week. However, 2019/20 is
a 53 week year. This is because rent is debited on a Monday and there are 53
collection days in 2019/20 and not the normal 52. Therefore, in line with
Universal Credit payments it is proposed that annual rent is collected over 52
weeks as Universal Credit will only pay rent for a maximum of 52 weeks in any
year. The rent will therefore require adjusting to reflect this and will result in an
average weekly rent of £73.66 for 2019-20 collected over 52 weeks and
therefore one week where rent is not collected.

Total housing rent income generated through the proposed revised weekly rents
is estimated to be £76.496m in 2019/20 (compared with £76.236m in 2018/19)
assuming 200 Right to Buy sales, voids, new acquisitions and rent adjustments
at 1.4%. The reduction of 1% on the weekly rent charge will result in a loss in
rent income of £260k compared with rent income for 2018/19. This is a lower
reduction due to 2019/20 being a 53 week year and therefore one additional
week’s rent compared with 2018-19.

Garage Rents

The Council has continued with its garage site improvement programme with
plans to invest £250k in 2018/19, and a further £250k per annum over the next 3
years.

In previous years increases in charges have been linked to changes in CPI. At
September 2018 CPI was 2.4%; therefore it is proposed that there will be an
increase of 2.4% to the current charge. Therefore, the charge for garage rents
for 2019/20 will increase by 11p to £5.00 per week.

It is proposed that there will also be a 2.4% increase to the charge for garage plot
sites which will increase by £1.41 to £60.26 per annum in 2019/20. Unsurfaced
garage plot sites will also increase by £1.27 to £54.24 in 2019/20.

Cooking Gas

The Council also charges for cooking gas facility at 83p per week. It is
proposed to increase the charge by 2.4% to 85p per week in line with other
increases in charges.

Communal Facilities

In line with other non-dwelling charges it is proposed to increase the communal
facilities charge and the laundry charge by 2.4%.

The communal facilities charge will increase by 11p to £4.75 per week and the
laundry charge will increase by 5p to £1.60 per week.



2.8

3.1

3.2

Page 187

District Heating Charges

During 2017-18 there was an extensive review of district heating pricing to
ensure that charges are fair and reasonable to all tenants. As a consequence a
revised schedule of charges was approved by Council on 13 December 2017.

This report proposed that charges be reduced to 6.28p per kWh including VAT
and applied retrospectively from 1 April 2017, which saw a reduction in the
average bill of £176 per annum. The total cost of the running the district heating
scheme in 2017/18 resulted in a small surplus of £16k, however, the latest
forecast for 2018/19 is that the scheme will be in deficit by £16k, therefore it is
proposed to leave district heating charges unchanged as per table below.

Weekly Charge
‘gﬁ:‘gz Charge collected
2018/19 2019/20 over 52
weeks
All District Heating Schemes - 2
Unit Cost KWh (inc VAT) 6.28p 6.28p 6.28p
Pooled Schemes
- Pre-payment Charges per week
(incl. VAT)
Bedsit £9.66 £9.66 £9.85
1 Bed £11.25 £11.25 £11.47
2 Bed £12.90 £12.90 £13.15
3/4 Bed £14.93 £14.93 £15.22

Options considered and recommended proposal

Changes to the government’s policy on social housing rents resulted in the
requirement to reduce dwelling rents by 1% over four years from April 2016. To
comply with the legislation rents will be reduced by 1% for a fourth and final
year from April 2019.

In previous years increases to charges for non-dwelling rents have been linked
to changes in CPIl. As at September 2018 CPI was 2.4% and therefore it is
proposed to increase charges for garages and communal facilities including
laundry and cooking gas by 2.4% as follows:



4.1

5.1

6.1

Page 188

Weekly | Weekly Charge
. collected

Non Dwelling Rents Charge Charge | Increase over 52

2018/19 2019/20
weeks

Garage rent £4.89 £5.00 £0.11 £5.10
Garage Plots (annual £58 85 £60.26 £1 41 £61.42
charge)
Unsurfaced Garage Plots £50 97 £54 24 £1.97 £55.29
(annual charge)
Wharncliffe flats parking £6.42 £6.57 £0.15 £6.70
space
Cooking Gas £0.83 £0.85 £0.02 £0.87
Communal Facility £4.64 £4.75 £0.11 £4.84
Laundry £1.55 £1.60 £0.05 £1.63

The above charges exclude VAT where applicable

The proposed increase would generate additional income of approximately

£28k in 2019/20.

Consultation

This report will be subject to review by the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Board before final decision by the Council.

Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision

This report will be considered by the Council on 23 January 2019 and subject to
approval, would be implemented from Monday 1 April 2019.

Financial and Procurement Implications

Appendix A of this report presents the 2019/20 detailed Draft Operating
Statement which is effectively “The HRA Budget”.

The table below presents an overall summary position of the Income and

expenditure budgets:-

Proposed Budget

Housing Revenue Account 2019/20
£'000

Expenditure 80,489
Income (including service charges) -82,939
Net Cost of Service -2,450
Interest Received -100
Net Operating Expenditure -2,550
Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay 14,692
Transfer from Reserves -12,142
Surplus/Deficit for the Year 0




Page 189

It can be seen that based on the 1% reduction in dwelling rent income and
increase in service charges by 2.4% outlined in this report, the budgeted income
of £82.939m is anticipated to be collected in 2019/20 and that this is offset by
£80.489m of budgeted expenditure, which represents the net cost of delivering
the service.

As budgeted income is greater than the net cost of delivering the service, there is
an overall net income of £2.550m to the service after interest received.

Based on a review of the HRA business plan a Revenue Contribution to Capital
of £14.692m has been made towards the approved HRA Capital investment
Programme. Therefore there will be a transfer required from HRA Reserves of
£12.142m in order to provide an overall balanced budget for 2019/20, this is
provided for within the revised HRA Business Plan.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 In addition to the legal implications set out in the main body of this report,
section 24 of the Housing Act 1985 allows local authorities to make such
reasonable charges as they may determine for a tenancy or occupation of their
houses. Further, it requires the local authority from time to time to review rents
and other charges and make such changes, as circumstances may require.
The changes proposed in the recommendations to this report would fall within
the ambit of the Council’s discretion as set out in section 24 of the Housing Act
1985.

8. Human Resources Implications

8.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising from this report.

9. Implications for Children and Young People and Vulnerable Adults

9.1 No direct implications.

10. Equalities and Human Rights Implications

10.1 No direct implications.

11. Implications for Partners and Other Directorates

11.1 No direct implications for partners and other directorates.

12. Risks and Mitigation

12.1 The greatest risk and uncertainty surrounds the level of rent income received into

the Housing Revenue Account. This is dependent upon the number of
properties available to generate income.



Page 190

12.2 The level of properties is directly affected by the level of sales and demolitions
which may vary to those used in the budget assumptions. Rules regarding Right
to Buy (RTB) receipts were implemented in April 2012 included increasing the
discount cap, which is currently £78,600. This has seen the number of RTB sales
increase significantly as a result of the higher discount cap. Total sales in
2017/18 were 202, it is estimated that there will be 175 RTB by the end of
2018/19 and the HRA Business Plan assumes a further increase to 200 sales in
2019/20.

12.3 Strategic Housing Investment plans involve the acquisition or build of 29 new
properties for council rent in 2019/20 and 52 shared ownership properties which
will also bring in additional rent income. This will assist in mitigating against lost
rental income for RTB sales.

12.4 The changes to the rent formula from 2016/17 will result in the Council receiving
less income than under the original formula over four years, therefore impacting
on the 30 year business plan.

12.5 The Government’s changes to welfare benefits and the introduction of Universal
Credit will also impact on the level of rent income collected including the level of
arrears and therefore be reflected in the Housing Revenue Account balances.

12.6 All budgets carry a certain level of risk in that unforeseen circumstances may
arise, causing additional pressures on the level of resources applied.

13. Accountable Officer(s)
Tom Bell, Assistant Director of Housing

Approvals obtained on behalf of:-

Named Officer Date

Chief Executive Sharon Kemp 07/01/19
Strategic Director of Finance & Graham Saxton 21/01/19
Customer Services
(S.151 Officer)
Assistant Director of Legal Services | Stuart Fletcher 21/12/18
(Monitoring Officer)
Assistant Director of Human N/A N/A
Resources (if appropriate)
Head of Procurement N/A N/A
(if appropriate)

Report Author: Mark Scarrott, Finance Manager

01709 822007 or mark.scarrott@rotherham.gov.uk

Tom Bell, Assistant Director of Housing Services
01709 254954 or tom.bell@rotherham.gov.uk

This report is published on the Council's website or can be found at:-
http://moderngov.rotherham.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories



http://moderngov.rotherham.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories

Page 191
APPENDIX A

HRA - Draft Budget Operating Statement 2019/20

Full-year Full-year Year on Year
Narrative Budget Budget Chanae
2018/19 2019/20 9
£ £ £

Contributions to Housing Repairs Account 19,954,400 20,803,320 848,920
Supervision and Management 21,497,300 23,906,780 2,409,480
Rents, Rates, Taxes etc. 185,000 230,000 45,000
Provision for Bad Debts 1,334,200 1,147,200 -187,000
Cost of capital Charge 13,182,000 13,346,050 164,050
Depreciation of Fixed Assets 20,591,800 20,925,680 333,880
Debt Management Costs 125,000 130,000 5,000
Expenditure 76,869,700 80,489,030 3,619,330
Dwelling Rents 76,236,370 -76,477,360 -240,990
Non-dwelling Rents -777,540 -802,170 -24,630
Charges for Services and facilities -4,656,100 -4,966,260 -310,160
Other fees and charges -374,260 -514,260 -140,000
Leaseholder Income -167,511 -178,650 -11,139
Income -82,211,781 -82,938,700 -726,919
Net Cost of Services -5,342,081 -2,449,670 2,892,411
Interest received -100,000 -100,000 0
Net Operating Expenditure -5,442,081 -2,549,670 2,892,411
Appropriations:

Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay 9,970,150 14,691,700 4,721,550
Transfer from Reserves -4,528,069 -12,142,030 -7,613,961
Surplus/Deficit for the year 0 0 0




Page 192 Agenda Item 13

Rotherham »
Metropolitan ‘
Borough Council

Public Report
Council

Committee Name and Date of Committee Meeting
Council — 23 January 2019

Report Title
Recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny — Modern Methods of Construction

Is this a Key Decision and has it been included on the Forward Plan?
No

Strategic Director Approving Submission of the Report
Shokat Lal, Assistant Chief Executive

Report Author(s)
Christine Bradley, Scrutiny Officer
01709 822738 or christine.bradley@rotherham.gov.uk

Ward(s) Affected
Borough-Wide

Report Summary
This report presents the findings from the scrutiny review into modern methods of
construction which is included at Appendix 1.

The review was undertaken because of evidence that the:-

e housing market is not fit for purpose with the housing market locally reflecting
national information and trends.

e demand for homes outweighs provision e.g. more one bedroom and larger
properties are required in Rotherham

e number of homeless people is on the increase, this number could continue to
increase due to the introduction of Universal Credit.

¢ Insufficient affordable properties available — which includes cheaper,
renewable sources of energy to heat the homes.

e private and social owned properties are not being build quick enough to meet
demand

The options for providing affordable homes, in a quicker timescale to traditional build
homes, which are energy efficient and where possible use renewable sources of
energy to keep running cost low. Two main options were looked at these were
container and modular homes.

Following consideration by the Council, the Cabinet will be required to respond
formally to the recommendations and indicate agreement or otherwise, what action,
will be taken to implement the recommendations, along with details of timescales
and accountabilities.



Page 193

Recommendations

1. That the report and recommendations from the review of Modern Methods of
Construction be noted.

2. That the response of Cabinet to the recommendations be reported to Council
and the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board.

List of Appendices Included
Appendix 1 Scrutiny Review of Modern Methods of Construction

Background Papers
None

Consideration by any other Council Committee, Scrutiny or Advisory Panel
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board — 12 December 2018
Cabinet — 18 February 2019

Council Approval Required
No

Exempt from the Press and Public
No



Page 194

Rotherham »

b

Scrutiny Review: Modern Methods of
Construction.

Review from the Task Group from Overview
and Scrutiny Management Board and
Improving Places Select Commission

November 2018



CONTENTS

Background

Legal and Policy Drivers Findings
Scope of the Review

Method

Findings

Conclusion

Recommendations

Bibliography

Page 195

Page No.

10
11
17
18
19



Page 196

Background

Following the general election of 2016, a survey among younger people and young
families concluded that a major cause of their inability to find suitable
accommodation was the lack smaller properties coupled with the punitive spare
room subsidy, the so called ‘Bedroom Tax’.

This was the catalyst for this piece of work, which prompted a discussion to take
place at the Council meeting on 28t February 2018 into the Council’s annual budget
for 2018/2019

An amendment to the budget proposals was put forward by the Opposition Party
United Kingdom Independent Party, to ring fence £4m out of £55m unallocated
funds, of the Housing Revenue Account, specifically for a project to develop modular
one and two bedroomed homes and where possible the criteria for each home is to;

* Provide accommodation at a lower cost than traditional on site construction

* Fund as many homes as practicable on Council owned sites

» Delivery homes with an expected asset life span of 25 years or more

+ Consider payback periods for the investment, aiming for the project to be
revenue generating as soon as practicable

* Where possible, promote and utilise micro renewable and eco technologies so
each home has very low running costs for the occupier

« Utilise local innovation where possible (e.g. graphene battery technology to
support solar panels and solar spray if available).

+ Consider delivering homes which can be picked up and moved to another site
if necessary

» Design properties to meet the needs of homeless people, young and or older
persons to assist them make a start on the housing ladder or down size to a
more affordable home.

The amendment was not carried as it was a proposal that could not be considered at
the meeting. (CM157)

However the interest highlighted during the discussions resulted in a cross party
review group being formed, with Councillor Cowles as Chair and Councillor
Sansome as Vice Chair.

Legal and Policy Drivers

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 is the biggest change in homelessness
legislation for many years and came into force on April 3™ 2018. It aims to prevent
homelessness, and not only find accommodation, but continue to support people to
ensure they do not become homeless in the future. A new duty placed on local
authorities is to prevent homelessness of all people regardless of priority need, who
are eligible for assistance who are threatened with homelessness. The additional
duty of identified public authorities to refer will mean that most referrals will result in a
homeless application being submitted.

It is anticipated that homeless applications will rise by at least 50% or possibly
double as a result of this.



Page 197

Welfare Reform/Universal Credit

Councils have raised concerns about the design and implementation of the Universal
Credit (UC) Full Service to date. Feedback from councils shows that the initial
payment waiting period for claimants is resulting in a marked increase in debt and
rent arrears. This is damaging for households and councils’ ability to invest in social
housing.

Welfare reform has coincided with rising housing costs and lower incomes. This had
led to an increase in the ‘affordability gap’ (household incomes V housing costs). A
symptom of this is the marked increases in homelessness acceptances in recent
years.

Rising private sector rents and changes to the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rate,
without a corresponding increase in housing benefit support, have contributed to an
increase in the number of households that turn to the Council for support.

Some claimants migrating from existing welfare programmes will not receive
transitional protection. Only those who move on to UC as part of the ‘managed
migration’ in 2019 will receive protection. Councils are already reporting confusion
and stress about the potential financial impacts for claimants who will move on to UC
after a break in claim.

One of the key features of UC is its emphasis on making work pay and supporting in-
work progression. DWP has produced very little information on support for in-work
progression. The Local Government Association would like to see the Government
take up the recommendations in the ‘Work Local’ report which would enable councils
to provide more support to low-income working households. This is particularly
important as recent research shows evidence of increasing levels of in-work poverty.

The reforms to housing-related benefits are a major contributor to the gap between
living costs and affordability. Recent studies have shown that tenants in the private
rented sector are facing among the largest real losses in income as a result of
welfare changes. This is driven in particular by the freezing of the LHA rate,
alongside the rise in private rents. It is estimated that private rents in 2020 will be 5
per cent higher than in 2016.

Many local authorities have recognised that the freeze to the LHA rate is
exacerbating the pressures facing many recipients of UC. Councils’ ability to support
homeless households is already severely stretched. The combined impact of these
changes risk undermining the objectives of the Government’s welfare reform
programme.

National Housing Context

The housing market in Britain is broken which is the starting point for a recent white
paper “Fixing our broken housing market” and this is because simply:-

¢ Not enough local authorities are able to deliver the social houses they need



Page 198

e House building that is too slow
e A construction industry too reliant on a small number of big companies.

The law of supply and demand means that since 1998 the ratio of average house
prices to average earnings has more than doubled. The issue for society is that less
people are able to afford one of the basic needs — a home.

The Council of Mortgage Lenders predicts that by 2020 only one quarter of all 30
year olds will own their own homes. This is in contrast to the generation currently
approaching retirement, half of whom owned a property by the age of 30.

A national housing charity Shelter has recently conducted an analysis of government
data culminating in the report, “In work, but out of a home” which concluded that:-

e The proportion of working families who are homeless has been growing
steadily across the last five years.

e The absolute number of working families has risen dramatically, from over

e 19,000 households in 2013 to over 33,000 in 2017.

e A sharp increase in the total number of homeless families - 43,750 in 2013 to
60,520 in 2017

The rates of change indicate that there is a problem specific to working families.
Between 2013 and 2017 the number of working families in temporary
accommodation rose by 73%, in comparison to the total population of families which
grew by 38%.

Underpinning this trend is the chronic lack of affordable housing.

e There are currently 1.2 million households on council waiting lists for a new
social home

e There are four households in need for each home that becomes available
each year

e Housing benefit is now inadequate across most of the country

e Our research shows that by 2020, four fifths (83%) of England will be
unaffordable to private tenants claiming housing benefit

e Working families are turning to the Council for emergency help because they
have few other options

e The lack of stability in the privately rented sector is also likely to play a role in
this trend — a privately rented home is rarely a home for life

e The loss of a private tenancy was the single biggest cause of homelessness
in the country in the last year — accounting for 27% of all households
accepted as homeless

These findings show that moving more people into work would not be sufficient to
end or address homelessness.

By 2020 it is predicted that only a quarter of 30 year olds will own their own home,
which is in contrast to more than half the generation approaching homeowners by
their 30t birthday. It is much harder for young people to get a foot on the housing



Page 199

ladder than their parents/grandparents. Home ownership amongst 34 year olds has
fallen from 59 per cent over a decade ago to just 37 per cent today.

A New Deal for Social Housing

The recent Government Green Paper sets out a new vision for social housing and

the following five principals which will underpin a fairer deal for social housing

residents:

+ A safe and decent home which is fundamental to a sense of security and our
ability to get on in life.
* Improving and speeding up how complaints are resolved.
+ Empowering residents and ensuring their voices are heard so that landlords
are held to account.

+ Tackling stigma and celebrating thriving communities, challenging the

stereotypes that exist about residents and their communities
+ Building the social homes that we need and ensuring that those homes can
act as a springboard to home ownership

Rotherham Social Housing Provision

The table below shows the breakdown by type of property of housing stock at
Rotherham Metropolitan Council as at September 2017. The total number of

properties was 20,393.

0 1bed [2bed |3 bed |4bed |5bed |6 bed | Grand
BEDSIT 72 72
BUNGALOW 1 2783 | 1921 49 4754
FLAT 3| 2122 2609 264 6 2 5006
HOUSE 4 1938 | 8136 258 2 1| 10339
MAISONETTE 2 185 34 1 222
Grand Total 76 | 4911 6653 ( 8483 265 4 1] 20393

A point to note relates to tenants’ “Right to buy”. In 2017/2018 the total properties
sold under this initiative was 202 reducing the overall number of housing stock held

by the Council.

The below table is from the housing register at 31st March 2018, splitting applicants
into number of bedrooms required. This clearly shows that the vast majority (71%)
of applicants to Rotherham’s housing register need a one bedroomed property.

Bedrooms required No. of applicants

1 4,763
2 922
3 866
4+ 123
TOTAL 6,674




Page 200

The Housing Register

There are currently 6,628 applicants on the Housing Register. Applicants who join
the Housing Register are assessed and placed into one of the following bands:

Band 1 - There are 268 applicants with immediate housing need
Band 2 - There are 1,446 applicants with very urgent housing needs
Band 3 - There are 1,817 applicants with urgent housing need
Band 4 - There are 1,860

Transfer Band — There are 1,237 Council or Housing association tenants with no
housing need

Total 6,628

There were 1,446 registered in Band 2 for a variety of reasons, for example due to
medical requirements. The households detailed below have approached the
authority due to homelessness issues and have been placed in Band 2 on the
Housing Register:

* 148 households not ready to leave supported accommodation

* 99 households subject to domestic abuse

* 65 households ready to leave supported accommodation

» 37 households who have been assessed as statutory homeless

The temporary accommodation units of 41 (crash pads) are fully occupied 90% of
the time.

Homelessness

The review identified the level of need both in number and type of accommodation
for homeless households. With regard to need, during the autumn of 2018 there
were 132 open homeless cases undergoing assessment. The outcome of these
cases could be potential prevention cases or potential acceptances.

The number of Homelessness acceptances: 2017/2018 = 122

As of 12th October 2018 the case load increased from 132 in April 2018 to 354
* 54 in intervention stage

149 prevention stage

143 relief stage

8 Main Duty stage.

The number of homelessness preventions

« 2017/18 =714
« April 2017 to 2" February 2018 = 451

Two rough sleepers were identified on the Rough Sleepers Count in November
2017. This count in November 2018 was 4 — an increase of 100%



Page 201

The main reasons why people become homeless are:

Loss of an Assured Shorthold (private rented) tenancy

Relatives or friends no longer willing or able to accommodate
Parents no longer willing or able to accommodate

Required to leave accommodation provided by the Home Office
Relationship breakdown

During the same period, the top five priority need categories were:

Applicants with dependent children

Pregnancy

Vulnerable due to a physical disability

Vulnerable due to a mental illness

Fleeing home because of domestic abuse or threat of violence

Sheffield Rough Sleepers. The link below is shows an example of how partnership
working is providing some comfort for rough sleepers.

https://www.thestar.co.uk/news/sheffield-rough-sleeper-partnership-hailed-a-

success-1-9084195

Housing performance indicators

Performance indicators 2017/18 the target for the number of new homes to be built
in the Borough was 641 units, the number achieved was 479 units, a shortfall of 162

units.

Although the task of increasing the supply of new homes is difficult to achieve the
Council is still continuing to work really hard to stimulate growth. The Council’s
efforts however are sometimes fettered by external influences, for example the bids
to secure additional funding through the Government's Housing
Infrastructure Fund that would help deliver new homes in key sites in the Borough.
Despite the setback the Council is continuing to work with representatives from
Homes England, the body responsible for administering these funds to identify how

it made

future bids should be made.

Gaps in Housing Provision

Night shelter/hostel/assessment bed — provision is needed for people who are not
classed as priority need but until benefits claims are completed and income is
available the accommodation options are very limited.

Inadequate numbers of bedsit accommodation — both in the public and
private sector

Complex needs — there is a group of people who are stuck in a cycle of
repeat offending and homelessness, whose previous behaviours prevent
future access to property provided by Rotherham’s partner organisations.
Housing First 'is appropriate in this situation, but more units need to be
provided

! Housing First England is a new project to create and support a national movement of Housing
First services, improving the lives of, and support for, some of society's most excluded people.


https://www.thestar.co.uk/news/sheffield-rough-sleeper-partnership-hailed-a-success-1-9084195
https://www.thestar.co.uk/news/sheffield-rough-sleeper-partnership-hailed-a-success-1-9084195

Page 202

»  Accommodation for single people who may not meet the criteria of complex
needs, but need a degree of support due to their vulnerability, and inability
to get a tenancy (eg offending history/previous anti-social behaviour)

* Rentin advance/bond scheme. No current scheme in operation and
discretional housing payment (DHP) cannot be utilised unless there is an
active claim. More work needs to be done with landlords to encourage them
to accept certain client groups

* Need to increase number of temporary accommodation units for people
with a priority need in accordance with homelessness legislation — currently
being reviewed

The Housing First model and vulnerable adults’ pathway will provide much needed
supported accommodation for single people who have complex needs and become
homeless on more than one occasion. However, the number of units may need to be
increased dependent on funding. The pilot will be reviewed and further consideration
will be given then on the future of this approach.

Population Trends

Rotherham has an aging population with 50,500 (19.3%) aged 65+ in 2016,
projected to increase to 58,500 (21.7%) by 2026 and 68,300 (24.8%) by 2036.

There are no local statistics on divorce trends. However, divorce has been one factor
leading to more people living alone, alongside older people who have been widowed.

The number of single person households in 2014 was 32,000 (29.1% of all
households) and this is projected to increase to 38,000 (31.1%) by 2039. The
demand for one bedroom housing is more likely to come from young people starting
out or older people downsizing.

Scope of the Review

The basis of this review came from the inability of young people and others in receipt
of housing benefit/UC, to find suitable smaller accommodation. This finding was the
driver for exploring solutions.

As the Group’s knowledge of the modular market increased so did the scope of the
project. Consideration was given to the provision of a range of larger and higher
value MMC properties to make this housing option available to larger households.
Thus the report reflects this wider brief:
» Original scope to meet the needs of younger single people reaching adult
hood needing somewhere to live and older people who wish to downsize, and
+ What is available and should modular housing be used to meet broader
housing needs?

Initially, members’ thoughts reflected their recollections of historic, modular housing
such as post war ‘prefabs’ and there was a tendency to contrast and compare
conventional housing with modular. As the study progressed and knowledge of the
new modular housing offer grew, thinking changed to ask, why not modular housing
rather than traditional build?




Page 203

Agreed Scope

The scope for the review is to look into the viability of providing affordable housing
for young single individuals and larger families via MMC and, wherever possible,
incorporating suitable technology to reduce running costs as well as with the ability
to move the buildings where they are most needed.

Method

The initial meeting of the Review Group on 12t April 2018 agreed the scope for the
review along with other areas of research.

Councillor Cowles and Councillor Sansome explored the options of various modular
buildings with visits to nearby manufacturers, REACH Homes in Sheffield, and
Premier Modular and llke Homes in East Yorkshire

Councillor Napper and Councillor Walsh looked at technology to provide energy
sources for heating and lighting the modular home; Councillor Walsh attended an
Energy Source Conference, in Liverpool on 14 June 2018.

Councillor McNeely and Councillor Julie Turner worked with the Homelessness
Team to identify the scale of homelessness in Rotherham.

The view of the Chair was that a key element of this review was to seek the views of
the young people who could potentially become tenants/owners of modular homes.
To achieve this, the Review involved Christian Palfrey, House Project, Leaving Care
Service.

The officers who provided their knowledge and expertise included

Judith Badger — Strategic Director, Finance and

Miles Crompton - Performance, Intelligence & Improvement
Sharon Crook - Scrutiny Support Officer.

Jane Davies - Head of Housing Strategic Development

Paul Elliott - Business and Commercial Programme Manager
Andrew Farmer - Senior Quantity Surveyor

Wendy Foster — Strategic Housing Coordinator

Liz Hunt - Affordable Housing Officer

Jill Jones - Housing Solutions Manager

Christine Lamont - Business Development Manager, Premier Housing.
Andy Lumb - Partnership Manager

Paul Maplethorpe - Domestic Energy Officer

Mark Nearney - Head of Contracts, Investment and Compliance
Christian Palfrey — House Project, Leaving Care Service

Craig Rutherford — Supported Housing Assistant
e Billy Wilson - Technical Officer

10



Page 204

Findings

For clarity, the definition of “Affordable Housing” for the sake of this report is
housing units that are affordable by that section of society whose income is below
the median household income.

Modern Methods of Construction. (MMC)

Rather than using traditional methods of construction of bricks and mortar to build a
property, the modern way is that the property is built in a factory. The finished
products are transported to their new locations, where they are assembled by a
builder. A property built using modern methods of construction (MMC) is not a mobile
home. These homes are often called factory-built, system-built or homes built off-
site. The term “prefabricated homes” conjures up visions of homes erected post
1945 for speed and ease of providing accommodation after the war. Current MMC
properties are spectacular, versatile and adaptable units where sustainability, the
environment, waste management, thermal efficiency and recycling issues are taken
into account in the making of properties.

Suppliers visited by Members of the Scrutiny Group manufactured homes in a
number of stages. The units were craned from stage to stage inside a large
warehouse, similar to a production line in the automobile industry. Producing homes
in this way offers far greater control of the manufacturing/build process than
traditional build:

* Panel insulation - each panel is individually inspected during the process to
ensure it is fully insulated and hence the overall thermal efficiency of the
completed unit can be guaranteed within defined parameters

» The size of walls and window openings are machined to exact dimensions
ensuring that they fit together exactly and there are no gaps allowing for
cold bridges or drafts

» Interior fixtures and fittings slot exactly into the space provided and the
doors and skirting boards fit without gaps that need filling.

Put simply, the process provides end to end quality control throughout the build
process. This also applies to suppliers of components who as well as their own
internal quality control checks receive visits and component inspections from the
MMC manufacturer. This overall quality regime and management of the build
process ensures that each unit can be guaranteed to meet strict production and
performance parameters and avoids the 'Friday Afternoon House' where things are
not quite as they should be. Further information can be provided on request

Types of Modular Home

The Group was provided with an outline of the various types of modular homes
currently available on the market. Two different types of homes were identified as
being the most relevant type to meet the criteria set by the Scrutiny Group;
Container/modular homes and panelised homes.

11



Page 205

Container Homes

Container homes are used widely in Northern Europe as student accommodation
and, have more recently been used in Brighton to house homeless applicants whilst
their claim is being assessed. The lifespan of a container home is 20+ years is well
maintained. Other examples in the UK include:

» Container City opposite the O2 Arena in London Docklands

* Box Park in Croyden, and

* Raynes Court in Stoke Newington.

Reach Homes (Sheffield.) www.reachhomes.org

Reach Homes is a not-for-profit business which aims to change the market by
converting shipping containers into viable eco-friendly homes. Each unit costs
around £37,000 - 90% less than a traditional build home and uses up to 60%
recycled local materials.

For around £37,000 the container home could include solar PV and battery storage
system so that the excess electricity produced during the day can be stored for use
at night. The owner of the business, who lives in this house, stated his utility bills
were in the region of £100 p.a. making this type of accommodation a very attractive
offering for our original target market.

The owner also stated that he is looking for assistance in locating a production
development site; this may be something in which the Council may be interested.
Contact has been made with officers from Rotherham Industrial Development Office
to assist with this enquiry.

Panelised

In order to gain a better understanding of modular homes, a group from RMBC staff,
including technical officers, visited the factory of Premier Modular and llke Homes —
in East Yorkshire.

The panels are manufactured to exact measurements and are usually supported by
a timber or galvanised metal frame.

The units were constructed in the factory and then transported and placed in situ by
lorry and crane.

The delegates who visited the various modular homes were very impressed by what
they saw from the perspective of speed of build/erection, to the quality of the
workmanship and less snagging issues.

Points to consider when comparing MMC properties versus traditional build

» The buildings often sit on a concrete raft, so there is no need for extensive
ground works

12


http://www.reachhomes.org/

Page 206

* Once the concrete raft is in place the building is delivered on a lorry and installed
using a crane to place the main sections that are then fixed together — this
minimised disruption to neighbours, traffic and the environment, sites can easily
be returned to green space with the removal of the unit

* The build timeframe is greatly reduced as ground works can be carried out
alongside the manufacture of the unit unlike the linear nature of traditional build
homes.

«  MMC units are still subject to building regulations and planning permission

* Modular home designs vary in style/size, can be customised and more easily
extended than traditional build

* Modular homes are permanent structures — “real property”

+ The Buildoffsite Property Assurance Scheme (BOPAS) is a structural warranty
insurance scheme which covers a period of 10 years after completion; it is the
equivalent of NHBC (National Housing Builder Council) for traditional build

* Mortgages for most MMC homes are the same as traditional built homes,
(although financial institutions have been slow to recognise the longevity of MMC,
this is rapidly changing as they recognise the potential of this market)

« Building/contents insurance is required

» Because MMC homes are so flexible, they can be fully accessible and designed
to comfortably house individuals throughout the changing requirements of their
lives

« MMC is ideal for smaller, constrained sites (of which RMBC has 300+) as long as
the access is adequate for the crane to position the units — some manufacturers,
such as HUSK, specialise in redeveloping old garage sites

* For small units, MMC is approximately 10%-20% more expensive than traditional
build but significant savings can be made when delivering a substantial number
of units

* Modular homes usually have better sound proofing than traditional builds due to
construction methods

» Containers can be stripped down and melted down to be reused/recycled

Maintenance Costs

In order to undertake a financial appraisal of the whole life costs of the scheme
information will be required around the ongoing maintenance of the units. As the
units are of non-standard construction, they may not be included in existing contract
agreements with maintenance partners. Further investigations into the likely costs of
maintaining the units as well as the arrangements for procuring this service will need
to be undertaken to understand the whole life costs of the units and this will form part
of the financial appraisal of any scheme.

The Council will re-procurement the repairs and maintenance contract in the New
Year and maintenance of MMC units will be written into the contract.

Strategic Housing and Development Service are delivering two MMC pilot schemes;
12, two bedroomed bungalows and 10 single person modular pods. The bidders
who have submitted tenders to carry out this work have stated that repairs and
maintenance costs are similar to traditional built homes.

The workforce needed to maintain this type of housing may require different skill sets
from those need to maintain traditional built properties. The pilot scheme will allow

13


http://www.husk-uk.com/

Page 207

assessment of this requirement and if necessary allow the workforce to up-skill to
provide support and maintenance to a larger development in the future.

Views of Young People

Three young people (Leaving Care) took part in the review and viewed both modular
and container homes.

The visit to REACH Homes elicited these comments

e JS said “l would be up for living in one”, he said he had enjoyed the visit.

e KG said “the containers are better than the other modular housing we saw”,
“would be nice if it could be made even more affordable for care leavers”, and
finally he said “| want one, I'll move in now.”

e CPa said “Rite good, mint idea, would live in one if had money, but it'’s a bit
Bullseye — here’s what u could have won” CPa felt that £35,000 was out of
reach for most care leavers.

In summary, the views of the young people were wholly positive, the style, size, ease
of up keep/maintenance, low energy bills and the variable locations for the units
appealed to them. They preferred the one person container units over the larger
houses. Communal/or shared living was not an option that the young people would
chose, each preferred their own space to make it home.

External Funding Programmes

If the scheme progresses the Council may wish to submit a bid to Homes England to
secure grant funding to support MMC development. The amount of grant funding will
vary according to the total scheme cost and will only pay for a proportion of the
costs, not the whole scheme. There has been a recent announcement on future
funding programmes. They are to cover the period 2016-21 (current programme),
2018- 2022 and 2022 -2026. The terms of the grant funding will be explored if any
additional finance is required.

Legal and Financial considerations

Different specifications, contracts and payment terms may need to be adopted if the
Council wishes to deliver significant numbers of MMC housing. For modular build, in
particular, the bulk of supplier costs are incurred upfront as the unit is manufactured
in a factory and the staged payment terms used with traditional built properties do
not fit.

RMBC Finance

Councillor Cowles put forward a suggestion that in additional to any new MMC units
being subject to the standard financial viability appraisal, they should to be
individually monitored for performance, repairs and maintenance. This should
provide a full and clear cost and revenue breakdown for the property. This
information may help the Council better understand asset life/depreciation cycle.

14



Page 208

Land Assets.

It is proposed that the units will be delivered on Council owned land. Suitable small
sites can be identified by the Council’'s Asset Management Team. A review of
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) land assets is underway. Officers have visited all
of the HRA sites and inspected them to determine possible future use. The review
includes garage sites (with fixed garages) and garage plot sites (where plots are
offered to tenants to provide their own building).

Tenancy Options

Although this topic was not explored in depth as part of the review, careful
consideration needs to be given to the ownership of the properties as this will
determine the types of tenancy which can be issued. Further details are provided in
https://www.rotherhamkeychoices.org.uk/content/Information/PolicyDocuments

Energy Options

The energy supply market for domestic customers offers a number of options, each
with their own advantages and disadvantages. In the long term, the decisions the
Council takes may not reflect future technology gains or future Government policy.

Decisions around energy efficiency measures will be taken with consideration to
price, increase of supply and the offset of capital costs (the price of the technology
used) against payback period. High-end energy efficiency technologies tend to bring
additional cost to the Council but the benefits of the technology is realised by the
tenant only.

Value for money may have to be compromised if some of the options are adopted
but the Council must limit the risk of tenants being exposed to fuel poverty. It must
be understood that a change is behaviour is needed to get the most of many new
technologies; this is often very difficult to establish.

Depending on the site, it may be possible to deliver off-grid pods with self-sufficient
solar power. This would be of significant benefit to the tenant of that property in
terms of fuel costs.

Tenants of in-grid properties with solar photovoltaics (solar PV) would benefit from
selling excess energy back to the grid; the sums received would depend on the
weather and the tenant’s behaviour.

Battery storage was considered as part of the original solar power idea. It turned out
that battery storage could offer advantages in its own right in grid-connected pods
without solar arrays. Lithium ion batteries were the only technology likely to be useful
on the envisaged scale of individual pods or groups of perhaps up to a dozen at this
time.

One option is to simply store the electricity till it's needed and the best option is at
the source of use in the tenant’s home. By charging a battery at off peak times the
price of energy can be less. The exact times vary, but the off-peak period will begin
between 10pm and 12pm, and last for 8 hours. This stored electricity can then be

15


https://www.rotherhamkeychoices.org.uk/content/Information/PolicyDocuments

Page 209

used during the day offsetting the peak cost of electricity. The cost of the battery
and its installation would have to be borne by the consumer or third party and this
may mean the resident is tied into one supplier contract which would not be practical
or possible under current legislation or tenant landlord agreements/legislation.
Although the battery could be supplied as part of such a tariff, this would require a
long term commitment which might not be compatible with tenancy agreements.
Therefore this option would require the battery to form part of the capital investment
in the pod, unless the cost of the metre can be removed from the capital investment
and offered separately.

If a group of pods were to be located some distance from existing power supplies, a
communal battery for peak-lopping could reduce the required capacity of the mains
connection. Depending on the length of the connection, it could be cheaper to install
a battery and a low-rated power line than to install a high-rated line. This could
become relevant if there was an intention to locate pods in rural parts of the
Borough.

Another consideration is the life span of the batteries. This depends on how often the
batteries are charged and discharged and the conditions in which they are charged
and discharged. The lifespan of a battery will depend on how it is used but it is not
unusual for a battery to last 15 years. Alternatively, a large battery could have the
capacity to serve a small group homes. The council could enter into An Energy
Service Company (ESCo)2, buy a storage battery and buy energy at off peak times
to sell to the estate. Capital outlay would be expensive and may not be possible with
the Council acting alone.

Complications with this system include:
e Possible security of supply should the battery fail
e Reputationally, the Council may not wish to disconnect non-paying tenants
e Battery storage (behind the meter® or not) should not be considered as the
only option

Conclusion

Evidence shows that the housing market is broken due to insufficient homes being
built at a rate quick enough to meet the demand of the changing demographics at a
local and national level.

Overall the construction industry is reliant on a few large companies who dominate
the industry. Insufficient affordable homes are being built and fewer people are able
to buy their own homes as the ratio of average house prices to averages earnings

2 An Energy Service Company (ESCo) is a commercial structure created specifically to produce, supply and
manage the local delivery of decentralised energy to a ‘whole site’ development. For example, an ESCo can be
formed to support a regeneration area, a large residential development, a single commercial initiative such as an
office or manufacturing plant, or a hospital or multi-unit development of commercial offices or retail outlets. High
initial capital costs can be seen as an obstacle to the provision of decentralised energy.

3 “behind-the-meter” means the energy storage system is installed on the customer’s property and on the
customer’s side of the utility meter. The use of a BTM energy storage system, therefore, can reduce the customer
utility bill.

16



Page 210

has more than doubled since 1998. The proportion of working families who are
homeless has grown in the last five years. It is anticipated that homeless applications
will rise by at least 50% as a result of this and the introduction of the Homelessness
Reduction Act 2017.

The introduction of Government initiatives such as Welfare Reform and Universal
Credit has had an impact as the initial waiting period between submitting a claim and
receiving money can be six weeks. This often leads to an increase in the claimant’'s
individual debt and rent arrears.

The number of applicants on the Council’s housing register is 6,628 against a
housing stock of 20,393 properties.

The tenant’s “Right to buy” continues to reduce the number of social house.

The need for single person accommodation is set to rise in the coming years.

One of the ways identified in the Green Paper — A New Deal for Social Housing to
assist the growth of the housing market is by building social homes to act as a
springboard to home ownership.

There are renewable energy options available to the Council to introduce in to MMC
properties, however further consideration needs to be given to the preferred option.
Points for consideration include the efficiency of type of energy used, the capital cost
of installing new technology/equipment, to prevent possibility of tenants falling into
“fuel poverty” and finally and the most difficult is to change behaviours surrounding
the use of renewable energy options.

It has been suggested by the Government that a radical rethink is required to
reshape the housing market, by:

e Encouraging Councils to plan for the right homes in the right places based
on evidence of need

e Building homes faster to make the planning system open and accessible to
prevent unnecessary delays in the process

e Diversify the housing market by opening the market to smaller builders and
to those who embrace innovative and modern efficient methods

e Supporting housing associations and encouraging local authorities to build
again

e Encouraging investment in the private rented sector

e Promoting modular and factory built homes.

e Making it easier for individuals to build their own homes

Summary

A positive outlook from this review is that options have been discussed that if carried
out would assist in repairing the broken housing market locally. One solution is to
provide new affordable container and modular homes, with renewable, cheaper
energy sources, for young people and small families.

17



Page 211

The idea of container homes received positive comments from young people who
wanted to move in straight away.

There are currently two small MMC pilot projects underway in the Borough which in
time will offer learning to support future MMC developments. As with all expenditure
made on behalf of the council, value for money needs to be delivered. It is estimated
that the cost of one container home is around £37,000. This would be reduced
should the Council seek deliver greater numbers of units or if there was to be a
guaranteed pipeline of properties.

A quote for consideration..........

“Normal ways of doing things are there to be challenged. If we're going to make life
better, we need to try new things”. (Citu Team)

Recommendations

1. That consideration of any learning points identified as part of the RMBC’s
MMC pilot schemes be used to inform any future MMC housing projects

2. That Housing develops a pilot project of up to 10 pods at various locations
throughout the Borough

3. A pilot project of 5 MMC homes for families be developed

4. Develop the option of various energy packages in the MMC properties e.g.
solar power and high energy efficiency measures for residents of the Borough
whether in social or private rented accommodation

5. That each individual MMC property is monitored to demonstrate capital cost
and repairs/maintenance costs over a set period of time to allow practical
comparison with traditional built homes.

18



Page 212

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Fixing our broken housing market
Presented to Parliament by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government by Command of Her Majesty, February 2017

Local Government Association Briefing
Debate on the impact of Universal Credit on claimants
House of Lords, Thursday 16" November 2017

Shelter. Research paper. “In work, but out of a home” 2018

19



Page
Councillor (01709 255821)
Councillor (01709 255709) 4
Councillor (01709 255916) 4 . \ /

PIITTIII(‘ CNARIAALIIMITIEC AT TULC NC CUCDVTUIAN/ WE NN

Serving Wingfield, Rockingham, Munsbrough, Greasbrough and Kimberworth Park

WHAT have we done?

We recently produced a WINGFIELD WARD ANNUAL REPORT which we circulated to all Councillor colleagues and
the wider community BUT just to reiterate some of the things we have done. ..

REDUCED anti-social behaviour by initiating and overseeing a complete physical re-design of St Johns Green,
Kimberworth.

FUNDED and overseen the creation of Byrley Road Garden Hut—a new community hub for Kimberworth Park
TARA and other groups which we launched with The Mayor. ..

2 il
A 0

... and the internal / external refurbishment of Greasbrough Library—an existing community hub which we
again launched with The Mayor. Feedback from the community has been positive; ‘Amazing and unique for
Greasbrough’ and ‘We were there for a meeting . . . Very impressed!!

sarah.allen@rotherham.gov.uk ROth er h amam»

robert.elliott@rotherham.gov.uk Metropolitan ‘
john.williams@rotherham.gov.uk Borough Council




Page

Councillor (01709 255821)

Councillor (01709 255709)

Councillor (01709 255916)

PIITTIlIf‘ CARIAALIINITIEC AT TUEC NEC CVVEDVTUIANNM WE NN

Serving Wingfield, Rockingham, Munsbrough, Greasbrough and Kimberworth Park

WHAT have we done?

HELD regular ward networking events to inform the development and delivery of our Ward Plan. Ward budget
funding was granted to community groups at a one event we ran as a Dragons Den. At another event, attended
by up to 40 people, we captured feedback on proposals for St Johns Green. The most recent one was the annual

community awards.

Councillors provide drinks and toast!!

WHAT do we want to do?

Recently refreshed our Ward Priorities at a networking event and away day with Neighbourhoods officers.

=  Continue to develop community hubs and engage with individuals / groups through networking events
= Continue to ensure a co-ordinated response to Crime and ASB

= Seek to address isolation / loneliness »

=  Support groups working to provide facilities for young people 7 CHAN GED
=  Seek to address any impacts arising from Universal Credit PRIORITIE S
=

Look at what can be done locally in respect of mental health

WHAT have we learned?

Colleagues will have the opportunity to read our WINGFIELD WARD ANNUAL REPORT and this report. We wish to
take the opportunity presented on Wednesday 23rd January 2019 to reflect on WHAT have we learned—as the
Ward Councillors—not simply what have we done, which we hope will be interesting to everyone involved.

sarah.allen@rotherham.gov.uk Roth er h amapp
robert.elliott@rotherham.gov.uk Metropolitan ‘

john.williams@rotherham.gov.uk Borough Council




Councillor (01709 255862)

Councillor (01909 564647)
Councillor (01709 255929)
PUTTING COMMUNITIES AT THE OF EVERYTHING WE DO

Ward Priorities

. Build community infrastructure via the development of a ward based network of
key individuals/groups.

. Support and develop activities and facilities for children, young people and
families including educational projects.

o Support health and wellbeing initiatives.

. Support the development of any new Neighbourhood Watch

. Support the implementation of the road improvement scheme.
. Work in partnership with police and others around community safety.
o Develop tenant engagement and support.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

Through the Ward Budget we have allowed community groups to bid for the funds rather than us de-
cide where we think it should be spent. By doing this since its introduction in 2017 we have supported
the sustainability and infrastructure of the buildings and land that they use including Anston Bowling
Club, Anston Cricket Club, 27th Woodsetts Scouts, Woodsetts Parish Council and 35th Anston
Scouts.

We have funded a mud kitchen at Anston Stones Early Years to help improve the physical develop-
ment and co-ordination of their children as well as several cultural and activity trips for both adult and
children’s groups.

There were many more applications but these are just a few of the ones that have been supported.

Anston Plantation Event March 2018

In 2017 the Woodland Management Plan recommended the removal of a large number of trees after
they were identified as being unhealthy and potentially dangerous to members of the public who use
the area on a regular basis. Rather than just simply remove the trees and dispose of them it was
agreed that an educational project could be developed around this proposed work.

With the help of Rotherham Park Rangers and Neighbourhood Partnerships we were able to put on a
two day event within the plantation. On the Friday 160 local school children had the opportunity to
take part in a variety of activities including wood carving, learning about the local woodland and its
wildlife, creating wildlife habitats and watch a sawmill in action with the Saturday being open to any
resident and their families to participate. The wood that was removed from the plantation will eventu-

c DE [1€0_NLIO _DENCINE NIICEL W PDE DIACEed Aalound e age and In An O] OE /NOOQ

jonathan.ireland@rotherham.gov.uk Roth er h amp»
clive.jepson@rotherham.gov.uk Metropolitan ‘

katherine.wilson@rotherham.gov.uk Borough Council




Page 216

Rackford Meadows Event October 2018

Following on from the successful Anston Plantation event it was decided that with the co-operation of
Anston Parish Council who own the land a similar one would be held at Rackford Meadows at North
Anston to encourage educational woodland activities. A hundred children from local schools attended
on the Friday and went on a series of educational woodland walks in Anston Stones Wood which is
designated as a SSSI and has an archaeological history dating back millions of years before returning
to make pictures out of natural items found in the woods, The wood carver and sawmill activities were
also back to work with the children and on the Saturday stalls were provided by the Chesterfield Ca-
nal Trust, Sheffield Conservation Volunteers, South Yorkshire Badger Group, Sheffield Sorby Natural
History Society, Cresswell Craggs Heritage Centre, RMBC Dog Wardens and the Salvation Army.
The event was well supported on the Saturday by many residents and their families.

Ward Defibrillator Project

We are looking at developing a ward wide defibrillator project where it is hoped that through a combi-
nation of the Ward budget, the Community Leadership Fund and other funding streams we can pro-
vide more of these units in both Anston and Woodsetts. We have already had one installed at Green-
lands Park at North Anston which was as a result of partnership working with RMBC Green Spaces
and Anston Parish Council. Following on from this training sessions have been held for local residents
and users of the park to show them how to use the equipment.

In the New Year we will be visiting all of the schools in the ward to discuss the possibility of a defibril-
lators being installed outside each school as well as identifying any other any other suitable locations.

Woodland Drive, North Anston

Working together with South Yorkshire Police and Neighbourhood Partnerships we are looking at
ways to support the residents on Woodland Drive after numerous complaints were received regarding
anti-social behaviour and drug related issues in the area. After a number of meetings we are now
working with both Housing and Streetpride to improve the existing street lighting and install new
CCTV cameras around the Community Centre to help residents feel safe within their community.

Community Clean Up Days

A community skip and clean up day is well received by the community and gives us the opportunity
along with partner organisations the opportunity to engage and speak to residents who wouldn’t nor-
mally call to see us at our ward surgeries. These days are a valuable resource for the residents to
help keep their community clean and tidy and in turn it allows us to discuss with residents any on go-
ing problems in the area.



Boston Castle Ward
Saghir Alam
Taiba Yasseen o

Councillor
Alam

BOSTON CASTLE WARD—PRIORITIES AND RESPONSES

PIITTIIID CARIAIIMNITIEC AT TULC LUCADT NE CVUECDVTUIAN WAWIE NN
Serving Moorgate, Canklow, Broom Valley, Town Centre & Cliffon

Priority 1 - Strengthen belonging and communities feeling safer in Boston Castle ward

Boston Castle’s Councillors have ensured a pro-active, co-ordinated response to such issues.

Duke of Norfolk estate

. Ward Councillors initiated and led a Tasking Group involving residents, Police, Community Safety
and Neighbourhoods Service in response to community concerns regarding high no of burglaries

. Presented proposals to a public meeting at the Town Hall attended by 120+ residents

. As a result, ward budget funded several measures including CCTV on entrance points to estate and

barriers installed on a number of alleyways throughout the estate.

~N

Duke of Norfolk residents were given a special
award by the Police Crime Commissioner for the
pro-active work they did including establishing a

WhatsApp group with over 150 residents

J

Nelson Street, Wharncliffe

. Community concerns were raised in response to which Councillors called a meeting with RMBC
CPU, SYP and the local Housing provider

. Agreed a letter be sent to every household in area; Acknowledging concerns, Informing residents
of actions being taken to address those concerns and Emphasising importance of using recognised
channels of reporting

Harcourt Terrace / Badsley Moor Lane and Broom Road / Arundel Road

. Community concerns were raised in response to which Councillors held a meeting with partners
and a follow up meeting with residents in the Clifton Park Garden Room

. Put in CCTV, received positive feedback

Clifton Mount

. Community concerns were raised at a surgery in response to which Councillors asked officers to
develop and deliver an Action Plan

. Progress reports were provided by Councillors and RMBC CPU / Neighbourhoods at subsequent
surgeries — received positive feedback

saghir.alam@rotherham.gov.uk Roth e rh amp»
rose.mcneely@rotherham.gov.uk Metropolitan ‘

taiba.yasseen@rotherham.gov.uk Borough Council




Councillor (01709 255959)

Councillor 01709 255923)

Councillor (01709 255715)

PII'I"I'III(‘ CARIAAIINITIEC AT TUE NLC CVUCDVTUIAM WWIE NN

Serving Moorgate, Canklow, Broom Valley, Town Centre & Cliffon

Priority 2 - Engage and involve local communities, voluntary and community organisations and
businesses to support Boston Castle ward priorities

Ward Budget — Dragons Den Event 10" Oct ‘17

. Groups were invited to bid into the Ward Budget
and pitch to the public at a Dragons Den event

. Residents and Councillors agreed to fund 6
projects including Rotherham African Drummers
and Canklow Rainbow Kids Club

. The Boston Castle Ward Budget has also funded
other projects including Casting Innovations and
Clifton Park Community Gym.

Priority 3 - Work with the community on specific local developments

Boston Castle ward includes very different neighbourhoods as well as the Town Centre. The Councillors
hold ward networking events bringing people together to update and where possible work with them on
specific local developments. Progress reports have been provided in relation to; Boston / Clifton Parks,
Rothwell Grange and the Town Centre including the relocation of the bus station

Priority 4 - Celebrate achievements and bring communities together

The ward networking event in December is a chance to say thank you to partners and residents. The
Councillors have presented Community Angel Awards in 2017 and 2018.

saghir.alam@rotherham.gov.uk Roth er h amapp
rose.mcneely@rotherham.gov.uk Metropolitan ‘

taiba.yasseen@rotherham.gov.uk Borough Council




Page 219 Agenda Item 15
1B

STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE - 13/12/18

STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
Thursday, 13th December, 2018

Present:- Councillor McNeely (in the Chair); Councillors Clark, Simpson, Vjestica,
Mr. D. Bates, Mr. D. Rowley and Mr. R. Swann, Parish Council Members, and also
Mr. P. Edler and Mrs. J. Porter, Independent Members.

Also in attendance was Mr. P. Beavers, Independent Person.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Pitchley and Mr. D. Roper-
Newman.

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Clark declared a personal interest in Minute No. 24 (Outcome
of Standards and Ethics Sub-Committee Hearing regarding Alleged
Breach of the Code of Conduct) and left the room whilst the matter was
discussed.

Councillor Simpson declared he was now a Parish Councillor as well as a
Borough Councillor.

20. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting held on
13t September, 2018.

With regards to Minute No. 13 the Committee received confirmation that
terms of office for the Parish Council Representatives had been agreed
up to 2020 and the Representatives advised accordingly.

Resolved:- That the minutes of the meeting of the Standards and Ethics
Committee held on 13" September, 2018 be approved as a true and
accurate record of proceedings.

21. THE APPOINTMENT OF PARISH COUNCIL AND INDEPENDENT
MEMBERS OF THE STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

Consideration was given to the report which set out the recommendations
in respect of the Parish Council Members on the Standards and Ethics
Committee and, following interview, the need for approval of the two
candidates for the role of Independent Members to the Standards and
Ethics Committee.

The Committee noted the Parish Council Liaison Group had resolved that
it would wish for the current Parish Council Members of the Committee to
continue as members until the 2020 elections and would continue in these
roles until the end of the 2019/2020 municipal year or until further
nominations were made to these roles following the Parish Council



2B

22,

Page 220
STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE - 13/12/18

elections in May 2020, whichever was the later.

Following the recruitment process to try to fill the three Independent
Member vacancies two applications were received. An interview process
involving the Chair, Monitoring Officer and one of the Independent
Persons confirmed both of the candidates were felt to be appropriate
persons to undertaken the role of Independent Member. The two
candidates were Mags Evers and Adela Bingham.

The Committee welcomed confirmation of the Parish Council Members
and the appointment of two more Independent Members. However, this
now brought the Independent Member numbers back up to four out of five
places, but it was felt the remaining vacancy should still be filled for the
remaining Independent Member on the Committee. The Committee
asked that this be pursued.

Clarification was also sought on why the Independent Persons were not
included in the membership of the Committee and it was pointed out the
need for independence and that they attended meetings by invitation only.
However, it was suggested that as part of the annual membership
reporting the Independent Persons be identified and listed for information.

Resolved:- (1) That Council be recommended to approve the
continuation of the Parish Council Members on the Standards and Ethics
Committee until the end of the 2019/20 Municipal year or until further
nominations are made after the Parish Council elections in 2020,
whichever is the later.

(2) That Council be recommended to confirm the appointments of Mags
Evers and Adela Bingham as Independent Members of the Standards and
Ethics Committee for a period of four years.

(3) That the recruitment process continue in order to fill the current
vacancy for an Independent Member of the Committee.

(4) That as part of the annual membership reporting the Independent
Persons be identified and listed for information.

CONSIDERATION OF COMPLAINTS

Consideration was given to the report presented by the Deputy Monitoring
Officer, detailing the progress with the handling of complaints relating to
breaches of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members and Town and
Parish Councillors. The report listed the current cases of complaint and
the action being taken in respect of each one and an updated complaint
schedule was circulated.

Details of each related case and recommended outcome were
highlighted.



Page 221

STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE - 13/12/18 3B

23.

24,

Resolved:- (1) That the report be received and the contents noted.

(2) That the progress in respect of each case be noted pursuant to the
Standards and Ethics Committee Complaints Procedure.

REVIEW OF CONCERNS RAISED PURSUANT TO THE
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

Consideration was given to the report and appendix presented by the
Deputy Monitoring Officer, which provided an overview of the
Whistleblowing cases which have been received over the past year.

The appendix to the report set out clearly the description of the concerns
received and action.

Clarification was sought on the continuation of any action once a person
had left the authority and whether it was normal practice for concerns to
be submitted anonymously.

The Committee were advised action still continued even if a person had
left the authority and this was recorded on their personal files. Reporting
concerns anonymously also safeguarded individuals in circumstances
where investigations could take place without identification of where the
concern originated.

Resolved:- That the Whistleblowing concerns raised over the previous
year and the actions taken to address these matters be noted.

OUTCOME OF STANDARDS AND ETHICS SUB-COMMITTEE
HEARING RE ALLEGED BREACH OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Consideration was given to the report presented by the Deputy Monitoring
Officer which set out clearly the outcome of a Standards and Ethics Sub-
Committee Hearing which took place on 14t September, 2018 in relation
to an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct by Councillor Brian Cutts
and the subsequent decision of Council, at its meeting on 31st October,
2018, to remove Councillor Cutts from the South Yorkshire Police and
Crime Panel.

As set out in the Decision Record, the Sub-Committee found that
Councillor Brian Cutts’ conduct was in breach of the Code of Conduct in
that he had failed to treat others with respect. They found that the two of
the comments he had made were homophobic, being indicative of a
dislike or prejudice towards LGBT people and that in making those
comments he had failed to treat others with respect, namely the LGBT
community and in particular same sex couples who foster or adopt
children or who wish to do so.



4B

Page 222
STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE - 13/12/18

The Sub-Committee also found that by making the comments Councillor
Brian Cutts was also in breach of the Code of Conduct in that he had
done something which may cause the Council to breach any of the
equality duties and had conducted himself in a manner which could
reasonably be regarded as bringing his office of councillor or the Council
into disrepute.

The Sub-Committee recommended a number of sanctions that should be
applied to the Subject Member:-

° The member shall be censured.

o The formal decision notice setting out the findings of the Sub-
Committee shall be published on agenda of the next meeting of the
Standards & Ethics Committee.

o The Sub-Committee shall recommend to the Councillor's Group
Leader that he be removed from the Committees or Sub-Committees
of the Council upon which he sits.

o The Monitoring Officer shall be instructed to arrange equalities
training for the Subject Member.

o That the Sub-Committee shall recommend to Council that the
Subject Member be removed from all outside appointments to which
he has been appointed or nominated by the Council.

The Leader of Councillor Cutts’ political group declined to remove him
from his role on the Improving Places Select Commission. The equalities
training for Councillor Cutts took place on 30th October, 2018 and Council
considered the Sub-Committee’s recommendation regarding outside
bodies at its meeting on 31st October ,2018 and removed Councillor Brian
Cutts from the South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel.

The Committee were pleased with the outcome following the hearing, but
expressed its disappointment at the decision of the Leader of the
Opposition not to remove Councillor Cutts from the Improving Places
Select Commission.

The Committee also realised it had limited powers under the Localism Act,
but would await the outcome of the review by the Committee for
Standards in Public Life and the outcome of the consultation process by
January/February, 2019. A report on the outcome would be submitted to
the next meeting in March, 2019.

Resolved:- (1) That the outcome of the Standards and Ethics Sub-
Committee Hearing on 14th September, 2018 be noted.

(2) That the decision of Council at its meeting on 31st October, 2018 to
accept the recommendation of the Standards and Ethics Sub-Committee



Page 223

STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE - 13/12/18 5B

25.

26.

and to remove Councillor Brian Cutts from the South Yorkshire Police and
Crime Panel be noted.

(3) That the decision by the Leader of the Opposition not to remove
Councillor Cutts from the Improving Places Select Commission was
disappointing.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act,
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part | of Schedule 12A to
the Local Government Act (as amended March, 2006) (information relates
to finance or business affairs).

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

Consideration was given to a report presented by the Head of Internal
Audit which provided an update on two recent internal audits covering
areas that were included in the Committee’s Terms of Reference.

The first audit covered ‘Governance’, in particular reviewing the Codes of
Conduct, Registers of Interest, Gifts and Hospitality, and the Induction
Process for Officers and Members.

The second audit covered ‘Compliance with Financial Procedure Rules —
Virements’, this being an area identified by the Assistant Director,
Financial Services as a possible area of concern.

Internal Audit were able to give ‘Reasonable Assurance’ for both reviews.
The definition for that level of assurance was that there was ‘Reasonable
Assurance’ that the system of internal control is designed to achieve the
service’s objectives and minimise risk. However, some weaknesses in the
design or inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of some
objectives at a low risk’. Recommendations were graded red, amber or
green according to their importance.

The Committee welcomed the reports and were comfortable with the
levels of authorisation and completion of appropriate registers.

Clarification was sought on the differences between the Members and
Officers declarations for gifts and hospitality with a request that a report
be submitted to the next meeting in March for consideration.

Resolved:- (1) That the work completed by Internal Audit be noted.

(2) That a report be submitted to the next meeting on the differences
between the Members and Officers declarations for gifts and hospitality.



6B

27.

Page 224
STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE - 13/12/18

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Resolved:- That the next meeting of the Standards and Ethics
Committee take place on Thursday, 21st March, 2019 at 2.00 p.m.



Page 225 Agenda Item 16

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

AUDIT COMMITTEE
27th November, 2018

Present:- Councillor Wyatt (in the Chair); Councillors Cowles, Vjestica, Walsh and
Bernard Coleman (Independent Person).

Mr. T. De Zoya, Grant Thornton, was also present.

Councillors Allen and Lelliott were in attendance for Minute No. 58 (Regeneration
and Environment Directorate’s Risk Register).

43. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Minute No. 55 (Appointment of Independent Person) - Bernard Coleman
made a Personal Declaration.

44, QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OR THE PRESS
There were no members of the public or press present at this meeting.

45. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 2ND OCTOBER,
2018

Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting of the
Audit Committee held on 2" October, 2018.

Arising from Minute No. 32 (Audit Committee Terms of Reference), an
update was sought as to whether the updated Terms of Reference had
been considered by the Constitution Working Group.

Resolved:- (1) That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Audit
Committee be approved as a correct record of proceedings.

(2) That an update be submitted to the next meeting with regard to the
Terms of Reference.

46. MID-YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND PRUDENTIAL
INDICATORS MONITORING REPORT 2018-19

Consideration was given to the report presented by the Finance Manager
outlining a mid-year treasury review.

The review, as set out in the Appendix submitted, highlighted the key
changes to the Council’s capital activity (the Pls) and the actual and
proposed treasury management activity (borrowing and investment).

With regard to investments, the primary governing principle remained
security over return and the criteria for selecting counterparties continued
to reflect this.



Page 226

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

47.

Overall borrowing remained fairly constant over the period covered by the
report. The Council would maintain its strategy of being significantly
under-borrowed against the capital financing requirement as the most
cost effective approach in the current financial climate. The Council’s
existing Treasury Management Strategy provided for the Council to take
out £30M of new borrowing per annum over the next 4 years to reduce
the amount of under-borrowing over time. The position would remain
under review and an update of the Strategy would be submitted to
Members within the Budget and Council Tax 2019/20 report to Council in
February, 2019.

With regard to governance, strategies and monitoring were undertaken by
the Audit Committee.

The report showed that the underlying economic and financial
environment remained difficult for the Council, foremost being the
improving but still challenging concerns over investment counterparty risk.
This background encouraged the Council to continue maintaining
investments short term and with high quality counterparties. The
downside of such a policy was that investment returns remained low. The
governing principle remained security over return and the criteria for
selecting counterparties continued to reflect this.

Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators would form part of the
2019/20 budget report submitted to Council on 27" February, 2019.

Discussion took place with the following issues raised/clarified:-

- Acknowledgement that the delay in taking out new long borrowing
did give rise to an element of interest rate risk as long term
borrowing rates may rise. However, the situation was closely
monitored

- Working with Treasury Management, the interest rates were looked
at on an almost daily basis with further updates at a weekly briefing

Resolved:- That the report be noted.

EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2071-18

The Finance Manager reported that KPMG had now concluded their
2017/18 audit and had issued their audit certificate on 31st August, 2018.
Both the audit certificate and notice of conclusion of audit had been

published on the Council’s website.

The audit work had been designed to specifically address the following
significant risks:-



48.

Page 227
AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

e Valuation of PPE
e Pensions Assets and Liabilities
e Faster Close

A copy of the AAL was attached to the report.

The main headlines from the AAL in relation to the accounts and other
audit responsibilities were that:-

— The external auditor had issued an unqualified audit opinion on the
Authority’s financial statements on 31st July

— 4 adjusted audit differences were identified. These adjustments did
not impact the prime financial statements

— 4 unadjusted audit differences were identified. As the majority related
to estimates in property, plant and equipment, no amendment was
required as the actual value of the adjustments was not certain

— An unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure
value for money (VFM) for 2017/18 on 31st July, 2018

— A risk assessment had been undertaken as part of the VFM audit
work to identify key areas impacting on their VFM conclusion.
Financial sustainability and delivery of the Children’s Services
Improvement Plan had been identified

— The Annual Governance Statement approved at the July Audit
Committee (Minute No. 24 refers), was consistent with KPMG
understanding and compliant with the CIPFA/SOLACE framework on
good governance in local government

— The Council’s consolidation pack prepared to support the production
of Whole of Government Accounts by HM Treasury was consistent
with the audited financial statements

— There were no high priority recommendations or other matters that
needed to be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee

Resolved:- That the final Annual Audit Letter 2017/18 presented to the
Council by its former external auditors, KPMG LLP, be noted and
approved for publication on the Council’s website.

EXTERNAL AUDIT AND INSPECTION RECOMMENDATIONS

Further to Minute No. 7 of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on
19t June, 2018, consideration was given to a report, presented by Bev
Pepperdine, Performance Assurance Manager, providing details of recent
and current external audits and inspections including the details of



Page 228

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

49,

arrangements that were in place regarding the accountability and
governance for implementing recommendations arising therefrom.

The report included detail of progress being made in respect of the
following specific areas and Directorates:-

— the “Fresh Start” Improvement Plan;

— Adult Care and Housing;

— Children and Young People’s Services;
— Liberty House

— Regeneration and Environment Services
— Finance and Customer Services

The summary of recommendations from “Active” Inspection and Audit
Action Plans was appended to the submitted report.

Senior Managers attended the Annual Conversation with HMI Ofsted on
20" November, 2018. This was a formal discussion which included a self-
evaluation by Children’s Services and discussion of progress against the
8 recommendations from their previous inspection. It was hoped that a
number of the 33 actions identified to address the 8 Ofsted report
recommendations would be classed as complete when the outcome of the
Annual Conversation was received in January 2019.

Resolved:- (1) That the report be received and its contents noted.

(2) That the governance arrangements that were currently in place for
monitoring and managing the recommendations from external audits and
inspections, as now reported, be noted.

(3) That the Audit Committee continue to receive regular reports in
relation to external audit and inspections and the progress made in
implementing recommendations.

USE OF SURVEILLANCE AND ACQUISITION OF COMMUNICATIONS
DATA POWERS - UPDATE

Dermot Pearson, Assistant Director, Legal Services, presented an update
on the use of covert surveillance and covert human intelligence sources
(CHIS) carried out by Council officers under the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).

As previously with the Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC), the
Council was required to notify IPCO of the number of directed
surveillance/CHIS authorisations granted in each financial year. The
annual return submitted in April for the 2017/18 financial year confirmed
that there had been no such authorisations in that period nor had there
been any such authorisations so far this calendar year.



50.

Page 229
AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

The Council was also required to notify the Interception of
Communications Commissioner’s Office of the number of authorisations
for the acquisition and disclosure of communications data granted each
calendar year. There had been no such authorisations so far in 2018.

The Council’s Policies were considered by the Committee in June, 2018
and re-adopted with minor amendments. However, the publication of the
Revised Codes of Practice for Covert Surveillance and Property
Interference and for Covert Human Intelligence Sources would require the
RIPA Policy to be reviewed before the next scheduled annual review in
June 2019.

Resolved:- (1) That it be noted that the Council had not made use of
surveillance or acquisition of communication data powers under RIPA to
date in 2018.

(2) That a further report be submitted on the implications of the Home
Office’s revised Codes of Practice on covert surveillance and interference
with property and on covert human intelligence sources.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

David Webster, Head of Internal Audit, submitted the refreshed Council
Code of Corporate Governance for consideration.

In April 2016 CIPFA (the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy) and SOLACE (the Society of Local Authority Chief
Executives) published revised guidance on delivering good governance in
local government. The Council’'s Code of Corporate Governance was
rewritten at that time to set out how it would comply with the new
guidance. Although there had been no subsequent changes to the
guidance in the last year, an annual review of the Code had been
completed in order to ensure it remained up-to-date and relevant to the
Council.

The 7 key principles set out in the guidance which underpinned the
governance of each local government organisation had not changed.
However, how each of those principles would be evidenced in Rotherham
had and was set out in the report submitted.

Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:-

— Inclusion of Equalities and Human Rights Implications in accordance
with the Council’s reporting template

— Key decisions were included within the Forward Plan which was
published 28 days before consideration by the Cabinet

Resolved:- (1) That the refreshed version of the Local Code of Corporate
Governance be approved.



Page 230

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

51.

52.

53.

(2) That Local Code of Corporate Governance be signed off by the Chief
Executive and Leader of the Council.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND GUIDE

Further to Minute No. 48 of the meeting held on 8" February, 2017,
Simon Dennis, Corporate Risk Manager, submitted proposed changes to
the Risk Policy and Strategy.

The changes to the Policy and Strategy were:-

— Removal of references to structures and processes that no longer
existed

— Greater emphasis on high impact, hidden risks as well as a summary
of the different types of risk that the Council might face

— Recognition of the “word based” version of the Risk Register that
Directorates could now use instead of the excel version

— Inclusion of Appendix F setting out the numbering conventions that
the Council applied to risk management

Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:-

e The Risk Champions Group met on a monthly basis where
discussions included the wider changing climate and associated risks
to the Council

e The Local Resilience Forum met to discuss the forthcoming Brexit

Resolved:- That the revised Risk Policy and Strategy be approved.
AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN

Consideration was given to the proposed forward work plan for the Audit
Committee covering the period January, 2019 to November, 2019.

It was noted that the next edition of the forward work plan would include
the updated schedule of reports provided by Grant Thornton.

Resolved:- That the Audit Committee forward work plan, now submitted,
be supported and any amendments arising actioned in due course.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report submitted by Grant Thornton UK LLP
providing details of the progress of the external audit of the Council’s
accounts and financial statements for the 2018/19 financial year, for the
period ending 14" November, 2018.

Mr. T. De Zoysa (representatives of Grant Thornton UK LLP) presented
the report and answered questions from Members.



54.

55.

Page 231
AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

It was noted that quarterly liaison meetings were to be held with the Chief
Executive and the Strategic Director, Finance and Customer Services,
throughout 2018/19 as well as a routine meeting with key members of the
Senior Finance team on 3 December to discuss key accounting and
auditing issues impacting on the 2018/19 accounts.

Key Finance staff would be invited to Grant Thornton’s annual accounts
workshop in February, 2019.

A Local Authority Audit Committee Chairs and Members event was to be
held in Leeds on 26t February, 2019.

Resolved:- That the report be received and its contents noted.
ITEMS FOR REFERRAL FOR SCRUTINY

There were no items for referral to Scrutiny.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER

(Mr. Bernard Coleman, Independent Member, left the room whilst this item
was being discussed.)

David Webster, Head of Internal Audit, presented a report setting out the
current arrangements with regard to the Audit Committee’s Independent
Member.

The Council had amended the Committee’s Terms of Reference in 2015
to include the provision for the appointment of an Independent Member.
On 9t December, 2015, Mr. Bernard Coleman had been appointed for a 3
year period.

The report set out 3 options for consideration as to how it wished to fill the
vacancy that would arise on 9" December, 2018:-

Option 1 — commence a recruitment process for a new Independent
Member

Option 2 — appoint the current Independent Member for a further 3 year
term until December 2021

Option 3 — appoint the current Independent Member for a 12 month period
to allow a recruitment process to take place.

Discussion ensued on the 3 options before the Committee.

Resolved:- (1) That Option 3 be approved by the Committee.



Page 232

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

56.

57.

(2) That the Council, at its meeting on 5th December, be recommended
to appoint Mr. Bernard Coleman as Independent Member of the Audit
Committee until 315t December, 2019.

(Mr. Bernard Coleman, Independent Member, rejoined the meeting.)
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That under Section 100(A) 4 of the Local Government Act
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of such
Act indicated, as now amended by the Local Government (Access to
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 (information relates to finance and
business affairs).

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Consideration was given to a report presented by David Webster, Head of
Internal Audit, which provided a summary of Internal Audit work
completed during 18t September to 31st October, 2018, and the key issues
that had arisen therefrom.

The completion of the audit plan had been impacted by 2 staff vacancies
within the Audit Team. Recruitment was underway with 2 new starters
expected to commence work in January 2019 and the secondments out of
and into the team had become permanent.

Performance against key indicators had improved meeting the required
level.

The updated plan was given in Appendix A and reasons for the deferral of
specific reviews were set out in Appendix B of the report submitted along
with proposed additions to the plan resulting from the consultation
exercise and management requests. The inclusion of an audit on
Eastwood Enforcement was discussed.

4 audits had been finalised since the last Audit Committee meeting one of
which Partial Assurance; the remaining 3 all had Substantial or
Reasonable Assurance.

Appendix D set out details of the unplanned responsive work completed
since the last Audit Committee with Appendix E summarising Internal
Audit’s performance against a number of Indicators.

Appendix F showed the number of outstanding recommendations that had
passed their original due date, age rated. For those over 120 days old the
detail was then given, where they had been deferred the comment
received from the Manager was given and where there was no change to
the due date or comment, the Manager had not updated the system.



58.

Page 233
AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

Discussion ensued on various matters contained within the agreed
actions section of the report which included:-

— Setting of realistic completion dates by managers
— Adult Social Care Direct Payments
— Liquid Logic

Resolved:- (1) That the Internal Audit work undertaken since meetings of
the Audit Committee, 15t September to 31st October, 2018, and the key
issues arising therefrom be noted.

(2) That the information submitted regarding the performance of Internal
Audit and the actions being taken by management in respect of the
outstanding actions be noted.

(3) That a progress report be submitted by Performance and Planning on
Liquid Logic.

REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT'S DIRECTORATE RISK
REGISTER

Consideration was given to a report, presented by Paul Woodcock, Acting
Strategic Director, Regeneration and Environment, and Tom Smith,
Assistant Director, Community Safety and Street Scene, providing details
of the Risk Register and risk management activity within the Regeneration
and Environment’s Directorate.

Cabinet Members for Jobs and the Local Economy and Cleaner, Greener
Communities, were also in attendance.

The Committee sought reassurance on the Risk Register and risk
management activity in particular highlighting:-

— How the Register was maintained/monitored and at what frequency

— Involvement of the Cabinet Members for Jobs and the Local
Economy, Waste Roads and Community Safety and Cleaner, Greener
Communities

— How risks were included on and removed from the Register

— Anti-fraud activity in the Directorate

Discussion ensued with the following issues raised:-

e The Register currently had 17 risks listed 4 of which were also
deemed Strategic risks

e Risks were regularly discussed and reviewed at the Directorate
Leadership Team and escalated to the next strategic level for
inclusion on the Risk Register where necessary

e The Risk Register was a standard item at the monthly meetings with
the 3 Cabinet Members



Page 234

AUDIT COMMITTEE - 27/11/18

59.

2 new risks added to the Register

Update of Emergency Plan

Planned approach to fraud

Licensing Service as a whole

Updating required with regard to members of staff and
Commissioners

Household Waste Collection Service

Security of Council buildings

Resolved:- That the progress and current position in relation to risk
management activity in the Regeneration and Environment Directorate, as
detailed in the report now submitted, be noted.

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Resolved:- That a further meeting be held on Tuesday, 29" January,
2018, commencing at 2.00 p.m.



Page 235 Agenda Item 17

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
21st November, 2018

Present:-

Councillor David Roche Cabinet Member, Adult Social Care and Health
(in the Chair)

Tony Clabby Healthwatch Rotherham

Chris Edwards Chief Operating Officer, Rotherham CCG

Carole Lavell NHS England

Anne-Marie Lubanski Strategic Director, Adult Care, Housing and
Public Health

Dr. Jason Page Governance Lead, Rotherham CCG

Jon Stonehouse Strategic Director, Children and Young People’s
Services

Janet Wheatley Voluntary Action Rotherham

Also Present:

Miles Crompton Performance, Intelligence and Improvement,
RMBC

Lydia George Rotherham CCG

Gordon Laidlaw Communications Lead, Rotherham CCG

Phil Morris Business Manager, Rotherham Local
Safeguarding Children’s Board

Councillor Short Vice-Chair, Health Select Commission

Becky Woolley Policy and Partnership Officer, RMBC

Report Presenters:

Christine Cassell Independent Chair, Rotherham Local
Safeguarding Children’s Board

Gilly Brenner Public Health Consultant, RMBC

Nick Leigh-Hunt Public Health Consultant, RMBC

A member of the public.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mallinder and Watson,
Sharon Kemp (RMBC), Terri Roche and Kathryn Singh (RDaSH).

25. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest made at the meeting.
26. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS

The member of the public present at the meeting did not wish to ask any
questions.



Page 236

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

27.

28.

29.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 19TH
SEPTEMBER, 2018

The minutes of the meeting of the previous meeting of the Health and
Wellbeing Board held on 19" September, 2018, were considered.

Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19t
September, 2018, be approved as a correct record.

Arising from Minute No. 15(4) (HWB Strategy Aim 4 Update), it was noted
that a very successful event had been held recently at Voluntary Action
Rotherham attended by a wide range of providers and voluntary groups.

Arising from Minute No. 15(6) (Housing Strategy Refresh), it was noted
that Public Health had been included in the work with regard to health
inequalities.

Arising from Minute No. 16(5) (HWB Strategy Aim 2 Update), it was noted
that extra funding had been received from the South Yorkshire and
Bassetlaw Integrated Care System and was a joint project between the
RCCG and the Council. An update would be provided as the project
developed.

Arising from Minute No. 18 (Rotherham Integrated Care Partnership
Agreement), the Agreement had been signed off in consultation with the
Chair.

Arising from Minute No. 16 (Better Mental Health For All), it was noted
that the Trailblazer funding process had not been finalised as yet but a
report would be submitted in due course.

COMMUNICATIONS

(1) An email link had been circulated to all Board members with regard to
the LGA case study of Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Board.

(2) A joint HIV awareness raising event was to be held on 30t November
in Riverside House.

LOCAL SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD AND SAFEGUARDING
ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL REPORTS 2017/18

Rotherham Local Safeguarding Children Board
Christine Cassell, Chair of the Rotherham Local Safeguarding Children
Board, presented the Board's annual report 2017-18 outlining the role of
the Board, its relationship to the Health and Wellbeing Board and the
context for the 2017-18 annual report which was:-



Page 237
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

Governance and accountability arrangements

Effectiveness of arrangements to keep Rotherham children safe
Learning and Improvement Framework

Safer Workforce

Strategic Priorities for 2016-18

Christine drew attention to the following issues:-

There had been a number of external inspections which were a very
important part of the checking of the safeguarding system in
Rotherham. The outcomes reflected the significant improvement
particularly in Children’s Services over a very short period of time

The improvements in other agencies were to be celebrated across the
safeguarding system and the staff involved should be congratulated

There were still further improvements to be made, as highlighted in
the inspection reports, and the work of the Board itself highlighted
areas where there was a need for further safeguarding improvement

It was a particularly important time in the improvement journey that
Rotherham and its partners were working to ensure that safeguarding
really was at the heart of the work that took place across the
partnership as well as the good practice and further improving
practice was embedded into day-to-day work

Demand was challenging whilst budgets were reducing. This was a
national issue

The problem in Rotherham was exasperated by the effective multi-
agency working on complex cases and by the impact of the
investigations that were ongoing through Operation Stovewood.
Once the perpetrators were detected through the investigations and
prosecutions commenced, it had implications for any children of those
families. Whilst the exact number of perpetrators’ children could not
be predicted, there would be large numbers of children where
consideration had to be given to their safety within the family context

The effect of management of demand would be something that the
Board would continue to monitor whilst supporting and continuing to
challenge

The specific areas that the Board would be driving for improvement
immediately included neglect and potential links between neglect and
poverty, effective Early Help Services, continued focus on CSE but to
widen the scope to look at other forms of exploitation of young people
and their vulnerabilities



Page 238
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

— Continued development of the work established through the protocol
across the Local Safeguarding Children and Adults Boards and focus
on safeguarding in Rotherham

— The need to collectively improve the understanding of communities
and target support services appropriately and aim to increase the
resilience of local communities

As a consequence of the Children and Social Work Act and subsequent
Statutory Guidance, LSCBs would cease to exist in their current form;
there would be a different arrangement for the safeguarding of children
and the 3 key partners — Health through the CCG, Police and the Local
Authority — who would be required to design new multi-agency
safeguarding arrangements which would have more flexibility than
currently prescribed for LSCBs. A working group had been established
and currently working up proposals for the way the new arrangements
would work. The commitment from the 3 partners with the new
arrangements would build on the strength of the current partnership and
make further improvements in the work of protecting children across
Rotherham.

A discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:-

e Although the survey that had shown a decline in the number of young
people who felt safe was a perception survey and not always
accurate, it needed to be taken seriously and explore with the young
people why they had those views. Sometimes young people gave
messages that were not very comfortable but work was needed to
look into what had led them to make those comments

e Work would take place with statutory groups with regard to their
attendance at and commitment to the Board. Consideration would be
given to the structure and attendees as part of the new arrangements

Rotherham Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017/18
Anne-Marie Lubanski, Strategic Director, Adult Care, Housing and Public
Health, presented the Rotherham Safeguarding Adults Board 2017/18
Annual Report.

During 2017/18 the Board had continued to work to promote and protect
vulnerable adults in Rotherham and had met bi-monthly to ensure the
hard work of the previous year was built upon and that all partnership
working was developed and strengthened in the sub-groups.

Anne-Marie highlighted:-

— The shared work area in terms of ensuring Adults and Children’s
safeguarding



Page 239
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

The Local Safeguarding Adults Board was still in its infancy and was
working on making sure the foundations were correct and the
partnership working

The Board had responsibility for those who worked in a significant
provider area and had to ensure it had the challenge and processes
as well as the appropriate representation on the Board

The Board would continue to create policies and procedures and the
South Yorkshire footprint. Work was already taking place to ensure
that the policy and procedures within the statutory organisation were
tied into that of the Board

Work still ongoing on an agreement with regard to the setting of
thresholds for vulnerable adults

Work was taking place on modern slavery and human trafficking
which crossed over particularly with the Children’s Board and the
Safer Rotherham Partnership and would be a continued priority for
2018/19

The case studies included within the report gave a clear indication of
what the organisations were undertaking as well as the journeys but
also the good work and the areas that needed to be developed further

2 Safeguarding Adult Reviews had taken place and action plans
developed. There had been positive learning about how to work
together

Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:-

The increase in the number of Section 42 enquiries would be a
mixture of more cases coming through and improvement in
recognising them. Following any awareness raising there tended to
be a rise in the number of referrals

The Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards sat
outside safeguarding but it was important that Safeguarding Boards
had linkage to it. There had been a decrease in the number of
authorisations granted and not granted to that of 2015/16. It was an
area that was monitored

The Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards were
very technical. A provider with a 60 bed facility may submit 60 DOLS
potentially unnecessarily because they had a statutory duty to request
a standard variation order to cover that. Some homes would include
everyone and then sift through as to who actually required one. It was
a challenge to all local authorities and the health environment



Page 240

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

30.

Christine and Anne-Marie were thanked for their reports.

It was noted that Sandi Keene, Independent Chair, would be stepping
down from the position in 2019.

Resolved:- That the Rotherham Local Safeguarding Children Board and
the Rotherham Local Safeguarding Adults Boards’ annual reports 2017-
18 be noted.

REFRESHED JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT
CONSULTATION

Gilly Brenner, Consultant in Public Health, reported that the current
Rotherham Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) was due to be
refreshed. This provided an opportunity to consider rationalising the
content, a better fit to drive current priorities and ensuring it was more
meaningful to commissioners, Service providers and partners.

All partners were actively encouraged to participate in a consultation
process to shape the design and that Board members provide a
considered response to the consultation.

It was proposed that key interested representatives from organisations be
identified/confirmed through the consultation who would then form part of
a working group of authors who contributed to the JSNA on an ongoing
basis.

In order to provide the required level of data and accompanying
contextual information within current capacity, it was suggested that the
JSNA comprise of strategic overview of key areas at a Rotherham level
and at Ward profiles and that depth of certain priority topics was added
according to priority. The JSNA author group would support the provision
of more indepth data where a priority was agreed. Prioritisation would be
determined where there was a defined current use and demand for
information and where there was a sponsor who could lead a topic-
specific working group to support collation of the required information.

An interactive presentation was given allowing Board members to express
their views on the proposal which included:-

— The Ward profiles drawn up by the Authority last year should be
shared with a wider audience but would need to be tweaked to take
account of the Health localities

— Recognition required of the Integrated Social Care Partnership and
the Sheffield City Region in the context of bidding documents

— Did the current structure of the document exclude people if they felt
they did not belong within the particular headings?



31.

Page 241
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

— The document would only be available electronically with the ability for
the reader to save/print certain sections themselves

Resolved:- (1) That the proposal of a refresh of the JSNA be approved.

(2) That senior managers from a wide range of partner organisations be
encouraged to be involved in the strategic and policy design and
commissioning or service delivery and take part in the consultation to
ensure the revised JSNA was meaningful, well used and fit for purpose.

(3) That discussions take place between Miles Crompton and Chris
Edwards with regard to the Ward profiles to take account of the Health
localities.

Action:- Miles Crompton/Chris Edwards

(4) That the link to the document be circulated to enable Board members
to forward to relevant colleagues to ascertain their views.
Action: Gilly Brenner

(5) That key contact details for each organisation be forwarded to Gilly
Brenner.
Action:- All Board members

(6) That the Kirklees JSNA be circulated to Board members for
information.
Action:- Becky Woolley

UPDATE ON THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY AIMS 1
AND 3

Aim 1: All children get the best start in life and go on to achieve
their potential

Jon Stonehouse, Strategic Director, Children and Young People’s
Services, together with Collette Bailey, Head of Locality, presented an
update in relation to Aim 1 of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2025
focussing on Priorities 1 and 2 :-

Priority 1 — Ensuring every child gets the best start in life (pre-conception
to age 3)

Priority 2 — Improving health and wellbeing outcomes for children and
young people through integrated commissioning and service delivery

With the aid of a powerpoint presentation, following the principles of Signs
of Safety, the Board considered:-

What’s working well
What are we worried about
What needs to happen



Page 242
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:-

— The 3 months consultation on the SEMH Strategy would commence in
January 2019 and would include the Board

— A postholder had recently been appointed to develop the Joint
Obesity Strategy

— Public Health had already commissioned Obesity work particularly for
children above the age of 8 years and their families. It was focussed
mainly in the Public Health arena but also within the Early Help offer
putting together programmes with parents around healthy eating,
weaning and early years diet. The other main arena was within the
education system with schools now addressing it through PHCP.
There were a number of strands that could have influence at low/no
cost although it was acknowledged that there had been difficulties in
the past particularly in relation to Obesity Services

— Healthwatch Rotherham had recently published a review of CAMHS
recommending the removal of Autism from the Service and
commissioning a standalone Autism Service to replace what currently
was not working within CAMHS. The RCCG had recognised the
difficulties with Autism Pathway and was a top priority

Aim 3: All Rotherham people live well for longer

Nick Leigh-Hunt, Public Health Consultant, presented an update in
relation to Aim 3 of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2025.

With the aid of a powerpoint presentation, following the principles of Signs
of Safety, the Board considered:-

What's working well
What are we worried about
What needs to happen

Discussion ensued with the following issue raised/clarified:-

— Consideration of targeting occupations/work place settings to improve
the uptake of health checks

Discussion ensued on the issue of Board Sponsors and Lead Officers and
the rationale for the previous decision with regard to Board Sponsors. It
was felt timely for a refresh of the Board Sponsors for each of the Strategy
Aims.

Resolved:- (1) That the progress made against Aims 1 and 3 be noted.

(2) That an update be provided at the next meeting on Obesity.
Action:- Terri Roche



32.

33.

Page 243
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

(3) That an email be sent to Board members regarding Board Sponsors
for the Health and Wellbeing Strategy Aims and discussed further at the
January 2019 meeting.

Action:- Becky Woolley

HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY - DRAFT PERFORMANCE
FRAMEWORK

Becky Wooley, Policy and Partnership Officer, reported that a
performance framework was being developed to measure the delivery of
the Health and Wellbeing Strategy (Minute No. 6 of 11t July, 2018 refers).

Attached to the report was the first draft of the framework which included
a longlist of potential indicators. It was envisaged that the final
performance framework would be in the form of a scorecard and would
include approximately 3 high level indicators for each Aim with clear
targets set for 2025.

Resolved:- (1) That the approach of the performance framework be
endorsed.

(2) That Board members consider the longlist of potential indicators and
notify Becky Woolley of their thoughts by 14t December.
Action:- All Board Members/Becky Woolley

(3) That the full performance framework be submitted to the January
2019 Board meeting with performance updates submitted to future Board
meetings.

ACTIVE FOR HEALTH

Amy Roden, Public Health, and Dr. Simon Nichols, Sheffield Hallam
University, gave the following powerpoint presentation on insights from
the Rotherham Active for Health Research Projects 2015-2018:-

What is Active for Health (AFH)

— A safe and robust multi-condition sport and physical activity project
linking healthcare services to community physical activity
opportunities. With the aim to facilitate long term adherence to sport
and physical activity to aid recovery and condition management

Why was Active for Health developed

— Research evidence for long term conditions and physical activity

— Need and demand locally

— Specific activity for inactive patients e.g. cancer, cardiac and heart
failure, COPD, falls, stroke, MSK lower back pain

— Evidence and models from previous Falls pilot work

— Opportunity to access large pilot funding pot — Get Healthy Get Active
for piloting projects with physical activity/long term conditions



Page 244
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

The ‘Active for Health’ Programme

Step 1 Rehabilitation

— Lead exercise professionals work with patients in health care services
to motivate referrals into step 2

Step 2 Moving on

— 12 week condition specific physical activity programme. Delivered by
level 4 instructors

Step 3 Keeping active

— Maintenance sessions aimed at continuing recovery

How the programme was delivered — what’s different

— Level 4 exercise specialists to ensure patients gained condition
specific physiological outcomes

— Procured the service — 2 providers, 2 reasons; more effective
management/long term sustainability

— Borough-wide community based approach

— Linked into relevant local, regional, national programmes to enhance
delivery at local level (clinical champions, SPS, Health trainers)

The evaluation of Active for Health

“To what extent the Active for Health Pathway is effective and cost
effective in supporting and sustaining inactive individuals into physical
activity opportunities/sport”

Primary Outcomes

— Physical activity change

— Cost benefit/health service utilisation

Secondary Outcomes

— Quality of life

— Patient and stakeholder experience

Sustainability — What’s happening with the project now?

— Sustainability plan

— Provision will continue

— Funding secured for Falls and Cancer programme 2018/19

— Providers will continue to offer a modified service for all other
conditions

— Final research report — December 2018

Discussion ensued on the presentation with the following issues
raised/clarified:-

e Someone diagnosed with Cancer and clinically obese would be
referred through their GP or other health care professional. Cancer
Nursing Teams at the Hospital had signposted patients

e The Cardiac referral form was very complicated and time consuming
for a GP to complete and felt that the information required was out of
proportion for patients to get exercise. However, it was the level of



34.

35.

36.

37.

Page 245
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 21/11/18

information required in terms of medication, condition etc. before an
instructor could set an exercise programme. This level of information
only applied to cardiac patients

e The programme had known of the patients that needed activities to be
delivered in community-based facilities and had linked them up into
other activities. It had to also look at the differences between getting
generally inactive people active

e Active for Health was trying to do things differently and connect
everything together. There was no real shortage of opportunities to
undertake physical activity but the big change for Active for Health
was to get the clinicians and hospitals to work with it

e Across the whole of the project the retention rates after 3 months
were 60-70%. The reasons for drop outs would be included in the
final report.

Amy and Simon were thanked for their presentation.

Resolved:- (1) That the presentation be noted.

(2) That when produced, Amy Roden provide Becky Woolley with the
final report for circulation to the Board.

Action:- Amy Roden/Becky Woolley

ROTHERHAM HOSPICE QUALITY ACCOUNT

The Rotherham Hospice Quality Account 2018 was submitted for
information.

ROTHERHAM INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP PLACE PLAN -
PERFORMANCE REPORT: QUARTER 1.

The Quarter 1 performance of the Rotherham Integrated Care Partnership
Place Plan was submitted for information.

MINUTES OF THE ROTHERHAM INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP
HELD ON 3RD OCTOBER, 2018

The minutes of the Rotherham Integrated Care Partnership Place Board
held on 3 October, 2018, were noted.

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 23RD
JANUARY, 2019, COMMENCING AT 9.00 A.M.

Resolved:- That a further meeting be held on Wednesday, 23 January,
2019, commencing at 9.00 a.m. venue to be confirmed.



Page 246 Agenda Item 18

PLANNING BOARD - 06/12/18

PLANNING BOARD
6th December, 2018

Present:- Councillor Sheppard (in the Chair); Councillors Atkin, Bird, Sansome,
Steele, John Turner, Walsh, Whysall, Williams and Short.

Apologies for absence:- Apologies were received from Councillors Andrews,
D. Cutts, M. Elliott, Fenwick-Green and Tweed.

The webcast of the Council Meeting can be viewed at:-
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

59. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest to report.
60. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning
Regulatory Board held on Thursday, 15" November, 2018, be approved
as a correct record.

61. DEFERMENTS/SITE VISITS
There were no site visits nor deferments recommended.
62. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS

Resolved:- (1) That, on the development proposals now considered, the
requisite notices be issued and be made available on the Council’s
website and that the time limits specified in Sections 91 and 92 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 apply.

(2) That application RB2018/0909 be granted for the reasons adopted by
Members at the meeting and subject to the relevant conditions listed in
the submitted report.

63. REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF PLANNING
REGENERATION AND TRANSPORT

Consideration was given to the report highlighted the current performance
of the Development Management team.

The report detailed the performance statistics for Development
Management against the Government targets for each application type. It
also set out what enforcement action had been prioritised against the new
Enforcement Plan during 2018.


https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Page 247

PLANNING BOARD - 06/12/18

64.

65.

Development Management, like all other services within the Council, had
to save money year on year and was now at a resource level that would
struggle to maintain performance if it was subject to further reductions.

A considerable amount of work had been undertaken to ensure the
service was as efficient as possible and this, amongst a few other
reasons, had been recognised by the RTPI in awarding Rotherham as the
‘Local Authority Planning Team of the Year 2018.

Resolved:- That the report be received and the contents noted.

UPDATES

The following update information was provided:-

— The scheme of delegation had recently been changed which in the
main affected courtesy consultation planning applications. This would
now mean that only controversial and/or those applications where the
development was close to the Rotherham boundary would be
submitted to the Board.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Resolved:- That the next meeting of the Planning Board take place on
Thursday, 10" January, 2019 at 9.00 a.m.



Page 248
PLANNING BOARD - 10/01/19

PLANNING BOARD
10th January, 2019

Present:- Councillor Sheppard (in the Chair); Councillors Andrews, Atkin, Bird,
D. Cutts, M. Elliott, Fenwick-Green, Sansome, Steele, John Turner, Tweed, Walsh,
Whysall and Williams.

The webcast of the Council Meeting can be viewed at:-
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

66.

67.

68.

69.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest to report.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 6TH DECEMBER,
2018 (HEREWITH)

DEFERMENTS/SITE VISITS
There were no site visits or deferments recommended.
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS

Resolved:- (1) That, on the development proposals now considered, the
requisite notices be issued and be made available on the Council’s
website and that the time limits specified in Sections 91 and 92 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 apply.

In accordance with the right to speak procedure, the following people
attended the meeting and spoke about the following application:-

- Erection of toilet block to side & single storey extension to front at
131 Bawtry Road Wickersley for Mr Baker (RB2018/1747)

Mr. D. Baker (Applicant)
Mrs. M. Godfrey (Objector)

(2) That, with regard to application RB2018/1451:-

(@) subject to a satisfactory legal agreement with the applicant made
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the
purposes of securing:-

° Financial contribution of £17,204.88 towards the improvement of
existing green space, in particular for the provision of children’s
equipped play at a site to be agreed with green spaces team.

o Financial contribution of £21,000 towards sustainable transport
measures.


https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Page 249
PLANNING BOARD - 10/01/19

(b) subject to the satisfactory securing of such an agreement, the Council
resolves to grant planning permission for the proposed development
subject to the reasons for grant and conditions listed in the submitted
report and subject to amendment to Condition No. 8 and the addition of
two new conditions inserted after Condition No. 8 making fifteen
conditions in total to read:-

08

Above ground development shall not begin until a foul and surface water
drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles
and an assessment of the hydrological and hydro geological context of
the development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include the construction
details and shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the
approved details before the development is completed. The scheme to be
submitted shall demonstrate:-

. The utilisation of holding sustainable drainage techniques (e.g.
soakaways);

. The limitation of surface water run-off to equivalent brownfield rates
(i.e. minimum of 30% reduction in flows based on existing flows and
a 1in 1 year return period);

. The ability to accommodate surface water run-off on-site up to the
critical 1 in 100 year event plus a 30% allowance for climate change,
based upon the submission of drainage calculations; and

. A maintenance plan including responsibility for the future
maintenance of drainage features and how this is to be guaranteed
for the lifetime of the development.

Reason
To ensure that the development can be properly drained in accordance
with the Local plan and the NPPF.

09

A flood route drawing showing how exceptional flows generated within or
from outside the site will be managed including overland flow routes,
internal and external levels and design of buildings to prevent entry of
water, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority
and the development shall not be brought into use until such approved
details are implemented.

Reason
To ensure that the development can be properly drained and will be safe
from flooding in accordance with the Local plan and the NPPF.

10
Before the development is brought into use, that part of the site to be
used by vehicles shall be constructed with either;



70.

71.

Page 250
PLANNING BOARD - 10/01/19

al a permeable surface and sub-base, or;
b/ an impermeable surface with water collected and taken to a separately
constructed water retention/discharge system within the site.

The area shall thereafter be maintained in a working condition.

Reason
To ensure that the development can be properly drained in accordance
with the Local plan and the NPPF

(3) That application RB2018/1747 be granted for the reasons adopted by
Members at the meeting and subject to the relevant conditions listed in
the submitted report.

(4) That applications RB2018//1857 and RB2018/1859 be referred to the
Government Office as a departure, and if they indicate that they do not
wish to call in the application, that permission be granted for the reasons
adopted by Members at the meeting and subject to the relevant conditions
listed in the submitted report and subject to an amendment to Condition
28 for both applications to now read:-

28

The approved advanced planting details submitted in application
RB2017/1791shall be implemented for the site excluding the area around
the new access which shall be planted in accordance with plan references
Softworks Proposals 1 718 401 Rev C; Softworks Proposals 2 718 402
Rev C and Softworks Proposals 3 718 403 Rev C submitted on the 03-
01-19 as below:-

i. Prior to the first occupation of the part or phase of development to
which the screen relates: or

ii. In accordance with an implementation timetable agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority.

Any plants or trees which within a period of 5 years from completion of
planting die, are removed or damaged, or that fail to thrive shall be
replaced. Assessment of requirements for replacement planting shall be
carried out on an annual basis in September of each year and any
defective work or materials discovered shall be rectified before 31st
December of that year.

UPDATES
There were no updates to report.
DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Resolved:- That the next meeting of the Planning Board take place on
Thursday, 31st January, 2019 at 9.00 a.m.



Page 251 Agenda Item 19

LICENSING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE - 26/11/18

LICENSING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE
26th November, 2018

Present:- Councillor Ellis (in the Chair); Councillors Beaumont, Buckley, Napper and
Sheppard.

24, EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in the Police Act 1997 and Paragraphs 3
and 7 of Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972
(business affairs and prevention of crime).

25. APPLICATIONS FOR THE RENEWAL/REVIEW OF HACKNEY
CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS' LICENCES

The Sub-Committee of the Licensing Board considered a report of the
Licensing Manager relating to applications for the renewal and review and
of hackney carriage/private hire drivers’ licences in respect of Messrs. Z.I.
and L.A.

Messrs Z.1. and |.A. attended the meeting and their representatives and
were interviewed by the Sub-Committee.

Resolved:- (1) That the hackney carriage/private hire driver’s licence in
respect of Mr.Z.l. be suspended until such time as he satisfactorily
completes an appropriate driving assessment course — the details of
which are to be provided by the Council.

(2) That the application for the renewal of a hackney carriage/private hire
driver’s licence in respect of Mr. |.A. be approved and he be granted a
licence, but he be issued with a letter of warning stressing the importance
of the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers’ Policy regarding vehicle
cameras and their use.

(Councillor Sheppard declared that he is a contact of one of the
representatives via social media, but they did not discuss cases and nor
had he had any involvement with any of the applicants)

26. APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF A PRIVATE HIRE OPERATOR
LICENCE

Further to Minute No. 17 of the meeting of the Licensing Board Sub-
Committee held on 8t October, 2018, consideration was given to a report,
presented by the Licensing Manager, concerning an application for the
grant of a private hire operator’s licence in respect of Mr. F.J. (UBL).



Page 252

LICENSING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE - 26/11/18

27.

28.

Representatives from UBL attended the meeting and was interviewed by
the Sub-Committee.

Resolved:- That the application for the grant of a private hire operator’'s
licence in respect of Mr. F.J. (UBL) be approved for one year, subject to
an amendment to Condition No. 3 of the previously approved licensing
conditions regarding the inclusion of authorised electronic storage
methods of data. There will also be an amendment as to the data to be
kept in respect of every booking and complaint to include the individual's
contact details.

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PRIVATE HIRE OPERATOR
LICENCE

Consideration was given to a report, presented by the Licensing Manager,
concerning an application for the grant of a private hire operator’s licence
in respect of Mr. W.H. (G.F.).

Mr. W.H. attended the meeting and was interviewed by the Sub-
Committee.

Resolved:- That the application for the grant of a private hire operator’'s
licence in respect of Mr. W.H. (G.F.) be approved for one year, subject to
a condition restricting the number of vehicles to two.

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING

Resolved:- That the next meeting of the Licensing Board Sub-Committee
be held on Monday, 17t December, 2018 at 9.30 a.m.



Page 253
LICENSING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE - 17/12/18

LICENSING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE
17th December, 2018

Present:- Councillor Ellis (in the Chair); Councillors Beaumont, Elliot, Hague and
McNeely.

29. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in the Police Act 1997 and Paragraphs 3
and 7 of Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972
(business affairs and prevention of crime).

30. APPLICATIONS FOR THE GRANT/RENEWAL/REVIEW OF HACKNEY
CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS' LICENCES

The Sub-Committee of the Licensing Board considered a report of the
Licensing Manager relating to applications for the renewal and review and
of hackney carriage/private hire drivers’ licences in respect of Messrs.
M.K., R.R., J.H. and M.A.

Mr. M.K. attended the meeting with his representative and was
interviewed by the Sub-Committee.

It was noted that Mr. M.A. had surrended his hackney carriage/private hire
driver’s licence.

Resolved:- (1) That the hackney carriage/private hire driver’s licence in
respect of Mr. M.K.. be revoked.

(2) That consideration of the review of a hackney carriage/private hire
driver’s licence in respect of Mr. R.R. be deferred and he be afforded the
opportunity of attending a future meeting of the Licensing Board Sub-
Committee.

(3) That consideration of the review of a hackney carriage/private hire
driver’s licence in respect of Mr. J.H. be deferred and he be afforded the
opportunity of attending a future meeting of the Licensing Board Sub-
Committee.

(4) That the surrender of the hackney carriage/private hire driver's licence
by Mr. M.A. be noted.

(Councillor Beaumont declared that she used to teach Mr. M.K. and
therefore withdraw from the meeting and did not take part in any
discussion or decision making of the case.)



Page 254
LICENSING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE - 19/12/18

LICENSING BOARD-SUB-COMMITTEE
19th December, 2018

Present:- Councillor Ellis (in the Chair); Councillors Beaumont, Clark, Reeder and
Sheppard.

31. HOUSE TO HOUSE COLLECTIONS
Consideration was given to a report, presented by the Licensing Manager,

concerning the following applications for the grant of promoter’s permits to
carry out a house-to-house collection:-

Organisation Area Date

Beads of Courage UK | Whole of Borough 12 months from 1st
January, 2019
Cancer Research and | Whole of Borough 314 December, 2018 to

Genetics UK 3rd April, 2019
National Deaf | Whole of Borough 1st December, 2018 to
Children’s Society 31st January, 2019
North of England | Whole of Borough 1st December, 2018 to
Children’s Cancer 31st January, 2019
Research

North of England | Whole of Borough 1st January to 31st
Children’s Cancer December, 2019
Research

Woodlands  Cancer | Whole of Borough 12 months from 3
Care December, 2018

Resolved:- (1) That, in accordance with the provisions of the House to
House Collections Act 1939, the application by Beads of Courage UK for
a promoter’s permit be refused on the grounds:-

o That the total amount likely to be applied for charitable purposes as
a result of the collection was inadequate in proportion to the values
of the proceeds likely to be received.

o That remuneration in relation to the total amount is likely to be, or
has been, retained or received out of the proceeds of the collection.

(2) That, in accordance with the provisions of the House to House
Collections Act 1939, the application by Cancer Research and Genetics
UK for a promoter’s permit be refused due to the submission of insufficient
financial information.



32.

33.

Page 255
LICENSING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE - 19/12/18

(3) That, in accordance with the provisions of the House to House
Collections Act 1939, the application by the National Deaf Children’s
Society for a promoter’s permit be deferred and representatives of the
organisation be invited to the Licensing Board Sub-Committee meeting on
14t January, 2019, to present further information.

(4) That, in accordance with the provisions of the House to House
Collections Act 1939, the application by the North of England Children’s
Cancer Research for a promoter’s permit be refused on the grounds that
the total amount likely to be applied for charitable purposes as a result of
the collection was inadequate in proportion to the values of the proceeds
likely to be received.

(5) That, in accordance with the provisions of the House to House
Collections Act 1939, the application by the Woodlands Cancer Care for a
promoter’s permit be deferred and representatives of the organisation be
invited to the Licensing Board Sub-Committee meeting on 14t January,
2019, to present further information.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in the Police Act 1997 and Paragraphs 3
and 7 of Part | of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972
(business affairs and prevention of crime).

APPLICATIONS FOR THE GRANT/RENEWAL/REVIEW OF HACKNEY
CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS' LICENCES

The Sub-Committee of the Licensing Board considered a report of the
Licensing Manager relating to applications for the renewal and review and
of hackney carriage/private hire drivers’ licences in respect of Messrs.
N.A., B.T.,, N.A,, S.K.,, KKM. AND H.I.

Messrs. N.A., B.T., N.A., S.K. and H.l. attended the meeting with their
representatives and were interviewed by the Sub-Committee.

Resolved:- (1) That the application for the grant of a hackney
carriage/private hire driver’s licence in respect of Mr. N.A. be approved
and he be granted a licence for a period of three years.

(2) That the application for the grant of a hackney carriage/private hire
driver’s licence in respect of Mr. B.T. be approved and he be granted a
licence for a period of three years.

(3) That the application for the grant of a hackney carriage/private hire
driver’s licence in respect of Mr. N.A. be approved and he be granted a
licence for a period of three years.



Page 256
LICENSING BOARD SUB-COMMITTEE - 19/12/18

(4) That the application for the grant of a hackney carriage/private hire
driver’s licence in respect of Mr.S.K. be approved and he be granted a
licence for a period of three years.

(5) That consideration of the review of a hackney carriage/private hire
driver’s licence in respect of Mr. K.M. be deferred and he be afforded the
opportunity of attending a future meeting of the Licensing Board Sub-
Committee.

(6) That the hackney carriage/private hire driver’s licence in respect of
Mr. H.Il. be suspended until such time as he satisfactorily completes an
appropriate driving assessment course — the details of which are to be
provided by the Council.

(Councillor Sheppard declared that he is a contact of one of the
representatives via social media, but they did not discuss cases and nor
had he had any involvement with any of the applicants)



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING
	Question No. 2 Public to T from Leader
	Question No. 3 Public to Dave Smith from Leader

	10 MINUTES OF THE CABINET
	Minutes , 17/12/2018 Cabinet, 21/01/2019 Cabinet

	11 RECOMMENDATION FROM CABINET - REVIEW OF POLLING PLACES
	Appendix 1 - Review of Polling Places, 17/12/2018 Cabinet
	Appendix A - Review timetable, 17/12/2018 Cabinet
	Appendix B - Notice of Review, 17/12/2018 Cabinet
	Appendix C - Consultation Paper, 17/12/2018 Cabinet
	Appendix D - Current Wards Combined 191218
	Anston and Woodsetts
	Boston Castle
	Brinsworth & Catcliffe
	Dinnington
	Hellaby
	Holderness
	Hoober
	Keppel
	Maltby
	Rawmarsh
	Rother Vale
	Rotherham East
	Rotherham West
	Silverwood
	Sitwell
	Swinton
	Valley
	Wales
	Wath
	Wickersley
	Wingfield

	Appendix E - New wards combined 191218
	Anston & Woodsetts Ward
	Aston&Todwick Ward
	Aughton & Swallownest Ward
	Boston Castle Ward
	Bramley & Ravenfield Ward
	Brinsworth Ward
	Dalton & Thrybergh
	Dinnington Ward
	Greasbrough Ward
	Hellaby & Maltby West Ward
	Hoober Ward
	Keppel Ward
	Kilnhurst & Swinton East Ward
	Maltby East Ward
	Rawmarsh East Ward
	Rawmarsh West Ward
	Rother Vale Ward
	Rotherham East Ward
	Rotherham West Ward
	Sitwell Ward
	Swinton Rockingham Ward
	Thurcroft & Wickersley South Ward
	Wales Ward
	Wath Ward
	Wickersley North Ward


	12 RECOMMENDATION FROM CABINET - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT – RENTS AND SERVICE CHARGES FOR 2019/20
	Housing Rents 2019-20, 21/01/2019 Cabinet
	HRA Budget 2019-20 Appendix 1, 21/01/2019 Cabinet

	13 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - MODERN METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION
	Appendix 1 - Scrutiny Review Report - Modern Methods of Construction, 12/12/2018 Overview and Scrutiny Management Board

	14 THRIVING NEIGHBOURHOODS - UPDATES FROM WARD COUNCILLORS
	Anston and Woodsetts Update
	Boston Castle Update

	15 STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
	Minutes

	16 AUDIT COMMITTEE
	17 HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
	18 PLANNING BOARD
	Planning Board 10th January 2019

	19 LICENSING
	Licensing Board Sub-Committee 17th December 2018
	Licensing Board Sub-Committee 19th December 2018




